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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EFSECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 192
For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2014

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(dy ®HE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19:
For the Transition Period From to

Commission file numbet-604.

WALGREEN CO .

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @t

lllinois 36-192402E
(State of incorporatior (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
108 Wilmot Road, Deerfield, lllinoi 60015
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area c¢g8ié7) 3152500

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefAct:
Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which registt
Common Stock ($.078125 Par Valt New York Stock Excha
The NASDAQ Stock Mat LC
Chicago Stock Excha

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(gh@fAct: _None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edb#turities Act.  YdXl NoO
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. YeEl No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports) and (2) has been sut
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayss®¥l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ab site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRide 405 of Regulation S-T (8§232.405 of this ¢bgpduring the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files).Yes No[O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgeleffinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Ill of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10KI.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See definition of "large accelerated fileaccelerated filer" and "smaller reporting camg" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated fildx] Accelerated fileid
Non-accelerated file Smaller reporting compariy

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). YesOO No

As of February 28, 2014, the aggregate market wallMgalgreen Co. common stock held by non-affikafieased upon the closing transaction
price on the New York Stock Exchange on February2P84) was approximately $59.8 billion. As of Awsty31, 2014, there were
950,386,889 shares of Walgreen Co. common stockanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

As permitted by General Instruction G to Form 10k information required by Part Il of this Foffi-K is incorporated by reference to,
and will be included in, a definitive proxy statemeelating to our Annual Meeting of Shareholderssuch information will be included in
amendment to this Form 10-K filed with the SEC with20 days after the end of the fiscal year cadénethis Form 10-K.
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Reform Act of 1995. See "Cautionary Note Regardingvard-Looking Statements" in Item 7 below.
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PART |

Item 1. Business

Overview

Walgreen Co., together with its subsidiaries, ofershe largest drugstore chain in the United Stafth net sales of $76.4 billion in the
fiscal year ended August 31, 2014. We provideamstomers with convenient, omni-channel accessigumer goods and services,
pharmacy, and health and wellness services in caniti@siacross America. We offer our products amises through drugstores, as
well as through mail, telephone, online and our itecdpplication.

We sell prescription and non-prescription drugsval as general merchandise, including conveniemekfresh foods, household items,
personal care, photofinishing and beauty care. gharmacy, health and wellness services includgl repecialty, infusion and
respiratory services, mail service, convenient cirgécs and wellness centers. These servicesihglpove health outcomes for patients
and manage costs for payers including employersaged care organizations, health systems, pharbeawfit managers and the public
sector. Our Take Care Health Systems subsidiaaynmgnager of in-store convenient care clinics [tHeare Clinics), with more than
400 locations throughout the United States. lcali®014, we sold a controlling interest in the @&are Employer Solutions, LLC
(Take Care Employer) business and now hold anequiestment in the business. See the "BusineselBement" section below for
further details.

On August 2, 2012, we acquired a 45% equity intere8lliance Boots GmbH (Alliance Boots), a leagimternational pharmacy-led
health and beauty group, which we account for utiegequity method of accounting. Alliance Boaogdivers a range of products and
services to customers including pharmacy-led heaithbeauty retailing and pharmaceutical wholegadimd distribution. As part of the
initial 45% investment in Alliance Boots, we alsmaired the right, but not the obligation, to elecacquire the remaining 55% interest
in Alliance Boots (the second step transactiongrgttime during the period beginning February®,®2and ending on August 2, 2015,
in exchange for £3.133 billion in cash, payabl8iiiish pounds sterling, and 144,333,468 sharé&aljreens common stock, subject to
certain specified potential adjustments (the cafiam). On August 5, 2014, the Purchase and Oftgnreement dated June 18, 2012
was amended (as amended, the Purchase and Optieament) to permit the exercise of the call opbieginning on that date, and we,
through an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary toialhwe previously assigned our rights to the cptian, exercised the call option on
August 5, 2014, as described under "Business Dpredot” below.

In addition, we plan to complete, immediately ptiothe completion of the second step transactiorprganization of Walgreens into a
holding company structure (the Reorganization agether with the second step transaction and thtedeshare issuance, the
Transactions), under which Walgreens would becombdally-owned subsidiary of a new Delaware corporahamed "Walgreens
Boots Alliance, Inc." (Walgreens Boots Alliance)Xawalgreen Co. shareholders immediately prior &oRleorganization would become
shareholders of Walgreens Boots Alliance, with ehaf Walgreen Co. common stock being converteahaatically into shares of
Walgreens Boots Alliance common stock on a onesfae-basis. The Reorganization is conditioned upersecond step transaction
being completed immediately following the complatif the Reorganization. The second step tramsaitinot conditioned on the
completion of the Reorganization. Closing of tharisactions is subject to shareholder and variegglatory approvals and is expected
to occur in the first quarter of calendar 2015.

Walgreen Co. was incorporated as an lllinois capon in 1909 as a successor to a business foundedD1. Our principal executive
offices are located at 108 Wilmot Road, Deerfidllihois 60015. The Company is principally in thetail drugstore business and its
operations are within one reportable segment.

Business Development

As of August 31, 2014, Walgreens operated 8,30&tioas in 50 states, the District of Columbia, RPaud&ico and U.S. Virgin Islands.
In 2014, the Company opened or acquired 268 lagatid\cquisitions included Kerr Drug, which contribd 76 drugstore locations as
well as a specialty pharmacy and a distributiorteenin 2014, the Company had a net reductiorn/@fl@cations primarily due to the
sale of the Take Care Employer business, whichisttsprimarily of worksite locations, and the Canp's plan to close
underperforming drugstores. Total locations a&ugjust 31, 2014 do not include 437 Healthcare €éimind 48 worksite pharmacies
that are operated primarily within our Walgreensgdtores or locations of unconsolidated partialtyned entities such as Alliance
Boots.

Number of Locations

Location Type 2014 2013 2012

Drugstores 8,201 8,11¢€ 7,93(
Health and Wellness Cente - 371 36€
Infusion and Respiratory Services Facilit 91 82 76
Specialty Pharmacie 9 11 11
Mail Service Facilities 2 2 2
Total 8,30¢ 8,58: 8,38t

Walgreens is committed to providing the most come@nomni-channel access to consumer goods anitespand pharmacy, health
and wellness services through our 8,207 commumisgt drugstores, as well as through our speciatiynpacy, home infusion and
respiratory services and retail clinic business®s.of August 2014, approximately 76% of the Uniftdtes population lived within five
miles of a Walgreens and an average of 6.2 milooppers visited our stores daily in fiscal 201taddition to store traffic, ot



websites, including Walgreens.com and drugstore,.ceceived an average of approximately 59.7 millimits per month in fiscal

2014. Integrated with our e-commerce platform,Wedgreens mobile application allows shoppers till prescriptions through scan
technology, receive text messages alerting whefilais due and other front-end functionality afrgphoto features and shopping
features. Our loyalty program, BalarftRewards, is designed to reward our most valuatdemers and encourage shopping in stores
and online and allows customers the opportunitgaim points for purchasing select merchandise diitiad to receiving special pricing
on select products when shopping with a rewards. c@ustomers have the ability to instantly redeewards at our stores or through
Walgreens.com. We had 82 million BalaffdRewards active members as of August 31, 2014.

We seek to grow pharmacy, front-end and online etsskare through new store growth, comparable stades increases, pharmacy
prescription file purchases and strategic acquoisiti When evaluating strategic acquisitions amdstment opportunities that meet our
long-term growth objectives, consideration is gitemetail, health and well-being enterprises atigoacquisitions and investments that
provide unique opportunities and fit our busineggatives. In fiscal 2014, we acquired certairetssf Kerr Drug , which included 76
retail drugstores, as well as a specialty pharnbasyness and a distribution center all based intNGarolina. Significant acquisitions

in the prior year include Stephen L. LaFrance Hudi Inc. (USA Drug), which included 141 drugstlmeations operating under the
USA Drug, Super D Drug, May's Drug, Med-X and DMgrehouse names. Additionally, the Company acdare80% interest in
Cystic Fibrosis Foundation Pharmacy LLC, an investiwhich provides joint ownership in a specialtyapnacy for cystic fibrosis
patients and their families and a provider of neadpct launch support and call center serviceslfog manufacturers.

On August 2, 2012, we acquired a 45% equity intére8lliance Boots and a call option that providéthlgreens the right, but not the
obligation, to elect to purchase the remaining 5684rest in Alliance Boots in the second step taatien, at any time during the period
beginning February 2, 2015 and ending on Augug025, in exchange for £3.133 billion in cash, pagab British pounds sterling, and
144,333,468 shares of Walgreens common stock, ciubjeertain specified potential adjustments sethfin the Purchase and Option
Agreement. On August 5, 2014, the Purchase an®pgreement was amended to permit the exercisiesofall option beginning on
that date, and Walgreens, through an indirectlyliyrmwned subsidiary to which it previously assigrits rights to the call option,
exercised the call option on August 5, 2014. Iriaie limited circumstances, Walgreens may be megltio make the entire second step
transaction payment in cash. In addition, in éerspecified cases, if the second step transadies not close, Walgreens may be
required to return a 3% interest in Alliance Baotgxchange for a nominal amount. Additional imf@tion regarding our investment in
Alliance Boots and the pending second step traimsais available in our and Walgreens Boots Alliesdilings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the SEC), including our Fofkqfded on May 15, 2014 that includes Alliance Bs'caudited consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes (peelgaraccordance with International Financial RépgrStandards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IFRS) andited in accordance with auditing standards igdigeaccepted in the United
States (U.S. GAAS)), including the statements mdifficial position at March 31, 2014 and 2013 ofakltie Boots and its subsidiaries
(the Group), and the related Group income statesn&rbup statements of comprehensive income, Gstatpments of changes in
equity and Group statements of cash flows for edi¢he years in the three-year period ended Maict?314, and our Form 8-K filed
on September 16, 2014 that discloses certain utebidio forma consolidated financial informatiofated to the pending Transactions.

We plan to complete, immediately prior to the comtiph of the second step transaction, the Reorgtaizof Walgreens into a holding
company structure, under which Walgreens would imeca wholly-owned subsidiary of a new Delaware omafion named "Walgreens
Boots Alliance, Inc." and Walgreen Co. sharehold@rsediately prior to the Reorganization would beeoshareholders of Walgreens
Boots Alliance, with shares of Walgreen Co. comrstmtk being converted automatically into shared/afgreens Boots Alliance
common stock on a one-for-one basis. The Reorgtoiris conditioned upon the second step trarsabieing completed immediately
following the completion of the Reorganization. eT$econd step transaction is not conditioned ordhgpletion of the Reorganization.
If the Reorganization is completed, Walgreens Bddiiance, immediately following the completion thife Reorganization, will issue, in
a private placement, shares of Walgreens Bootadk common stock to the sellers of the 55% ofAle Boots that Walgreens does
not own as of the date of this report (collectivehe Sellers) in connection with the second stepsaction and if the Reorganization is
not completed, Walgreens will issue, in a privdeeement, shares of Walgreens common stock togher§in connection with the
second step transaction. Closing of the Transagi®rubject to shareholder and various regulapprovals and is expected to occur in
the first quarter of calendar 2015.

Walgreens equity earnings, initial investment araeldall option exclude the Alliance Boots minoiityerest in Galenica Ltd.
(Galenica). The Alliance Boots investment in Galarwas distributed to the Alliance Boots sharebdther than Walgreens during
May 2013, which had no impact to the Company. \d@mant for our 45% investment in Alliance Bootsngsthe equity method of
accounting. Investments accounted for under thityemethod are recorded initially at cost and sajegently adjusted for our share of
the net income or loss and cash contributions #stdltlitions to or from these entities. Net incoraported by Alliance Boots is
translated from British pounds Sterling at the agerrate for the period. We utilize a three-moathih reporting equity income from
our investment in Alliance Boots, reported as ggeérnings in Alliance Boots on the Consolidateat&nhents of Earnings. The
investment is recorded as Equity investment inafiltie Boots in the Consolidated Balance Sheets."[Beeription of Business-
Overview of Alliance Boots" below for additionalfarmation. Upon closing of the second step tratisacthe financial results of
Alliance Boots will be fully consolidated into oaonsolidated financial statements. The timinghefelosing of the second step
transaction and the length of the reporting lagnif, we use to report the results of Alliance Badter the closing of the second step
transaction are expected to impact our reporteghfiral results in fiscal 2015. An earlier closamy/or shorter reporting lag would
increase, and a later closing would decrease Xtemeto which fully consolidated Alliance Bootsudts would be reflected in our
consolidated fiscal 2015 financial statements.

On March 19, 2013, the Company, Alliance Boots AnterisourceBergen Corporation (AmerisourceBergampanced various
agreements and arrangements, including a ten-yeaimaceutical distribution agreement between thagamy and AmerisourceBergen
pursuant to which the Company will source brandwdi@eneric pharmaceutical products from Amerisddecgen; an agreement which
provides AmerisourceBergen the ability to acceseges and related pharmaceutical products thriglyreens Boots Allianc



Development GmbH, a global sourcing joint ventueeneen the Company and Alliance Boots; and agreenaan arrangements
pursuant to which the Company and Alliance Boogetber have the right, but not the obligation, dochase a minority equity position
in AmerisourceBergen and gain associated repres@mmitan AmerisourceBergen's board of directorsartain circumstances. The
distribution agreement resulted in the distributignAmerisourceBergen of branded pharmaceuticalymts that Walgreens historically
had sourced from distributors and suppliers, effecseptember 1, 2013. In the second quartereo€tinrent fiscal year,
AmerisourceBergen began distributing generic phasutical products that we previously self-distrédmjtand that transition was
substantially complete by the end of fiscal 2014.

On June 25, 2014, the Company completed the saerdority interest in its subsidiary, Take Caretoyer Solutions, LLC (Take
Care Employer) to Water Street Healthcare Parifweger Street). At the same time, Water Streetevaadinvestment in CHS Health
Services (CHS), an unrelated entity and merged @sTake Care Employer to create a leading woekiséalth company dedicated to
improving the cost and quality of employee healirec Water Street owns a majority interest inrtb@ company while Walgreens
owns a significant minority interest and has repn¢atives on the new company's board of directdtee Company recorded an
immaterial gain on the transaction.

We utilize our extensive retail network as a chatm@rovide affordable quality health and wellnessvices to our customers and
patients, as illustrated by our ability to playign#ficant role in providing flu vaccines and othiermunizations. We market our products
and services to employers, governments, managedcoganizations and pharmacy benefit managersneipgbeyond our traditional
retail consumer model to contract directly with payers. Through our more than 70,000 health maréders including pharmacists,
pharmacy technicians, nurse practitioners and dteaith related professionals, Walgreens expeatsritinue to play a growing role in
government and employer efforts to control esaadgltiealth care costs.

Prescription sales continued to be a large podfdhe Company's business. In fiscal 2014, prpsoris accounted for 64.2% of sales
compared to 62.9% in fiscal 2013. Third party sakehere reimbursement is received from manageziarg@anizations, government and
private insurance, were 96.5% of fiscal 2014 piipdon sales which increased slightly from 95.8%i&cal 2013. Overall, Walgreens
filled approximately 699 million prescriptions iiséal 2014, an increase of 16 million, or 2.4%nirfiscal 2013. Adjusted to 30-day
equivalents, prescriptions filled were 856 millionfiscal 2014 and 821 million in fiscal 2013. Wedens accounted for 19.0% of the
U.S. retail prescription drug market in fiscal 2@bpared to 18.7% in fiscal 2013. Walgreens etspibe aging population and the
continued development of innovative drugs that mmprquality of life and control health care costh @ontinue to drive demand for
prescription drugs.

During fiscal 2014, the Company added $1.1 billoproperty and equipment, primarily related tastonprovements. Capital
expenditures for fiscal 2015 are currently expedtelle $1.7 billion, excluding acquisitions andguméption file purchases, although the
actual amount may vary depending upon a variefaabrs, including, among other things, the timaigmplementation of certain
capital projects and the closing of the second steysaction.

We plan to continue pursuing our goal to becomimbaj leader in pharmacy, health and well-beingisohs and the first choice for
health and daily living in communities we servé dalsigned to help our customers get, stay andisie Our strategies are designed to
further transform our traditional drugstore inttretail health and daily living" store, creatingnemunity-centric healthcare integration
with expanded pharmacy, health and wellness saisiti®Ve seek to continue to deliver an outstandirgjomer experience through
enhanced employee engagement and to expand owrgpiantt service offerings across new channels arlets where, in addition to
our stores, customers and patients can utilizéealth system pharmacies, Walgreens.com, mobilkécagipns and social media sites.

Description of Business

Principal products produced and services rendered

The Company's drugstores are engaged in the salailof prescription and non-prescription drugs gemkral merchandise. General
merchandise includes, among other things, conveaiand fresh foods, household items, personal beeaity care, photofinishing and
candy. Prescription drugs represent the Compéargest product class, followed by general merclsgndnd non-prescription drugs.
In fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, prescription drigmesented 64%, 63% and 63% of total sales, régelyctgeneral merchandise
represented 26%, 27% and 25% of total sales, régelyc and non-prescription drugs represented 109%p and 12% of total sales,
respectively. Customers may place orders by pbowoaline including through our mobile applicatiand have the choice to have
prescriptions filled at the drugstore as well astigh the mail.

We offer pharmacy, health and wellness solutionglvimclude retail, specialty pharmacy, infusiordaaspiratory services, mail service
and convenient care clinics. Our drugstores sekgmiption and non-prescription drugs and our plaaists also provide drug
consultations and administer flu vaccines and dthemunizations. Our integrated network of pharraadllows easy access for
customers to fill their prescriptions at any of duugstores. In addition, our stores sell braratedi owned brand general merchandise.
Take Care Health Systems, a wholly-owned subsidimanages the Healthcare Clinics at select Walgrd@oughout the country.
Patient care at each of the Healthcare Clinicsasiged by independently owned state professiooglarations doing business as Take
Care Health Services. Nurse practitioners andiplaysassistants treat patients and are licensedite prescriptions that can be filled
at the patient's pharmacy of choice and to adnginisimunizations and other vaccines.

We offer specialty pharmacy services that provigdet@mers nationwide access to a variety of medigatiservices and programs for
managing complex and chronic health conditions diktgions delivered to these customers often reggpecial handling, are only
available through limited distributions or involagime-sensitive delivery. Specialty pharmacyeyas typically require customized
treatments in managing their medical conditic



In addition, we offer our customers infusion theraprvices including the administration of intrawasa (IV) medications for cancer
treatments, chronic pain, heart failure, and othiiecctions and disorders which must be treatedvbyWalgreens provides these infusion
services at home, at the workplace, in a physgiaffice or at a Walgreens alternate treatment $Ke also provide clinical services
such as laboratory monitoring, medication profdgiew, nutritional assessments and patient andjcameeducation.

Many customers choose to have their prescriptiefibed through our mail service which allows custers to submit prescription refill
requests online, over the phone or through e-pl#sgr Our advanced pharmacy system offers phastsagasy access to patient
prescription records, which allows access to efihd emergency supplies at any of our pharmazasgs prescription transfers, and
enables any Walgreens pharmacist to provide ongo&agment consultation.

Customers also have access to our ecommerce s@utidich, through the walgreens.com and drugstone websites, including
beauty.com and visiondirect.com, offer certain piaid available only online as well as most prodagtlable in Walgreens
drugstores. Our mobile applications also allowt@oers to refill prescriptions through their mohilevice, download weekly
promotions and find the nearest Walgreens drugstoaddition to other features that are designeshttance the user's experience.

Sources and availability of raw materials

Inventories are purchased from numerous domestidarign suppliers. We do not believe that tteslof any one supplier or group of
suppliers under common control would have a mdtadeaerse effect on the Company's business.

Intellectual property and licenses

We market products and services under variousrmadés, trade dress and trade names and rely ombigation of patent, copyright,
trademark, service mark, and trade secret lawwelisas contractual restrictions to establish aralgrt our proprietary rights. We own
numerous domain names, hold over 75 patents, legistered numerous trademarks, and have filedegtjans for the registration of a
number of our other trademarks and service markaiious jurisdictions. We hold assorted busidiesmises (such as pharmacy,
occupational, liquor and cigarette) having varitwss within multiple legal jurisdictions, which@necessary for the normal operation
of our business.

Seasonal variationsin business

Our business is seasonal in nature, with the sefiecal quarter generating a higher proportionrohf-end sales and earnings than other
periods. Both prescription and non-prescriptiomgdsales are affected by the timing and severithefough, cold and flu season. See
the section captioned "Summary of Quarterly Regultsaudited)" in Part I, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Working capital practices

The Company generally finances its inventory anghesion needs with internally generated funds. "Blmagement's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems" in Part 11, Item 7 of this Form 10-K.

Customers

The Company sells to numerous customers includangmus managed care organizations within both thete and public sectors. No
customer accounted for ten percent or more of tha&ny's consolidated net sales in fiscal 2014.

Government contracts

The Company fills prescriptions for many state Meadi public assistance plans. Revenues from el plans were approximately
4.9% of total sales in fiscal 2014.

Regulation

Our business is subject to federal, state and laea, regulations, and administrative practicesceoning the provision of and payment
for health care services, including, without lintiba: federal, state and local licensure and tegfisn requirements concerning the
operation of pharmacies and the practice of phaymdedicare, Medicaid and other publicly financezhlih benefit plan regulations
prohibiting kickbacks, beneficiary inducement ahd submission of false claims; the Health Insurdhmeability and Accountability

Act (HIPAA); the Patient Protection and Affordatlare Act (ACA); and regulations of the U.S. Food &rug Administration, the U.S.
Federal Trade Commission, the U.S. Drug EnforcerAentinistration and the U.S. Consumer Product $af@mmission, as well as
regulations promulgated by comparable state ageoiecerning the sale, advertisement and promofitime products we sell.

We are also governed by federal and state lawsmémgl applicability, including laws regulating tests of working conditions, health
and safety and equal employment opportunity. hmeation with the operation of our stores, distiitnu centers and other sites, we are
subject to laws and regulations relating to thegmiion of the environment and health and safetiters including those governing
exposure to, and the management and disposalzdrd@us substances. Federal, state and locabenvintal protection requirements
did not have a material effect on capital expemdguearnings or the competitive position of thenpany in fiscal 2014. In addition, as
we increase our activities in markets outside thédd States, we are, and expect to be, subjext tocreasing number of foreign laws
and regulations, including retail and wholesalerptaty, licensing, tax, foreign trade, intellectpedperty, privacy and data protectic



currency, political and other business restrictiand requirements and local laws and regulations.
Competitive conditions

The drugstore industry is highly competitive. Aleader in the retail drug industry and as a retaif general merchandise, Walgreens
competes with various retailers, including chaid amdependent drugstores, mail order prescriptiowigers, grocery stores,
convenience stores, mass merchants, online phamacd retailers, warehouse clubs, dollar stordotrer discount merchandisers.
The Company competes primarily on the basis ofiserconvenience, variety and price. The Compagstgraphic dispersion helps
offset the impact of temporary, localized econoamnd competitive conditions in individual markef®he number and location of the
Company's drugstores appears under Item 2 — "Rregkin this Form 10-K.

Employees

At August 31, 2014, the Company employed approxétgat51,000 persons, approximately 76,000 of whamewpart-time employees
working less than 30 hours per week. The foregdimes not include employees of unconsolidatedgiyrowned entities, such as
Alliance Boots, of which we owned 45% as of theedaftthis report.

Research and development
The Company does not engage in any material reseat development activities.

Overview of Alliance Boots

Walgreens acquired a 45% equity interest in All@Boots GmbH on August 2, 2012 along with a callapto acquire the remaining
55% equity interest during the six-month periodibeipg February 2, 2015 (the first step transagtigdn August 5, 2014, the Purchase
and Option Agreement was amended to permit theceeeof the call option beginning on that date, wedthrough an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary to which we previously gssd our rights to the call option, exercised thiéaption on August 5, 2014, as
described above. Completion of the second stegdiaion is subject to shareholder and variouslasgy approvals and is expected to
occur in the first quarter of calendar 2015. Weoant for our 45% investment in Alliance Boots gsthe equity method of accounting
on a three-month lag basis. Accordingly, becausbethree-month lag and the timing of the closifithe first step transaction on
August 2, 2012, our financial statements for tisedl year ended August 31, 2013 reflect 12 mortthiseodilutive effect of the
incremental shares and interest expense assowidtedur Alliance Boots investment, but only 10 rtfm(August 2012 through May
2013) of Alliance Boots results, reported as Eqa#ynings in Alliance Boots. Our financial statensgor the fiscal year ended August
31, 2014 reflect Alliance Boots results for them@nths ending May 31, 2014, reported as Equityiegsnn Alliance Boots.

Alliance Boots is a leading international, pharm#sy health and beauty retailing and pharmaceutitalesaling and distribution
business. As of August 31, 2014, Alliance Bootd, hagether with its associates and joint ventysearmacy-led health and beauty
retail businesses in 11 countries and operated thare4,600 health and beauty retail stores, o€lwhore than 4,450 had a pharmacy,
with a growing online presence. In addition, adafrch 31, 2014, its fiscal year end, Alliance Bobad approximately 600 optical
practices in the United Kingdom, approximately D8@vhich operated on a franchise basis. Approxatya®?0% of its optical practices
are located in Boots stores with the balance bstiagdalone practices. In addition, Alliance Basta leader in the United Kingdom
hearingcare market through its associate, Bootsiitgzare, which operated in approximately 430 limeeg across the United Kingdom,
almost all of which are within Boots stores or skalone Boots Opticians practices. Its pharmacalutibolesale businesses, together
with its associates and joint ventures, suppliedioiees, other healthcare products and relatedcger¥o more than 180,000
pharmacies, doctors, health centers and hospitats fore than 370 distribution centers in 20 caastr Except as otherwise indicated,
figures regarding Alliance Boots business actigitiee as of March 31, 2014, with the addition aht&cias Ahumada S.A. data at the
date of its acquisition by Alliance Boots on Augigt 2014, and include its associates and jointures.

Pharmac-led Health and Beauty RetailingAlliance Boots is a market leader in the pharmadystry with stores located in the United
Kingdom, Norway, the Republic of Ireland, The Nethrds, Mexico, Chile, Thailand and Lithuania ahcbtigh its associates and joint
ventures in China, Italy and Croatia. In additias,of March 31, 2014, there were approximatel86ts branded stores operated in the
Middle East on a franchised basis. Alliance Beasks to locate its stores in convenient locat@mtsto put pharmacists at the heart of
healthcare. Alliance Boots pharmacists are welt@dl to provide a significant role in the provis@ealthcare services, working
closely with other primary healthcare providersha communities they serve. Alliance Boots priatigtail brand in its Health &

Beauty Division is Boots, which Alliance Boots teedunder in the United Kingdom, Norway, the Repubfilreland, The Netherlands
and Thailand. The Boots offering is differentiafesm that of competitors due to a number of fagiacluding the product brands that
Alliance Boots owns and "only at Boots" exclusivequcts.

Pharmaceutical Wholesaling and Distributic Alliance Boots pharmaceutical wholesaling andritigtion businesses seek to provide
high core service levels to pharmacists in termiseafuency of delivery, product availability, dediy accuracy, timeliness and reliability
at competitive prices. Alliance Boots also offitsscustomers added-value services that help plastealevelop their own businesses.
This includes membership in Alphega Pharmacy, Al@Boots pan-European network for independentnpacies. Alphega Pharmacy
had a membership of more than 4,800 pharmaciesvienscountries as of March 31, 2014. This is etqueto increase following the
March 2014 vote by the vivesco pharmacy networ&émmany, which has approximately 950 members,licarel as Alphega. In
addition to the wholesale of medicines and otheaitheare products, Alliance Boots provides serviogsharmaceutical manufacturers
who are increasingly seeking to gain greater cbotrer their product distribution, while at the saitime outsourcing non-core
activities. These services include pre-wholesate@ntract logistics, direct deliveries to pharieacand specialized medicine delivery
including related home healthca



Product Brands In its Health & Beauty Division, Alliance Boolgs product brands such as No7, Soltan and Botdagsther with
newer brands such as Boots Pharmaceuticals and Babbratories. Alliance Boots is seeking to awndito internationalize its key
product brands, selling them through select retitners, its own and third party internet shopitgs, and independent pharmacies. In
the United States, where Boots product brands haga sold through Target for many years, AlliancetB is, in addition, introducing
No7 and other key Boots product brands into thgshare channel through certain Walgreens storespirased basis. In Europe,

Boots Laboratories line of products was sold byepehdent pharmacies in five countries as of Mafigl2814. In addition, Alliance
Boots has partnerships with a select number of hérty brand owners to sell their products in Ba&ibres on an exclusive basis,
sharing in the future brand equity. Alliance Boalso continues to manufacture a significant priporof its most popular own brand
and exclusive products. Through its Pharmaceuiiablesale Division and associates, Alliance Baoisently sells Aimus, its line of
generic medicines, in five countries and Alvita,libe of patient care products, in six countries.

Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Orations and Export Sales

All Company sales during the last three fiscal gemrcurred within the United States, Puerto Riaeei® and the U.S. Virgin Islands.
There were no export sales. We account for our ¥b¥stment in Alliance Boots, described under "@iev of Alliance Boots" above,
using the equity method of accounting on a threetiméag basis, as described in Note 5 to the Cogip&onsolidated Financial
Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-Ks &result, no Alliance Boots sales are includethénnet sales reported by the
Company in its consolidated financial statements.

Investments accounted for under the equity methedecorded initially at cost and subsequently stéjdi for the Company's share of the
net income or loss and cash contributions andibigtons to or from these entities. The Compaimygstment in Alliance Boots was
recorded as an asset with a $7.2 billion aggregatee on the Company's August 31, 2014 balance,shbieh represented 29.1% of the
Company's long-lived assets as of that date. Bectne Company's investment in Alliance Boots isodeinated in a foreign currency
(British pounds Sterling), translation gains orsles impact the value of the investment. See Nttelte Company's Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part Il, Item 8 of thisfAdr0-K for additional information.

Available Information

We file with the Securities and Exchange Commissionannual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reportypstatements and registration statements. Youreed and copy any material we
file with the SEC at the SEC's Public ReferencerRab 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. M@y also obtain information

on the operation of the Public Reference Room llingahe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, 8#C maintains a website at
http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy aridrmation statements, and other information rdigey issuers, including us, that

file electronically. We make available free of g@on or through our website at investor.walgremms our annual reports on Form 10-
K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reporis-orm 8-K and amendments to these reports fitddraished pursuant to Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as redwyp practicable after we file or furnish thenthie SEC. The contents of the
Company's website are not, however, a part offbisn 10-K or the Company's other SEC filings.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information in this repartd our other filings with the SEC, you shouldedalty consider the risks described
below, which could materially and adversely affegt business, financial condition and results afrapions. These risks are not the
only risks that we face. Our business operatiangdcalso be affected by additional factors thatrast presently known to us or that we
currently consider to be immaterial to our operagio

Risks Relating to Existing Business

Reductions in third party reimbursement levels, fran private or government plans, for prescription drugs could reduce our
margin on pharmacy sales and could have a significhadverse effect on our profitability. In addition, a shift in pharmacy mix
toward lower margin plans and programs could adversly affect our profitability.

The substantial majority of the prescriptions wWiedfie reimbursed by third party payers, includpriyate and governmental payers. The
continued efforts of health maintenance organipationanaged care organizations, pharmacy bendfiageanent companies,
government entities, and other third party payenmgtuce prescription drug costs and pharmacy na@iseiment rates, as well as litigation
relating to how drugs are priced, may adverselyaichpur profitability. Plan changes with rate afljnents often occur in January and
our reimbursement arrangements may provide foradjiestments at prescribed intervals during tiegmt In addition, some of these
entities may offer pricing terms that we may notiking to accept or otherwise restrict our pagation in their networks of pharmacy
providers. Certain provisions of the Deficit Refiloie Act of 2005 (the DRA) sought to reduce fedes@dnding by altering the Medicaid
reimbursement formula for multi-source (i.e., gécjedrugs (AMP). While those reductions did notigtw effect, the ACA, which was
signed into law on March 23, 2010, enacted a mediifeimbursement formula for multi-source drugse modified formula, when
implemented, is expected to reduce Medicaid reisdrents, which could adversely affect our reveanésprofits. There have also
been a number of other recent proposals and enatdrog the federal government and various statesduce Medicare Part D and
Medicaid reimbursement levels in response to budggtits. We expect other similar proposals ia filture.

In addition, a shift in the mix of pharmacy preption volume toward programs offering lower reimgement rates could adversely
affect our profitability. We experienced a shiftgharmacy mix toward 90-day at retail in fiscal2@nd expect that trend to continue in
fiscal 2015. Our S-day at retail offering for patients with chronieepcription needs typically is at a lower margimtisamparable -



day prescriptions. Additionally, we decided toeguiclower reimbursement rates in order to secustemed relationships with Medicare
Part D plans serving senior patients with signifiggharmacy needs. Because our Medicare Parnibtesement rates will decrease in
calendar year 2015, if we are not able to genexdditional prescription volume and other businessfpatients participating in these
programs sufficient to offset the impact of loweimnbursement, our gross profit will be adversefeeted.

Our profitability can be significantly adversely affected by a decrease in the introduction of new brad name and generic
prescription drugs.

Our sales and profit margins can be adversely t&ffiloy the introduction of new brand name and demtugs. New brand name drugs
can result in increased drug utilization and asgedi sales revenues, while the introduction of fopvieed generic alternatives typically
results in relatively lower sales revenues, buhéiggross profit margins. Accordingly, a decraasthe number of significant new brand
name drugs or generics successfully introduceddcadversely affect our results of operations.

Generic drug inflation could have a significant aderse effect on our profitability.

Overall increases in the amounts we pay to proganeric drugs, commonly referred to as generic driligtion, could have a
significant adverse effect on our profitabilityn &ddition, our gross profit margins would be adedr affected by continued generic
inflation to the extent we are not able to offagtlscost increases. We experienced a shift fratotical patterns of deflation in generic
drug costs to inflation in fiscal 2014. Duringd# 2014, we experienced cost increases on a sobgeheric drugs and in some cases
these increases have been significant. We expisagéneric inflation to continue in fiscal 2016ur existing reimbursement
arrangements with payers generally provide us witly limited protection against cost increasesun@eneric drug procurement costs.
We are seeking to address this through changasrioamtracting strategies and negotiations withvaundors and payers. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to mitigate theaotpf increased inventory acquisition costs, irlgtor in part. Failure to fully offset
any such increased prices and costs or to modifydiivities to mitigate the impact could have gnficant adverse effect on our gross
profit margins.

We derive a significant portion of our sales from pescription drug sales reimbursed by pharmacy benéf management
companies.

We derive a significant portion of our sales frorageription drug sales reimbursed through presorigtrug plans administered by
pharmacy benefit management (PBM) companies. P&Mpanies typically administer multiple prescriptidnug plans that expire at
various times and provide for varying reimbursenrates. There can be no assurance that we wiliregnto participate in any
particular pharmacy benefit manager network in pangicular future time period. If our participatiin the prescription drug programs
administered by one or more of the large PBM corigzais restricted or terminated, we expect thatsalgs would be adversely
affected, at least in the short term. If we arehla to replace any such lost sales, either thramgincrease in other sales or through a
resumption of participation in those plans, ourrapiag results may be materially adversely affectedr example, we were not part of
the pharmacy provider network of Express Scripts,,lone of the largest PBMs, for more than eigbitis in 2012, which led most
patients in plans administered by Express Scrifgswe formerly served to transition to a new pleaynand caused us to lose
significant sales and adversely affected our opegatsults. When we exit a pharmacy provider oetvand later resume network
participation, there can be no assurance that Wegtiieve any particular level of business on pasticular pace. In addition, in such
circumstances we may incur increased marketingo#imel costs in connection with initiatives to regiirmer patients and attract new
patients covered by in-network plans. When we &xharmacy provider network and later resume nityarticipation, there also can
be no assurance that all clients of the PBM spooftite network will choose to include us agairthiair pharmacy network initially or
at all. For example, after we agreed with Expf&aspts to again become part of the broadest né&tafopharmacies available to
Express Scripts clients as of September 15, 20&2Jhited States Department of Defense TRICARE nairog an Express Scripts client,
announced that Walgreens would continue to be datd as a non-network pharmacy provider for TRIEARNeficiaries.

Consolidation and strategic alliances in the healttare industry could adversely affect our businesgompetitive positioning,
financial condition and results of operations.

Many organizations in the healthcare industry,udeélg pharmacy benefit managers, have consolidatestent years to create larger
healthcare enterprises with greater bargaining pomteich has resulted in greater pricing pressufes. example, in April 2012, two of
the three largest pharmacy benefit managers, Meldadth Solutions, Inc. and Express Scripts, In@rged. The resulting entity is the
largest pharmacy benefit manager in the UniteceStalf this consolidation trend continues, it ebgive the resulting enterprises even
greater bargaining power, which may lead to furfiresssure on the prices for our products and sesvitf these pressures result in
reductions in our prices, our business will becdess profitable unless we are able to achieve spomding reductions in costs or
develop profitable new revenue streams. Strat@tiamces in the healthcare industry also impactusiness and competitive
positioning. For example, following the announceair@ our agreement with AmerisourceBergen prowgdior, among other things,
generic drug purchasing by Walgreens, Alliance Bawtd AmerisourceBergen through the Walgreens Bab#sce Development
GmbH global sourcing joint venture, two of our iepdnarmacy competitors subsequently establishidioeships with other
pharmaceutical drug wholesalers relating to gerditig procurement. In addition, further consolislatamong generic drug
manufacturers could lead to increased generic aflagion in the future. We expect that market @, government regulation, third-
party reimbursement policies, government contrgatéguirements, and societal pressures will coptioucause the healthcare industry
to evolve, potentially resulting in further busise®nsolidations and alliances among the industriigipants we engage with, which
may adversely impact our business, financial céonlidnd results of operations.

From time to time, we make investments in companiesver which we do not have sole control, includingur investment in
Alliance Boots and our investment in AmerisourceBegen. Some of these companies may operate in sesttirat differ from our



current operations and have different risks.

From time to time, we make debt or equity investtaémother companies that we may not control @ravhich we may not have sole
control. For example, we own only 45% of the ansling Alliance Boots equity interests as of thiedd this report. While we have
the right to appoint four designees to serve omliance Boots Board of Directors and veto rigbter certain significant Alliance
Boots actions under the terms of our shareholdgeeaent with them, we do not have the abilitydotml day-to-day operations of that
company. Similarly, while we and Alliance Boots/bahe right, but not the obligation, to investimerisourceBergen common stock
and to designate up to two members of the Amercsidgrgen board of directors in certain circumstariicee achieve specified
ownership milestones, we do not and will not hde=dbility to control day-to-day operations of thampany. Although the businesses
in which we have made non-controlling investmemsegally have a significant health and daily livimgprescription drug component,
some of them operate in businesses that are diffén@m our primary lines of business. Investménthese businesses, among other
risks, subject us to the operating and financgkgiof the businesses we invest in and to themitkwe do not have sole control over the
operations of these businesses. From time to tiaanay make additional investments in or acquiheoentities that may subject us to
similar risks. Investments in entities over whigh do not have sole control, including joint veswiand strategic alliances, present
additional risks such as having differing objecsifem our partners or the entities in which wesisty or becoming involved in disputes,
or competing with those persons. In addition, alg on the internal controls and financial repagtaontrols of these entities and their
failure to maintain effectiveness or comply wittplgable standards may adversely affect us.

We use a single wholesaler of branded and generib@armaceutical drugs as our primary source of such ducts. A disruption in
this relationship could adversely affect our busings and financial results.

On March 19, 2013, the Company, Alliance Boots AntkrisourceBergen announced various agreementarasagements, including a
ten-year pharmaceutical distribution agreement betw/algreens and AmerisourceBergen pursuant tchwine will source branded
and generic pharmaceutical products from AmerisBecgen; an agreement which provides AmerisourggBethe ability to access
generics and related pharmaceutical products tirdViglgreens Boots Alliance Development GmbH, a glslourcing joint venture
between Walgreens and Alliance Boots; and agreenzamt arrangements pursuant to which we and Adi@uaots together have the
right, but not the obligation, to purchase a mityoeiquity position in AmerisourceBergen and gaisoagated representation on
AmerisourceBergen's board of directors in cert@icumstances. AmerisourceBergen began to distiblitoranded pharmaceutical
products that we historically sourced from disttdys and suppliers, effective September 1, 20b3hé second quarter of fiscal 2014,
AmerisourceBergen began distributing generic phasutical products that we previously self-distrdalit The levels of generic
pharmaceuticals distributed have increased throutghe fiscal year and AmerisourceBergen distridsigbstantially all of these
pharmaceuticals for the Company as of August 31420

Our business may be adversely affected by any tipead, financial or regulatory difficulties thaterisourceBergen experiences. If
AmerisourceBergen's operations are seriously discufor any reason, whether a natural disasteoy ldisruption, regulatory action or
otherwise, it could adversely affect our businass$ @ur sales and profitability. Our distributiogreaement with AmerisourceBergen is
subject to early termination in certain circums&s)@nd, upon the expiration or termination ofggeement, there can be no assurance
that we or AmerisourceBergen will be willing to esmthe agreement or enter into a new agreemerérors favorable to us or at all.
We believe that alternative sources of supply foshgeneric and brand-name pharmaceuticals arédyreadilable, except to the extent
that brand-name drugs are available to the marausively through the manufacturer. We believeowald obtain and qualify
alternative sources, including through resumingdistribution for many products, for substantiadily of the prescription drugs we sell
on an acceptable basis, and accordingly that tpadétof any disruption would be temporary. Howeteere can be no assurance we
would be able to engage alternative supply sowc@splement self-distribution processes on a tyntlsis or on terms favorable to us,
or effectively manage these transitions, any ofclltould adversely affect our business, finan@aldition and results of operations.

The anticipated strategic and financial benefits obur relationship with AmerisourceBergen may not berealized.

Walgreens entered into the arrangement with AmereaBergen and Alliance Boots with the expectatit the transactions
contemplated thereby would result in various besdificluding, among other things, procurement sastings and operating efficiencies,
innovation and sharing of best practices. Thegsses and initiatives needed to achieve theset@dteanefits are complex, costly and
time-consuming. Many of the anticipated synergied expenses that will be incurred, by their rgtare difficult to estimate
accurately at the present time. Achieving thecpaited benefits from the arrangement is subjeatriamber of significant challenges
and uncertainties, including, whether unique caaf®cultures of separate organizations will workatmratively in an efficient and
effective manner, the possibility of faulty assuimps underlying expectations regarding potentiakesgies, unforeseen expenses or
delays, and competitive factors in the marketpldoeaddition, we and Alliance Boots have the rjghit not the obligation, under the
transactions contemplated by the Framework Agreénmed as of March 18, 2013 by and among the Caoynpliance Boots and
AmerisourceBergen (the Framework Agreement) toshirethe equity of AmerisourceBergen. There camd assurance that we or
Alliance Boots will complete any specific levelsich potential equity investments in Amerisourcear or that if completed, that
such investments will ultimately be profitable.slfch investments are completed and the price afrfsmurceBergen common stock
subsequently declines substantially, we could é&pee a loss on or impairment of such investmehickvcould adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations. ¥éeld also encounter unforeseen costs, circumstamcissues existing or arising with
respect to the transactions and collaboration Mieipate resulting from the Framework Agreementariyl of these potential
circumstances are outside of our control and artiierh could result in increased costs, decreaseshue, decreased synergies and the
diversion of management time and attention. Ifareeunable to achieve our objectives within thécgrdted time frame, or at all, the
expected benefits may not be realized fully orllaba may take longer to realize than expectedgctvicould have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition andiitsf operations and the price of our commonistoc

Changes in economic conditions could adversely affeconsumer buying practices and reduce our revensgeand profitability.



Our performance has been, and may continue todversely impacted by negative changes in natioseglpnal or local economic
conditions and consumer confidence. The curremm@mic environment has had a material impact oswoer behavior that could
persist even as the economy recovers. Externtriathat affect consumer confidence and over whietexercise no influence include
unemployment rates, levels of personal disposalgienne, national, regional or local economic condsiand acts of war or terrorism.
Changes in economic conditions and consumer canfaleould adversely affect consumer preferenceshpaing power and spending
patterns. A decrease in overall consumer sperafirggresult of changes in economic conditions cadietrsely affect our front-end and
pharmacy sales and negatively impact our profitgbilAll these factors could impact our revenugserating results and financial
condition.

The industries in which we operate are highly compéive and further increases in competition could aversely affect us.

In our retail drugstore business, we face intesepetition from local, regional and national comipanincluding other drugstore
chains, independent drugstores, mail-order pretsoniproviders and various other retailers suchrasery stores, convenience stores,
mass merchants and dollar stores, many of whichggeessively expanding in markets we serve. dérother markets in which we
compete, including health and wellness servicesale@ operate in a highly competitive environmehs. competition increases in the
markets in which we operate, a significant incraaggeneral pricing pressures could occur, anddbigd require us to reevaluate our
pricing structures to remain competitive. Ourdeél to reduce prices could result in decreasechieyand negatively affect our
profitability.

If the merchandise and services that we offer fatib meet customer needs, our sales may be adversaffected.

Our success depends on our ability to offer a sopshopping experience, a quality assortment aflakle merchandise and superior
customer service. We must identify, obtain suppti& and offer to our customers, attractive, iratoae and high-quality merchandise
on a continuous basis. Our products and serviees satisfy the needs and desires of our custombisse preferences may change in
the future. It is difficult to predict consisteptind successfully the products and services astomers will demand. If we misjudge
either the demand for products and services wepsellir customers' purchasing habits and tastesyayebe faced with excess
inventories of some products and missed opporasftr products and services we chose not to offeaddition, our sales may decline
or we may be required to sell the merchandise we bhtained at lower prices. Failure to timelyntiy or effectively respond to
changing consumer tastes, preferences and spepalitegns could negatively affect our relationshihwur customers, the demand for
our products and services and our market share.

Our private brand offerings expose us to various aditional risks.

In addition to brand name products, we offer owstoemers private brand products that are not aJeifabm other retailers. We seek to
continue to grow our exclusive private brand offgs as part of our growth strategy, including tigfftpexpanded offering of Boots No7
and other brands owned or licensed on an exclisiges by Alliance Boots. Maintaining consistertdarct quality, competitive pricing,
and availability of our private brand offerings fmur customers is important in developing and naéiitig customer loyalty. We have
invested in our development and procurement regsuand marketing efforts relating to these pribagand offerings. Although we
believe that our private brand products offer vatueur customers at each price point and typigadtwide us with higher gross margins
than comparable national brand products we saleipansion of our private brand offerings alsgexib us to certain risks in addition
to those discussed elsewhere in this section, asichotential product liability risks and mandatoryoluntary product recalls; our
ability to successfully protect our proprietaryhig and successfully navigate and avoid claimseélt the proprietary rights of third
parties; our ability to successfully administer @odnply with applicable contractual obligations aadulatory requirements; and other
risks generally encountered by entities that squeelk and market exclusive branded offerings &aif. An increase in sales of our
private brands may also adversely affect salesiofendors' products, which, in turn, could advigraéfect our relationship with certain
of our vendors. Any failure to adequately addsgsse or all of these risks could have a significaiverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

If we do not successfully develop and maintain a kevant omni-channel experience for our customers,us business and results of
operations could be adversely impacted.

Omni-channel retailing is rapidly evolving and weshkeep pace with changing customer expectatiods\aw developments by our
competitors. Our customers are increasingly usorgputers, tablets, mobile phones, and other devicshop online. As part of our
omni-channel strategy, we are making technologgstments in our websites and applications for regiifiones and other electronic
devices. If we are unable to make, improve, oretgyrelevant customer-facing technology in a tinmelhnner, our ability to compete
and our results of operations could be adversébctegfd. In addition, if our online businesses ar ather customer-facing technology
systems do not function as designed, we may exprxia loss of customer confidence, data securégdires, lost sales, or be exposed to

fraudulent purchases, any of which could advera#ct our business, reputation and results of atjmers.

Our strategy is dependent, in part, upon the succeful implementation of various strategic initiatives.

While our overall business strategy consists ofyr@mponents and underlying initiatives, our loegat financial performance will be
impacted by our ability to execute certain keyiatives. In fiscal 2015, we plan to pursue stregeglesigned to create a "Well
Experience" and further transform our traditionalgbtore to a "retail health and daily living" stawhile delivering an outstanding
customer experience through enhanced employee emgen; transform the role of community pharmacpl&y a greater role in
healthcare through integration and expanded sexyvarel establish an efficient global platform emapus to expand across new
channels and markets. If we are unable to effelstiexecute one or more of these key initiatives,lusiness, financial condition a



results of operations may be materially adversébcted.

Our ability to grow our business may be constrainedy our inability to find suitable new store locatbns at acceptable prices or
by the expiration of our current leases.

Our ability to grow our business may be constraiifieditable new store locations cannot be idesdifivith lease terms or purchase
prices that are acceptable to us. We competeottittr retailers and businesses for suitable logatior our stores. Local land use and
other regulations applicable to the types of st@reslesire to construct may impact our abilityitwlfsuitable locations and influence the
cost of constructing our stores. The expiratiofeakes at existing store locations may advergédgtaus if the renewal terms of those
leases are unacceptable to us and we are foradolsi or relocate stores. Further, changing ldealographics at existing store
locations may adversely affect revenue and prdfitallevels at those stores.

A significant disruption in our computer systems cald adversely affect our operations.

We rely extensively on our computer systems to marar ordering, pricing, point-of-sale, pharmagffitfment, inventory
replenishment, customer loyalty program, finance atimer processes. Our systems are subject toggaaranterruption from power
outages, computer and telecommunications failw@®puter viruses, security breaches, vandalisnuraladisasters, catastrophic events
and human error, and our disaster recovery plantangot account for all eventualities. If any af aystems are damaged, fail to
function properly or otherwise become unavailaie,may incur substantial costs to repair or reptheen, and may experience loss or
corruption of critical data and interruptions ofades in our ability to perform critical functionahich could adversely affect our business
and results of operations. In addition, we ameently making, and expect to continue to makestuitial investments in our
information technology systems and infrastructameme of which are significant. Upgrades involvglaeing existing systems with
successor systems, making changes to existingnsysta cost-effectively acquiring new systems v functionality. Implementing
new systems carries significant potential risksluding failure to operate as designed, potentiss lor corruption of data or information,
cost overruns, implementation delays, disruptiongdrations, and the potential inability to meedibass and reporting requirements.
While we are aware of inherent risks associatel veplacing these systems and believe we are takampnable action to mitigate
known risks, there can be no assurance that teebadlogy initiatives will be deployed as plannedhat they will be timely
implemented without disruption to our operations.

If we do not maintain the privacy and security of gnsitive customer and business information, we calidamage our reputation,
incur substantial additional costs and become subg to litigation.

The protection of customer, employee, and compaty id critical to our business. A significantdarlke of customer, employee, or
company data could attract a substantial amounteafia attention, damage our customer relationsipsreputation and result in lost
sales, fines or lawsuits. Throughout our operatiore receive, retain and transmit certain persiofi@mation that our customers
provide to purchase products or services, enrg@ramotional programs, participate in our custotogalty program, register on our
websites, or otherwise communicate and interadt wst In addition, aspects of our operations dépgon the secure transmission of
confidential information over public networks. Adtugh we deploy a layered approach to addressiafiion security threats and
vulnerabilities designed to protect confidentidbimation against data security breaches, a comigeoaf our data security systems or
of those of businesses with whom we interact, whésults in confidential information being access#itained, damaged or used by
unauthorized or improper persons, could harm goutegion and expose us to regulatory actions aaithslfrom customers, financial
institutions, payment card associations and otkesqms, any of which could materially and adverséfgct our business, financial
position and results of operations. In additiosgaurity breach could require that we expend sultisi additional resources related to
the security of information systems and disruptlmuginess.

The regulatory environment surrounding informats@curity and privacy is increasingly demandinghwtfite frequent imposition of new
and changing requirements across business unitspl@nce with changes in privacy and informatioowséy laws and standards may
result in significant expense due to increasedstmaent in technology and the development of newaimmal processes. If we or those
with whom we share information fail to comply witlese laws and regulations or experience a dataisebreach, our reputation could
be damaged and we could be subject to additicingdtion and regulatory risks. Our security measunay be undermined due to the
actions of outside parties, employee error, madfees, or otherwise, and, as a result, an unau#ttbgarty may obtain access to our data
systems and misappropriate business and persdoghigtion. Because the techniques used to obtanthorized access, disable or
degrade service, or sabotage systems change ftégaed may not immediately produce signs of inbaswe may be unable to
anticipate these techniques or to implement adequatventative measures. Any such breach or uodrgid access could result in
significant legal and financial exposure, damageuoreputation, and potentially have an advergebn our business.

Our growth strategy is partially dependent upon acgisitions, joint ventures and other strategic invesnents, some of which may
not prove to be successful.

We have grown our business, in part, through ageprs in recent years and expect to continue tpuae or invest in drugstore chains,
independent drugstores, health and well-being legsis and other businesses in the future. Adguisiinvolve numerous risks,
including difficulties in integrating the operat®and personnel of the acquired companies, digiraof management from overseeing
our existing operations, difficulties in enteringrkets or lines of business in which we have nlinuted direct prior experience, the
possible loss of key employees and customers dfidudties in achieving the synergies we anticiphtd hese transactions may also
cause us to significantly increase our intereseasp, leverage and debt service requirements ifieue additional debt to pay for an
acquisition or investment, issue common stockwatld dilute our current shareholders' percentageenship, or incur asset write-offs
and restructuring costs and other related expenseguisitions, joint ventures and strategic inwastts involve numerous other risks,
including potential exposure to unknown liabilitiglsacquired or investee companies. In connedtiim acquisitions, joint ventures



strategic investments outside the United Statesneaefrom time to time, in some instances entar fateign currency contracts or other
derivative instruments to hedge some or all offtineign currency fluctuation risks, which subjeassto the risks associated with such
derivative contracts and instruments. No assuraanebe given that our acquisitions, joint ventumed other strategic investments will
be successful and will not materially adverselgetfiour business, financial condition or resultspdrations.

Changes in the health care regulatory environment my adversely affect our business.

Political, economic and regulatory influences argjacting the healthcare industry to significardrafpes that could adversely affect our
results of operations. In recent years, the healthmdustry has undergone significant changes iffart to reduce costs and
government spending. These changes include agased reliance on managed care; cuts in certaiickledand Medicaid funding;
consolidation of competitors, suppliers and otharkat participants; and the development of largphisticated purchasing groups. We
expect the healthcare industry to continue to chaignificantly in the future. Some of these pttdrthanges, such as a reduction in
governmental funding at the state or federal lémetertain healthcare services or adverse changdegislation or regulations governing
prescription drug pricing, healthcare services andated benefits, may cause customers to redu@artbent of our products and
services they purchase or the price they are giliinpay for our products and services. We expewctinued government and private
payer pressure to reduce pharmaceutical pricifgan@es in pharmaceutical manufacturers' pricindjsiribution policies could also
significantly reduce our profitability.

The ACA, enacted in 2010, is intended to expandtihé@@surance coverage to more than 30 million snied Americans through a
combination of insurance market reforms, an exmpemsf Medicaid, subsidies and health insurance mt@sd When fully implemented,
these provisions are expected to increase the nuafipeople in the United States who have insuraoserage for at least a portion of
prescription drug costs. While certain provisiofshe ACA took effect immediately, others haveayeld effective dates or require
further rulemaking action by governmental agentaeémplement, which is not yet complete. Futuremaking under the ACA or
otherwise could increase regulation of pharmacyises, result in changes to pharmacy reimbursena¢es$, and otherwise change the
way we do business. We cannot predict the timmignpact of any future rulemaking, but any suctenséking could have an adverse
impact on our results of operations.

We are subject to governmental regulations and prazdures and other legal requirements. A significanthange in, or
noncompliance with, these regulations, proceduresd requirements could have a material adverse effeon our profitability.

Our retail drugstore and health and wellness sesvitisinesses are subject to numerous federal astdtlocal regulations. Changes in
these regulations may require extensive systenoparhting changes that may be difficult to implemddntimely compliance or
noncompliance with applicable regulations couldilteis the imposition of civil and criminal penat that could adversely affect the
continued operation of our business, includingspgmsion of payments from government programs;dbssquired government
certifications; loss of authorizations to partidgn or exclusion from government reimbursemengpams, such as the Medicare and
Medicaid programs; loss of licenses; and signifi¢ares or monetary penaltiesThe regulations to which we are subject includé,dve
not limited to: federal, state and local registatand regulation of pharmacies; dispensing arelafatontrolled substances and products
containing pseudoephedrine; applicable MedicareMedicaid regulations; the Health Insurance Politstand Accountability Act
(HIPAA); the ACA; laws and regulations relatingttee protection of the environment and health arfietganatters, including those
governing exposure to, and the management andsdibpf) hazardous substances; regulations of tBe khod and Drug Administration
(FDA), the U.S. Federal Trade Commission, the CEafprcement Administration (DEA), and the Consutsyduct Safety
Commission, as well as state regulatory authorigeserning the availability, sale, advertisemerd aromotion of products we sell;
anti-kickback laws; data privacy and security lafatse claims laws; laws against the corporatetm@of medicine; and federal and
state laws governing the practice of the professigsharmacy. For example, the DEA, FDA and vasistate regulatory authorities
regulate the distribution of pharmaceuticals anatrmdled substances. We are required to hold k@ and state-level licenses, meet
various security and operating standards and comiphythe Controlled Substance Act and its accomgjpanregulations governing the
sale, marketing, packaging, holding and distributsd controlled substances. The DEA, FDA and stdeillatory authorities have broad
enforcement powers, including the ability to suspeuar distribution centers' licenses to distribpit@rmaceutical products (including
controlled substances), seize or recall produalsmpose significant criminal, civil and adminigtv@ sanctions for violations of these
laws and regulations. For example, in June 20&8Company entered into a settlement agreementhétbEA and the United States
Department of Justice relating to controlled sulstamatters that required the Company to pay $8bmand implement certain
remedial actions. We are also governed by fedardlistate laws of general applicability, includiags regulating matters of working
conditions, health and safety and equal employropportunity. In addition, we could have expostingg are found to have infringed
another party's intellectual property rights.

Should a product liability issue, recall or personhinjury issue arise it may damage our reputationwhich may result in a material
adverse effect on our business and financial con@in and adversely affect our ability to maintain acgquate product or other
liability insurance coverage. If we fail or are urable to maintain adequate product or other liability insurance coverage for any
reason, it may also result in a material adverse f&fct on our business and financial condition.

Products that we sell could become subject to cointztion, product tampering, mislabeling, recalbtiter damage. In addition, errors
in the dispensing and packaging of pharmaceutamalid lead to serious injury or death. Produdiility or personal injury claims may
be asserted against us with respect to any ofrthghupts or pharmaceuticals we sell or servicesnoeige. Our health and wellness
business also involves exposure to professionailitiaclaims related to medical care. Should adurct or other liability issue arise, the
coverage limits under our insurance programs aadnitlemnification amounts available to us may moalequate to protect us against
claims. We also may not be able to maintain thgsiiance on acceptable terms in the future. Darwager reputation in the event of a
product liability or personal injury issue or judgnt against us or a product recall could have @ifsignt adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operatio



We have significant outstanding debt; our debt willincrease if we incur additional debt in the futureand do not retire existing debt.

We have outstanding debt and other financial obtiga and significant unused borrowing capacitys oA August 31, 2014, we had
approximately $4.5 billion of outstanding indebteds, including short-term borrowings. Our debeleand related debt service obligations
could have negative consequences, including:

requiring us to dedicate significant cash floani operations to the payment of principal, inteegsl other amounts payable on our
debt, which would reduce the funds we have avail&il other purposes, such as working capital tabekpenditures, acquisitions,
share repurchases and divider

making it more difficult or expensive for usdbtain any necessary future financing for workiagital, capital expenditures, debt
service requirements, debt refinancing, acquisitionother purpose

reducing our flexibility in planning for or reactirto changes in our industry and market conditi
making us more vulnerable in the event of a downimrour business; ar

exposing us to interest rate risk given that aiporof our debt obligations is at variable inteneges.

We may incur or assume significantly more debhmfuture. See "Risk Factors - Additional RisksaRel to our Alliance Boots Investment
and the Second Step Transaction - We expect to gignificant additional debt in connection witlrcead step transaction” below. If we add
new debt and do not retire existing debt, the radgscribed above could increase.

Our long-term debt obligations include covenang thay adversely affect our ability to incur centaécured indebtedness or engage in
certain types of sale and leaseback transactitnaddition, our existing credit agreements reqtheeCompany to maintain as of the last day
of each fiscal quarter a ratio of consolidated deltotal capitalization not to exceed a certairele Our ability to comply with these
restrictions and covenants may be affected by ev@sgond our control. If we breach any of thes#rigions or covenants and do not obtain
a waiver from the lenders, then, subject to appleaure periods, our outstanding indebtednesgidmeideclared immediately due and
payable.

Our credit ratings are important to our business.

The major credit rating agencies have assigneadi®ar corporate debt investment grade creditgatinrhese ratings are based on a
number of factors, which include their assessméntpfinancial strength and financial policies.e\&im to maintain investment grade
ratings as they serve to lower our borrowing cast facilitate our access to a variety of lendes@her creditors, including landlords
for our leased stores, on terms that we consideradgeous to our business. However, there cao lxssurance that any particular
rating assigned to us will remain in effect for agiyen period of time or that a rating will not bleanged or withdrawn by a rating
agency, if in that rating agency's judgment, futtireumstances relating to the basis of the raémgvarrant. Incurrence of additional
debt by Alliance Boots or us could adversely affeat credit ratings. Any downgrade of our crediirrgs could adversely affect our
cost of funds, liquidity, competitive position aadcess to capital markets.

Our quarterly results and Alliance Boots operatingresults may fluctuate significantly.

Our operating results have historically varied ajuarterly basis and may continue to fluctuateifiantly in the future. Factors that
may affect our quarterly operating results inclualgt, are not limited to, seasonality, the timingtaf introduction of new generic and
brand name prescription drugs, inflation includivith respect to generic drug procurement coststithiag and severity of the cough,
cold and flu season, changes in payer reimburserate® and terms, significant acquisitions, disjgmss, joint ventures and other
strategic initiatives, asset impairments, the natatnagnitude of our LIFO provision in any parti@utjuarter, variations in the earnings
contribution from equity method investments suchbisnce Boots, fluctuations in the value of ouamants to acquire
AmerisourceBergen common stock, prolonged seveethge in key markets, and the other risk factosswlised under this ltem 1A.
Accordingly, we believe that quarter-to-quarter pamisons of our operating results are not necdgsadaningful and investors should
not rely on the results of any particular quarteaa indication of our future performance.

In addition, Alliance Boots operating results hawstorically varied on a quarterly basis and magticwe to fluctuate significantly in the
future. Alliance Boots faces risks similar to taage face and additional risks particular to itsibasses, operations and markets,
including: macro-economic and political risks; rigary risks including, with respect to its Hea&tBeauty Division, the potential
adverse effects of changes to licensing regimepHarmacies, prescription processing regimes otbeisement arrangements and, with
respect to its Pharmaceutical Wholesale Divisiba,gotential adverse effects of regulations rejgtinsuch things as product margins,
product traceability and the conditions under wipobducts must be stored; changes and trends suawer behavior and spending;
competitive risks resulting from intense competitfoom a wide variety of competitors including, witespect to its Health & Beauty
Division, other pharmacies, supermarkets and detegnt stores and, with respect to its Pharmaceutitedlesale Division, from direct
competitors and alternative supply sources sudémpsrters and manufacturers who supply directlpliarmacies; health, safety and
environmental risks; product/services risks, inglgdisks associated with defective products, tlwvigion of inadequate services, the
potential infiltration of counterfeit products intiee supply chain, errors in re-labeling of produand contamination or product
mishandling issues; risk of major operational bes#failures such as a major failure of its distidn centers and logistics
infrastructure, information technology systemsha vperational systems of key third party suppliansl risks relating to increased
costs, not achieving, or delays in achieving, etgutsynergies, changes in management, acquisitangncy exchange, funding and
interest rates, pension contributions includingpgbtential need to increase the funding of itsrdedibenefit pension plans due to loy



than expected pension fund investment returns aimtfceased life expectancy of plan members, anteption of confidential personal
and business data.

The equity income we report from Alliance Boots isubject to conversion from IFRS to U.S. GAAP and auiency translation and
is reported on a three-month lag basis, which impas the quarterly and fiscal year timing of when Allance Boots results and
synergies are reflected in our financial statements

Net income reported by Alliance Boots must be co@gefrom the applicable IFRS standards to genesaitepted accounting principl
in the United States (U.S. GAAP) and translatedhfBritish pounds Sterling at the average ratetiergeriod, which subjects us to
exchange rate fluctuations and other currency ris¥e account for our 45% interest in Alliance Bouosing the equity method of
accounting on a three-month lag basis, which ingta quarterly and fiscal year timing of when &dice Boots results and synergies
are reflected in the equity income from AlliancedBoincluded in our financial statements. AlliafBmots quarterly results are not
reflected in the equity income reported in our adidated financial statements until our quarteyipd ending three months after the
end of the related Alliance Boots three-month pkrio

Our business is seasonal in nature, and adverse et during the holiday and cough, cold and flu seass could impact our
operating results negatively.

Our business is seasonal in nature, with the sefiecal quarter (December, January and Februapi¢ajly generating a higher
proportion of front-end sales and earnings thaerdiiscal quarters. We purchase significant am®ofseasonal inventory in
anticipation of the holiday season. Adverse eventsh as deteriorating economic conditions, higilemployment, higher gas prices,
public transportation disruptions, or unanticipaéeiderse weather could result in lower-than-plarsseds during key selling seasons.
For example, frequent or unusually heavy snowiedl storms, rainstorms, windstorms or other extrereather conditions over a
prolonged period could make it difficult for ourstamers to travel to our stores and increase aw samoval and other costs. This
could lead to lower sales or to unanticipated mewkts, negatively impacting our financial condit@md results of operations. In
addition, both prescription and non-prescriptiongisales are affected by the timing and severith@ftough, cold and flu season which
can vary considerably from year to year. In additihe Alliance Boots business is seasonal inreatypically generating a higher
proportion of revenue and earnings in the wintdidag and cold and flu season. Because of theethrenth lag in reporting equity
income from our investment in Alliance Boots, tesults of Alliance Boots for December, January Bebruary are reflected in the
equity income included in our financial stateméntsour third fiscal quarter ending May 31.

Changes in accounting standards and subjective agsptions, estimates and judgments by management retd to complex
accounting matters could significantly affect our inancial condition and results of operations.

Generally accepted accounting principles and rélateounting pronouncements, implementation guidsland interpretations with
regard to a wide range of matters that are releiaatir business, including, but not limited tosegBue recognition, sales returns
reserves, asset impairment, impairment of goodwidl other intangible assets, inventories, vendmatess and other vendor
consideration, lease obligations, self-insuraraigilities, tax matters, unclaimed property laws biigiation and other contingent
liabilities are highly complex and involve many gdiive assumptions, estimates and judgments. @dsain these rules or their
interpretation or changes in underlying assumptiesmates or judgments could significantly chaogereported or expected financial
performance or financial condition. For examplemges in accounting standards and the applicafieristing accounting standards
particularly related to the measurement of faiueahs compared to carrying value for the Compaeypsrting units, including goodwiill,
intangible assets and investments in equity inter@cluding investments held by our equity methogkstees, may have an adverse
effect on the Company's financial condition andiltssof operations. Factors that could lead todimpent of goodwill and intangible
assets include significant adverse changes inubméss climate and declines in the financial dimdiof a reporting unit. Factors that
could lead to impairment of investments in equitterests of the companies in which we investeth®iiivestments held by those
companies include a prolonged period of declinaé@ir operating performance or adverse changdsietonomic, regulatory and legal
environments of the countries they operate in. Mewounting guidance also may require systems #rad ohanges that could increase
our operating costs and/or change our financiééstants. For example, implementing future accognguidance related to leases,
revenue and other areas impacted by the currenecgence project between the Financial Accountitag&@ards Board (FASB) and the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)Idaequire us to make significant changes to oaséemanagement system or other
accounting systems, and could result in changesitéinancial statements.

We are involved in a number of legal proceedings ahaudits and, while we cannot predict the outcomesf such proceedings and
other contingencies with certainty, some of thesautcomes could adversely affect our business, finaiat condition and results of
operations.

We are involved in legal proceedings and subjeatvestigations, inspections, audits, inquiries aimiilar actions by governmental
authorities, arising in the course of our busir{ssg the discussion of Legal Proceedings in Not i2e Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Part Il, Item 8 of this FAi®AK). Legal proceedings, in general, and seiesrdnd class action litigation, in
particular, can be expensive and disruptive. Sofitbese suits may purport or may be determindzktolass actions and/or involve
parties seeking large and/or indeterminate amoimtkiding punitive or exemplary damages, and nesmain unresolved for several
years. From time to time, the Company is alsolwea in legal proceedings as a plaintiff involviagtitrust, tax, contract, intellectu
property and other matters. We cannot predict wéttiainty the outcomes of these legal proceedingsother contingencies, and the
costs incurred in litigation can be substantiajarelless of the outcome. Substantial unanticipagedicts, fines and rulings do
sometimes occur. As a result, we could from tim#érhe incur judgments, enter into settlementsesise our expectations regarding the
outcome of certain matters, and such developmenitisl have a material adverse effect on our resfiltgperations in the period in
which the amounts are accrued and/or our cash flewse period in which the amounts are paid. dhieome of some of these le



proceedings and other contingencies could requite take, or refrain from taking, actions whichulcbnegatively affect our operations.
Additionally, defending against these lawsuits prateedings may involve significant expense andrgion of management's attention
and resources.

We could be subject to adverse changes in tax lawsgulations and interpretations or challenges to ur tax positions.

We compute our income tax provision based on eddeterates in the jurisdictions in which we operafs the tax rates vary among
jurisdictions, a change in earnings attributabléhtovarious jurisdictions in which we operate dowdsult in an unfavorable change

our overall tax provision. From time to time, Iglgtive initiatives are proposed that could advgraffect our tax positions, effective tax
rate, tax payments or financial condition. In @iddi, tax laws are complex and subject to varyimgripretations. Any change in enacted
tax laws, rules or regulatory or judicial inter@bns, any adverse outcome in connection withatedits in any jurisdiction or any
change in the pronouncements relating to accouffinipcome taxes could adversely affect our effectax rate, tax payments and
results of operations.

Our insurance program may expose us to unexpectedsts and negatively affect our financial performane.

We use a combination of insurance and self-inswamprovide for potential liability for workersbmpensation, automobile and general
liability, property, director and officers' lialyi, and employee health care benefits. Provisionbsses related to self-insured risks
generally are based upon actuarially determinacthasts. Any actuarial projection of losses is sabjo a high degree of variability.
Changes in legal claims, trends and interpretatieagability in inflation rates, changes in theur@ and method of claims settlement,
benefit level changes due to changes in applidalle, insolvency of insurance carriers, and chaimgdgscount rates could all

adversely affect our financial condition, result®perations and cash flows.

There are a number of additional business risks thacould adversely affect our financial results.

Many other factors could adversely affect our ficiahresults, including:

If we are unsuccessful in establishing effectigeertising, marketing and promotional programs,sales or sales margins could be
negatively affectec

Our success depends on our continued abiligttact and retain store and management and profespersonnel, and the loss of
key personnel could have an adverse effect onethdts of our operations, financial condition osltdlow.

Natural disasters, severe weather conditions, ristractivities, global political and economic de@ments, war, health epidemi
or pandemics or the prospect of these events cpadnour store operations or damage our facilitiedfected areas or have an
adverse impact on consumer confidence levels asadspg in our store:

The long-term effects of climate change on gareronomic conditions and the pharmacy industryairticular are unclear, and
changes in the supply, demand or available sowfcesergy and the regulatory and other costs as®ativith energy production
and delivery may affect the availability or costgmiods and services, including natural resouraasgssary to run our busine

The products we sell are sourced from a widetyaof domestic and international vendors, and faityre inability to find qualified
vendors and access products in a timely and efticreanner could adversely impact our busin

Additional Risks Related to our Alliance Boots Invstment and the Second Step Transaction

The following risks relate to our existing investrni& Alliance Boots and/or the pending second $tapsaction, regardless of whether or |
the Reorganization is completed.

The anticipated strategic and financial benefits obur transaction with Alliance Boots may not be relized.

Walgreens and Alliance Boots entered into the Fagetand Option Agreement, and Walgreens exerdigechdl option pursuant to the
Purchase and Option Agreement, with the expectaiianthe transactions contemplated thereby wasddlt in various benefits, including,
among other things, procurement cost savings aathtipg efficiencies, revenue synergies, innovatibraring of best practices and a
strengthened market position that may serve aatboph for future growth. The processes and itiites needed to achieve these potential
benefits are complex, costly and time consumind,vae have not previously completed a transactionparable in size or scope. Many of
the expenses that will be incurred, by their natare difficult to estimate accurately at the presne. Achieving the expected benefits of
the Alliance Boots transaction, including the setetep transaction, is subject to a number of aggmt challenges and uncertainties,
including, without limitation, whether unique corate cultures will work collaboratively in an efiénit and effective manner, the coordina
of geographically separate organizations, the poigiof faulty assumptions underlying expectasaegarding potential synergies and the
integration process, unforeseen expenses or delagis;ompetitive factors in the marketplace. Widatalso encounter unforeseen
transaction and integration-related costs or otireumstances such as unforeseen liabilities cgrddsues existing or arising with respect to
the business of Alliance Boots or otherwise resglfrom the transaction. Many of these poteniii@luenstances are outside of our control
and any of them could result in increased costsedsed revenue, decreased synergies and theidlivefsnanagement time and attention
we are unable to achieve our objectives withinahticipated time frame, or at all, the expectedefimmay not be realized fully or at all, or
may take longer to realize than expected, whichdcbave a material adverse impact on our busitigss)cial condition and results of
operations and the price of our common stock.

Our August 2012 investment in Alliance Boots signi¢antly increased, and the proposed second step trsaction would significantly
further increase, our exposure to the risks of opexting internationally.



Prior to the first step transaction, substantiallyof our operations were conducted within thetgdiiStates and its territories. The first step

transaction significantly increased the importaotmternational business to our future operatigmewth and prospects. The completion of
the second step transaction will be a materiah&rrstep in this direction. A substantial portairAlliance Boots revenues are generated in

the European Union and neighboring countries abdtantially all of Alliance Boots revenues are gated outside the United States. Our

investment in international business operatiorssigect to a number of risks, including:

compliance with a wide variety of foreign lawslaegulations, including retail and wholesale piey, licensing, tax, foreign
trade, intellectual property, privacy and data @ctibn, currency, political and other businessriggins and requirements and local
laws and regulations, whose interpretation andreefoent vary significantly among jurisdictions arah change significantly over
time;

additional U.S. and other regulation of non-dsticeoperations, including regulation under thedigm Corrupt Practices Act, the
U.K. Bribery Act and other ar-corruption laws

potential difficulties in managing foreign operats) enforcing agreements and collecting receivahlesigh foreign legal systen
price controls imposed by foreign countri

tariffs, duties or other restrictions on foreignremcies or trade barriers imposed by foreign adesti

potential adverse tax consequences, including tdbhelding laws and policies and restrictions opateiation of funds to the Unit
States

fluctuations in currency exchange rates, includingertainty regarding the Eut

impact of recessions and economic slowdownsan@mies outside the United States, including épr&urrency devaluation,
higher interest rates, inflation, and increasedegoment regulation or ownership of traditional pta/businesse

the instability of foreign economies, governmemntd aurrencies and unexpected regulatory, econonpoldical changes in foreic
markets; an

developing and emerging markets may be espgemaiherable to periods of instability and unexjeecthanges, and consumers in
those markets may have relatively limited resoutoespend on products and servic

We cannot assure you that one or more of theserfawiill not have a material adverse effect onlmusiness, results of operation or financial
condition.

Our Company will be more exposed to currency exchaye rate fluctuations as, following completion of th second step transaction,
there will be an increased proportion of assets,dbilities and earnings denominated in foreign curracies.

Prior to the first step transaction, substantiallyof our operations were conducted within thetddiiStates and its territories. The first step
transaction significantly increased the potentigbact of currency exchange rate fluctuations orbasiness. If the second step transaction is
completed, the financial results of the combineahpany will be more exposed to currency exchangeftattuations and an increased
proportion of assets, liabilities and earnings Ww#dldenominated in non-U.S. dollar currencies.

We will continue to present our financial statensentU.S. dollars and will have a significant pragm of net assets and income in non-U.S.
dollar currencies, primarily pounds sterling ane #uro, as well as a range of emerging marketwecigs. Our financial results and capital
ratios will therefore be sensitive to movementfoirign exchange rates. A depreciation of non-ddlar currencies relative to the U.S.
dollar could have an adverse impact on our findmegults.

The second step transaction is subject to conditisnincluding certain conditions that may not be sésfied, and may not be completed
on a timely basis, or at all. Failure to completette second step transaction could have material arativerse effects on the Company.

The completion of the second step transactionbgestito a number of conditions, including apprdwathe shareholders of Walgreens of the
issuance of shares to the Sellers as considefatidhe second step transaction, which makes thegtation and timing of the completion of
the second step transaction uncertain.

If the second step transaction is not completed timely basis, or at all, our ongoing businessag be adversely affected and, without
realizing any of the benefits of having completee $econd step transaction, we will be subjectrtoraber of risks, including the following:

Subject to limited exceptions, if the closing of hecond step transaction does not oc

o the Company will be required to return to théeBe 1/15th of the Alliance Boots shares acqubigdhe Company in
the first step transaction, which equals 3% ofisbaeed and outstanding share capital of Alliancet8dn exchange fi
nominal consideration of one British pound steri

o the Company will continue to own a significarihority interest in Alliance Boots, but certaintbe Company's
governance rights as a shareholder of Alliance 8waalt be modified;

o] in general, the Company will not be permittededl or otherwise transfer any of its Alliance Boehares for a period
of 24 months

o] in the event that one of the Sellers, AB Acdigias Holdings Limited (AB Acquisitions), decidessell or otherwise
transfer its Alliance Boots shares to a third paftg Acquisitions will have the right to requiregtlCompany to



transfer all its Alliance Boots shares in the sarapsaction on the same terms; and in the evehABa\cquisitions
decides to sell some or all of its Alliance Bodtares in an initial public offering, AB Acquisitierwill have the right
to require the Company to participate proportignbil selling some or all of its Alliance Boots sbsy

o Alliance Boots will have the right to either @quire 50% of the AmerisourceBergen shares thiatlyj owned by the
Company and Alliance Boots through a joint venteméty, in exchange for 50% of the funding previgysovided by
the Company to the joint venture entity to acqéineerisourceBergen shares (plus interest) (a 50isbtltion) or (b)
settle with the Company in cash to replicate theesaconomic impact as a 50/50 dissolution, but thighCompany
retaining 100% of the AmerisourceBergen shares;

o if the Company subsequently becomes entitled tdate a second director nominee on the Ameris@exgen boar
of directors pursuant to the AmerisourceBergeneati@ders agreement to which both the Company ahanék Boot:
are parties, the second director nominee woulchb&lléance Boots executive, designated by the Camgpa
consultation with and at the direction of AllianBeots.

The Company and Alliance Boots currently engagearious commercial transactions and arrangenierdsnnection with
initiatives intended to help realize potential sgies across both companies, including through Véalgs Boots Alliance
Development GmbH, a global sourcing joint ventliréhe second step transaction does not occuisttites and prospects of, and
future willingness of either the Company and/origkice Boots to continue to engage in, these tréinsacand arrangements,
including Walgreens Boots Alliance Development Gmiduld be uncertair

The market price of Walgreens common stock cdatdine to the extent that the current marketepréglects a market assumption
that the second step transaction will be comple

Uncertainty regarding the completion of the secsteg transaction may foster uncertainty among eyagl® about their future rols
which could adversely affect the ability of the Quany to attract and retain key person

The Company may be unable to capture the aatampsynergies associated with the second stegaron and the Reorganization,
including expected increases in earnings and eastgs.

The Company may waive one or more of the condition® the second step transaction.

Each of the conditions to the Company's obligattonsomplete the second step transaction may besdain whole or in part, by the
Company, to the extent permitted by applicable l@wur Board of Directors will evaluate the matdtjabf any waiver to determine whether
amendment of the proxy statement/prospectus filambnnection with the Transactions and resolicitatf proxies is necessary. If our Board
of Directors determines that a waiver is not sigaifit enough to require resolicitation of its slheders' proxies, it will have the discretion to
complete the second step transaction without sgdlitther shareholder approval. Because certaiditions will not be satisfied prior to the
date of the Walgreen's Special Meeting of Sharedsldt which the shareholders will vote to apprtheeTransactions (the Special Meeting),
there is a risk that our Board of Directors mayweaa condition without shareholder approval.

Certain of the Company's directors and executive diters may have interests in the Transactions thaire different from, or in addition
to, the interests of the Company's shareholders gerally.

Certain of the Company's directors and executifieads may have material financial interests in Thansactions that are different from, or in
addition to, the interests of the Company's shddeis generally.

Moreover, by virtue of their share ownership in @@mpany (which share ownership will increase ugm@encompletion of the second step
transaction), the Sellers, which include KKR & Cd?. (KKR) and certain of its affiliates (the KKRuestors) and Stefano Pessina and ce
of his affiliates (the SP Investors), may havegheser to influence our affairs and the outcome afters required to be submitted to
shareholders for approval. The SP Investors artdéoKKR Investors may have interests that diffenf those of holders of our common
stock generally, which could give rise to confliofanterest, including:

conflicts between the SP Investors and/or th&®HKivestors and other shareholders, whose intemesgsdiffer with respect to our
strategic direction or significant corporate trarigms; anc

conflicts related to corporate opportunities ttuld be pursued by us, on the one hand, or ®B# Investors and/or the KKR
Investors, on the other hand, notwithstanding thaiSP Investors are subject to certain non-compstdctions under the
shareholders agreement we entered into with thieng#tors and the KKR Investors on August 2, 2G2amended, the Company
Shareholders Agreemen

Whether or not the second step transaction is comgled, the announcement and prospect of the succadsfompletion of the second
step transaction could cause disruptions in the birsesses of the Company and/or Alliance Boots, whiaould have material adverse
effects on our business and financial results.

Whether or not the second step transaction is csteqhl the announcement and prospect of the suatessipletion of the second step
transaction could cause disruptions in the buseseesthe Company and/or Alliance Boots. For eXamgpme current and prospective
employees may experience uncertainty about theirduoles within the combined company, which mdyeasely affect the Company's and
Alliance Boots' abilities to retain or recruit keyanagers and other employees. If the Company #imhée Boots fail to manage these risks
effectively, our business and financial resultslddae materially adversely affected.

If there are significant, unforeseen difficulties n integrating the business operations of Alliance @&ots, they could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of oper&ins, and the price of our common stock.



If the second step transaction is completed, wenihtto the extent possible, to further integrgedperations of Alliance Boots. Our goal in
integrating these operations is to increase revethwreugh enhanced growth opportunities and actiestesavings by taking advantage of the
anticipated synergies of consolidation.

However, we may encounter difficulties further mviating Alliance Boots' operations with ours, réieigl in a delay or the failure to achieve
the anticipated synergies, including expected emes in earnings and cost savings. If such diffgsuare significant, they could have a
material adverse impact on our business, finamciadition and results of operations and the prfaguo common stock.

We may incur higher than expected integration, traisaction and acquisition-related costs.

We expect to incur a significant amount of non-reiag costs associated with the Transactions, diolylegal, accounting, financial and tax
advisory and other transaction fees and costs. eSdrthese costs are payable regardless of whigthesecond step transaction and/or the
Reorganization are completed and such costs mayaberial and/or higher than expected.

The second step transaction will increase our expere to certain joint ventures and investments of Alance Boots over which we
would not have sole control. Some of these compasimay operate in sectors that differ from our or Aliance Boots' current operations
and have different risks.

The completion of the second step transactionimgliease our and our shareholders' effective isténecertain joint ventures and other
investments of Alliance Boots over which Allianced®s does not exercise control. Investments isgheisinesses, among other risks,
subject us to the operating and financial riskthefe businesses and to the risk that we do netsale control over the operations of these
businesses. Investments in entities over whiclfimetuding through Alliance Boots) do not have sodmtrol, including joint ventures and
strategic alliances, present additional risks sasgchaving differing objectives from our partnerdher entities in which we or Alliance Boots
are invested, or becoming involved in disputeg;ampeting with those persons. In addition, we galythe internal controls and financial
reporting controls of these entities and theimnfi@lto maintain effectiveness or comply with apgiile standards may adversely affect us. In
addition, Alliance Boots owns a 49% interest inid@lce Healthcare Italia S.p.a., a pharmaceuticalegaling, distribution and retail
pharmacy business operating primarily in Italy, owlich AB Acquisitions is, and, following the coiefion of the second step transaction,
will remain, the controlling 51% shareholder.

The second step transaction, if consummated, woutdduce the percentage ownership interests of our o@nt shareholders and the
principal shareholders of AB Acquisitions may havesignificant voting influence over matters requiringshareholder approval.

Upon completion of the second step transactiorstiexj Walgreens shareholders will own a smallecgetage of Walgreens Boots Alliance
(or Walgreens) common stock than they currently .oWwnaddition, while, as of the date of this redpare have no present intention or plan
do so, it is also possible that we will decidestsuie common stock, or securities convertible intarmon stock, in a public or private offering
to finance the second step transaction.

In connection with the closing of the first steartsaction on August 2, 2012, we issued approxim&&HK million shares of our common
stock to Alliance Boots shareholders and enteradtie Company Shareholders Agreement. Thesestepeesented approximately 8.8% of
our outstanding shares as of August 31, 2014 (xppedely 7.6% of the pro forma total outstandingras of Walgreens Boots Alliance,
assuming completion of the Transactions as ofdh#t and giving effect to the share issuance irséitend step transaction), the substantial
majority of which are held by the SP Investors fappnately 7.7% of our outstanding shares as ofusti@1, 2014 or approximately 6.7% of
the pro forma total outstanding shares of Walgr&ats Alliance, assuming completion of the Tramisas as of that date and giving effect
to the share issuance in the second step transpacticthe second step transaction is completedywill acquire the remaining 55% interest in
Alliance Boots for £3.133 billion (equivalent tompximately $5.2 billion based on exchange ratesf @sugust 31, 2014) in cash, payable in
British pounds sterling, and 144.3 million sharé$algreens common stock, subject to certain pakatijustments, representing
approximately 13.2% of the estimated pro formal tot&standing shares of Walgreens Boots Alliancefasugust 31, 2014, assuming
completion of the Transactions as of that dategividg effect to the share issuance in the secteyltsansaction. It is expected that,
following the closing of the second step transati®B Acquisitions would distribute the cash andr&s received by it in connection with the
transaction to the SP Investors, the KKR Invesamic the other investors in AB Acquisitions (Othavdstors), subject to the timing
considerations noted below. Accordingly, while fimal allocation between cash and shares to beivied by each of the SP Investors, the
KKR Investors and the Other Investors has not genldetermined, the beneficial ownership of each@fP Investors, KKR Investors and
the Other Investors is expected to significantlyré@ase following completion of the second stepsiation. AB Acquisitions may not
distribute any of the shares of Walgreens Boot@Adle (or Walgreens, as applicable) common stoelliteceive on completion of the
second step transaction to its investors untidige that is nine months after the completion efdcond step transaction and, unless the SP
Investors and the KKR Investors have elected tapaiin guarantees in place, may not distributeertitan 10% of such shares until the date
that is twelve months after the completion of thead step transaction.

For so long as the SP Investors and the KKR Investontinue to meet certain beneficial ownershipgholds and subject to certain other
conditions, the SP Investors and the KKR Invest@spectively, will each be entitled to designate aominee to our Board of Directors for
inclusion in the Company's slate of directors @mRelnvestor Designee and the KKR Investor Desigrespectively). Mr. Pessina currently
serves as the SP Investor Designee and Mr. Doriviniphy currently serves as the KKR Investor Des@gnender the Company
Shareholders Agreement, the SP Investors and the Kiestors have agreed to, for so long as then8&stors have the right to designate
SP Investor Designee (or Mr. Pessina continuesricesas Executive Chairperson or Chief Executiviec®f of Alliance Boots) and for so
long as the KKR Investors have the right to dedigittae KKR Investor Designee, respectively, voteftheir shares of common stock in
accordance with our Board of Directors' recommendain matters submitted to a vote of the Compasheseholders (including with respi
to the election of directors). Whether or not sgbjo these voting provisions, the SP Investord/@ the KKR Investors' significant intere



in our common stock could be determinative in matseibmitted to a vote by our shareholders.

The influence of the SP Investors and/or the KKiRebtors could result in Walgreens Boots Alliancealgreens, as applicable) taking
actions that some other shareholders do not suppfatling to take actions that some other shaddrs support.

Shares issued to significant Alliance Boots shareluters will become available for future sale aftertie lapse of contractual transfer
restrictions.

We issued approximately 83.4 million shares of@ammon stock to Alliance Boots shareholders in eation with the first step transaction
and, if the second step transaction is completedyil issue an additional 144.3 million sharexommon stock, subject to certain potential
adjustments, as partial consideration in that &atisn. It is expected that, following the closioigthe second step transaction, AB
Acquisitions would distribute the cash and shaeegived by it in connection with the transactiotht® SP Investors, the KKR Investors and
the Other Investors, subject to the timing consitiens described in the preceding risk factor.sRant to the Company Shareholders
Agreement, certain significant Alliance Boots slmeers, including the SP Investors and the KKReBtars, are subject to various
contractual restrictions that generally prohibérthfrom transferring their shares for specifiedetiperiods. With respect to the shares issued
in the first step transaction in August 2012, ambject to certain permitted exceptions, (i) thel®Festors cannot transfer their shares unti
first to occur of the closing of the second stemsaction or Mr. Pessina's earlier death or perntatigability, and (ii) the KKR Investors
cannot transfer their shares until the closindhefsecond step transaction. If the second stapaction is completed, with respect to the
Walgreens Boots Alliance (or Walgreens, as appl@athares issued in the second step transactigklliance Boots holders receiving such
shares (including the SP Investors and the KKRdtors) will be subject to certain restrictions camsfer under the Company Shareholders
Agreement until the date nine months after theitpsf the second step transaction. We also gdapigrsuant to the Company Shareholders
Agreement, certain Alliance Boots shareholderdutting the SP Investors and the KKR Investors ritjlet to cause us, in certain instance
our expense, to file registration statements utfteSecurities Act of 1933, as amended (the Séssict), covering resales of our common
stock held by them or to "piggyback” on a regisbrastatement in certain circumstances. Theseesteso may be sold pursuant to Rule 144
under the Securities Act, depending on their hgjgieriod and subject to restrictions in the casghafes held by persons deemed to be our
affiliates. The sale, or possibility of the saléa substantial number of shares of our commaorkstdo the market could cause the market
price of our common stock to decline.

The amount and mix of consideration required to beaid by us to the Sellers in connection with the send step transaction is subject
to adjustment in certain circumstances.

If the second step transaction is completed, wkagduire the remaining 55% interest in AllianceoBofor £3.133 billion (equivalent to
approximately $5.2 billion based on exchange rasesf August 31, 2014) in cash, payable in Brifishinds sterling, and 144.3 million shares
of Walgreens common stock, subject to the volumigied average price of Walgreens common stockeinty below $31.18 per share
during a period shortly before the closing of theand step transaction. However, if the volumegiveid average price per share is below
that level, the difference in value would be mapéoy a cash payment or the issuance of additidreaks of common stock at the Company's
election. In addition, in certain circumstanceofeing a change of control of the Company (asmdi in the Purchase and Option
Agreement) prior to the closing of the second stapsaction, AB Acquisitions has the right to cause¢o pay 100% of the second step
transaction consideration in cash. These provistmuld potentially make the second step transasigmnificantly more costly or inadvisable
by increasing the amount of cash and/or stock denation we are required to pay. If the amourdash we pay increases, the amount of
indebtedness we incur also may increase, and #ith@unt of stock we are required to deliver incesathe percentage ownership interests of
our existing shareholders would further decrease.

We expect to incur significant additional debt in onnection with the second step transaction.

As of March 31, 2014, Alliance Boots had approxieha£5.7 billion (equivalent to approximately $®#lion based on exchange rates as of
March 31, 2014) of outstanding indebtedness, inofyidhort-term borrowings. In connection with tesummation of the second step
transaction, we are likely to incur significant &@dohal debt in connection with the financing thefrand the assumption and/or refinancing of
all or substantially all of the Alliance Boots deben outstanding. As described above under thdihg "We have significant outstanding
debt; our debt will increase if we incur additiodabt in the future and do not retire existing delve have outstanding debt and other
financial obligations and significant unused boriroyvcapacity that subjects us to certain riskstaedncurrence of additional debt in
connection with the consummation of the second tstasaction would cause these risks to increfige.currently expect to finance the cash
consideration and/or the refinancing of all or sab8ally all of the indebtedness of Alliance Boatsd its subsidiaries in connection with the
second step transaction with a combination of¢kadance of new debt and available cash. Our aladigto complete the second step
transaction is not subject to the receipt of finagc If we are unable to find financing sourcesagoeptable terms, or at all, we may
experience a material adverse effect on our busjmesults of operation and financial condition.

The amount of goodwill and other intangible assetwe have recorded as a result of acquisitions is egpted to substantially increase
upon completion of the Transactions. In the futue, our goodwill or other intangible assets may beoee impaired, which could result
in material non-cash charges to our results of opations.

As of August 31, 2014, we had $3.5 billion of goditland other intangible assets. The underlyingassets of the Company's equity method
investment in Alliance Boots include goodwill amdiéfinite-lived intangible assets. The Companlzets a three-month lag in reporting its
share of equity income in Alliance Boots. As ofigta31, 2014, its most recent fiscal year end afiltie Boots had £9.9 billion (equivalent to
approximately $16.5 billion based on exchange rasesf March 31, 2014) of goodwill and other intdafgyassets on its Group statement of
financial position ( prepared in accordance witR$j, which represented approximately 57% of italtassets. Walgreens Boots Alliance
will account for the Transactions, if completedngsthe purchase method of accounting in accordaitteU.S. GAAP, with the purchase
price paid allocated to recognize the acquiredtass® liabilities at their fair value and Walgredaging treated as the accounting acqui



While the fair values and associated purchase piioeation will be determined following completiofithe Transactions, we anticipate that
our goodwill and other intangible assets will irese substantially following completion of the Tractions.

At least annually, or whenever events or changesréumstances indicate a potential impairmenhadarrying value as defined by generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Stateswill evaluate this goodwill and other intangilassets for impairment by first assessing
gualitative factors to determine whether the eristéeof events or circumstances leads to a detetimintoat it is more likely than not that the
fair value of the reporting unit is less than tlaerging amount. Estimated fair values could chafder example, there are changes in the
business climate, unanticipated changes in the etitive environment, adverse legal or regulatoryoas or developments, changes in ca
structure, cost of debt, interest rates, capitpkaditure levels, operating cash flows, or marlkgitalization. Because of the significance of
our goodwill and intangible assets, any future iimpant of these assets could require material rasi-charges to our results of operations
and have a material adverse effect on our finamegllts.

We share certain directors with Alliance Boots anctertain of our officers serve on the Alliance Boot8oard of Directors, which may
give rise to conflicts of interest.

In connection with our initial 45% investment inlidhce Boots on August 2, 2012, we obtained thietitig appoint four designees to serve on
the Alliance Boots Board of Directors. As of thetel of this report, Gregory D. Wasson, Presidedt@hief Executive Officer and a director
of Walgreens, Thomas J. Sabatino, Jr., Executice Yresident, General Counsel, Chief Administrafiiécer and Corporate Secretary, and
Robert Zimmerman, retired Senior Vice Presidenrimtional and International Chief Administratiofficer and currently a consultant to
Walgreens, serve as Walgreens' representativdseohlliance Boots Board of Directors. In additidf,. Pessina, Executive Chairman of
Alliance Boots, and Mr. Dominic Murphy, an Allian8mots director and an executive of KKR and certdiits affiliates, joined our Board of
Directors. Mr. Pessina and his affiliates and KKRI &s affiliates jointly control AB Acquisitionsyhich holds the remaining 55% of Alliance
Boots. These persons may have actual or appasefiicts of interest with respect to matters invoty or affecting each company. For
example, while our contractual arrangements witleAte Boots place restrictions on the partiesticehin various potential conflict
situations and related party transactions are sttgeeview and approval by independent direcitoccordance with our related party
transaction approval procedures, the potentiahfoonflict of interest exists when we on one hamd Alliance Boots on the other hand,
consider acquisitions and other corporate oppdiasihat may be suitable to Alliance Boots and @enflicts may also arise if there are
issues or disputes under the commercial arrangentiesit exist between Alliance Boots and us. Sinlsues may arise in connection with
other investments we make. For example, we andnlé Boots have the right, but not the obligattorinvest in AmerisourceBergen
common stock and to designate up to two membettsecAmerisourceBergen board of directors in cert@icumstances if we achieve
specified ownership thresholds. In May 2014, Wedagis achieved a five percent beneficial ownersirgshold and Gregory D. Wasson was
designated as a board member of AmerisourceBergen.

Risks Related to the Reorganization

The following risks relate to the Reorganizatidrhe Reorganization is conditioned upon, and witl lm® completed unless, the second step
transaction and related share issuance are comgletenediately following the completion of the Remigation.

The value of the shares of Walgreens Boots Allian@mmon stock that existing Walgreens shareholdetsill receive upon the
completion of the Reorganization may be less thamé value of their shares of Walgreens common stoels of the date of the Special
Meeting or the closing of the Reorganization.

The exchange ratio of Walgreens common stock foigians Boots Alliance common stock in the Reorggtion is fixed at one-to-one and
will not be adjusted in the event of any changthastock price of Walgreens or the value of Ali@aiBoots before the closing of the
Reorganization. The relative price of shares ofdéens common stock and the value of Alliance Booay vary significantly between the
date of the Special Meeting and the date of theptetion of the Transactions. These variations m&gaused by, among other things,
changes in the businesses, operations and re$italgreens and Alliance Boots, market expectatmfithe likelihood that the Transactions
will be completed and the timing of completion, firespects of post-Transactions operations andgigse the effect of any conditions or
restrictions imposed on or proposed with respetVaigreens Boots Alliance by regulatory agenciesauthorities, general market and
economic conditions and other factors. In addijtibis impossible to predict accurately the mankéte of Walgreens Boots Alliance
common stock to be received by Walgreens sharetsoédter the completion of the Reorganization. dxdingly, the price of Walgreens
common stock on the date of the Special Meeting nudye indicative of its price immediately beftine completion of the Reorganization
and the price of Walgreens Boots Alliance commaglstafter the Reorganization is completed.

The rights of a shareholder of Walgreens Boots Akince, a Delaware corporation, will vary in some rggects from the current rights of
a shareholder of Walgreens, an lllinois corporation

After the completion of the Reorganization, exigtiWalgreens shareholders will become shareholdafatgreens Boots Alliance, a public
company incorporated in Delaware, instead of Walgsea public company incorporated in Illinois. dgesult, rights as a shareholder of
Walgreens Boots Alliance will be governed by Deleaveorporate law and the Walgreens Boots Alliarertificate of incorporation and
bylaws as opposed to lllinois corporate law andwradgreens articles of incorporation and bylawsdthdugh many of the differences arising
from this change will not have a significant impantthe rights of shareholders, the rights may #agome respects.

The certificate of incorporation and bylaws of Walgeens Boots Alliance, Delaware law and/or the Commg Shareholders Agreement
may impede the ability of Walgreens Boots Alliancshareholders to make changes to the Walgreens Bod@tHiance Board of Directors
or impede a takeover, which could deprive the shatelders of the opportunity to receive a premium fortheir shares.

Although these provisions generally currently asest with respect to the Company under its goveymiocuments and the lllinois Busint



Corporation Act, several provisions of the certifie of incorporation and bylaws of Walgreens Bddliance and the Delaware General
Corporation Law could make it difficult for sharétiers to change the composition of the Walgreerm$8Alliance Board of Directors. In
addition, the same and other provisions may disapjrdelay or prevent a merger, consolidation quiaition that shareholders may consider
favorable. See also the risk factor above "Themsgstep transaction, if consummated, would redoegercentage ownership interests of
current shareholders and the principal shareholifed® Acquisitions may have significant voting inénce over matters requiring
shareholder approval." Under the Company Shareneléigreement, the SP Investors and the KKR Investave agreed to, for so long as
the SP Investors have the right to designate thim&#3tor Designee (or Mr. Pessina continues teesas Executive Chairperson or Chief
Executive Officer of Alliance Boots) and for so tpas the KKR Investors have the right to desigttaeKKR Investor Designee, respectiv
vote all of their shares of common stock in accoogawith the Walgreens Boots Alliance Board of Bices' recommendation on matters
submitted to a vote of its shareholders (includiritl respect to the election of directors). Thpswvisions are not intended, however, to
make Walgreens Boots Alliance immune from takeoaaus instead are intended to protect WalgreenssBaitiance shareholders from
coercive or otherwise unfair takeover tactics lyuigng potential acquirors to negotiate with thand by providing the Walgreens Boots
Alliance Board of Directors with more time to assasy potential acquisition proposal.

As a holding company, Walgreens Boots Alliance wilbe totally dependent on dividends from its operatig subsidiaries to pay
dividends and other obligations.

After the completion of the Reorganization, Walgre8oots Alliance will be a holding company with Imasiness operations of its own. Its
only significant asset will be the outstanding talpstock of its subsidiaries. As a result, itlwély on payments from its subsidiaries,
including Walgreens and Alliance Boots, to meebltfigations. Additionally, Walgreens Boots Alligais subsidiaries may be restricted in
their ability to pay cash dividends or to make ofttistributions to Walgreens Boots Alliance, whioly limit the payment of cash dividends
or other distributions to the holders of WalgreBoests Alliance common stock. Credit facilities asttier debt obligations of Walgreens Bc
Alliance, as well as statutory provisions, may Hertlimit the ability of Walgreens Boots Alliancaaiits subsidiaries to pay dividends.

We may not obtain the expected benefits of our reganization into a holding company structure.

We believe our reorganization into a holding compsinucture will provide us with benefits in thedte. These expected benefits may nc
obtained if market conditions or other circumstangevent us from taking advantage of the stratdgisiness and other potential flexibility
that we expect it will afford us. As a result, wayrncur the costs of the holding company structuitbout realizing the possible benefits. In
addition, the holding company structure may nosbecessful in insulating the liabilities of our sidiaries from each other or from
Walgreens Boots Alliance. We or our future sulzsigis may be liable for the liabilities of one drent particularly if we do not observe
corporate formalities or adequately capitalize elwess or our future subsidiaries.

Walgreens Boots Alliance has no operating or finanal history, and results of operations may differ gynificantly from the unaudited
pro forma financial information included in Walgreens' other filings with the Securities and Exchang€ommission.

Walgreens Boots Alliance has only recently beenrparated and has no operating history and no te&nThe unaudited pro forma
financial information contained in the Company'si€at Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteasd Exchange Commission on
September 16, 2014 is presented for illustrativp@ses only, is based on certain assumptions algghjants, contains preliminary estimates,
addresses a hypothetical situation and coverstbelyperiods presented. The assumptions used pafpng the unaudited pro forma financial
information may not prove to be fully accurate, atiger factors may affect Walgreens Boots Alliasdigiancial condition or results of
operations following the Transactions. Therefthe, pro forma financial information does not neaegsindicate with accuracy the results
operations or the combined financial position thatld have resulted had the Transactions been aietpbn the dates indicated, and it is
necessarily indicative with accuracy of the resafteperations in future periods or the future ficial position of Walgreens Boots Alliance.
Accordingly, Walgreens Boots Alliance's resultoperations and financial condition may differ sfggaintly from those indicated by the
unaudited pro forma financial information.

There has been no prior public market for shares oWalgreens Boots Alliance common stock, and the miaet price of the shares may
be volatile.

The market price of shares of Walgreens Boots Atllacommon stock may be volatile. Broad generah@aeic, political, market and indus
factors may adversely affect the market price efghares, regardless of Walgreens Boots Alliaratisal operating performance. In addition
to the other risk factors identified in this Iter,factors that could cause fluctuations in theg@f the shares include:

actual or anticipated variations in quarterly ofiagaresults and the results of competit

changes in financial estimates by Walgreens Bodiante or by any securities analysts that mightecdNValgreens Boots Allianc

conditions or trends in the industry, includingukdory changes or changes in the securities nmadcs;

announcements by Walgreens Boots Alliance or itspmditors of significant acquisitions, strategictparships or divestiture

announcements of investigations or regulatory soyudf Walgreens Boots Alliance's operations ordaits filed against it

additions or departures of key personnel;

issuances or sales of Walgreens Boots Allianaenton stock, including sales of shares by its tmscand officers or its key
investors, including the SP Investors and/or theRKIKvestors



Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment:

There are no unresolved written comments that waamreived from the SEC Staff 180 days or more befoeeend of our fiscal year
relating to our periodic or current reports under Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Item 2. Properties

The Company's locations, including drugstores,sitiu and respiratory service facilities, specialfarmacies and mail service facilities at
August 31, 2014 and 2013 are listed below.

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Alabama 11¢ 11Z Louisiana 154 15z Oklahoms 117 121
Alaska 8 7 Maine 15 15 Oregon 77 80
Arizona 25C 25& Maryland 89 80 Pennsylvanii 131 13¢
Arkansas 83 78 Massachusetl 16¢ 185 Rhode Islanc 26 29
California 64€ 663 Michigan 232 232 South Caroling 11C 11¢
Coloradao 16C 172 Minnesota 154 164 South Dakot: 14 14
Connecticu 95 125 Mississippi 78 79 Tennesse 254 271
Delaware 65 6€ Missouri 21¢ 221 Texas 71z 72¢
District of Montana Utah
Columbia 6 5 14 14 48 45
Florida 861 881 Nebrask: 60 62 Vermont 3 4
Georgia 204 20& Nevada 84 92 Virginia 141 14¢
Hawaii 19 17 New Hampshire 32 36 Washingtor 13¢ 14C
Idaho 40 42 New Jerse) 191 215 West Virginia 17 23
lllinois 61C 62C New Mexico 69 68 Wisconsin 22¢ 234
Indiana 201 21& New York 48€ 527 Wyoming 11 11
lowa 70 72 North Caroline 262 221 Guam 0] 1
Kansas 70 72 North Dakote 1 1 Puerto Ricc 12C 11€
Kentucky Ohio U.S. Virgin
98 10z 25C 272 Islands 1 0
TOTAL 8,30¢ 8,582

The Company owned approximately 20% of its retailgdtore locations and leased the remaining losata August 31, 2014. The
leases are for various terms and periods. SeedNm¢he Company's Consolidated Financial StatésriarPart I, Item 8 of this Form
10-K. Net retail selling space remained consisa®9 million square feet at August 31, 2014 adti2 Approximately 20% of
Company stores have been opened or remodeled dbarmgast five years, including our "Well Experietstore format in over 700
locations, including a market-wide transformatiorthie Indianapolis area and new flagship storeliect markets including Boston,
Chicago, Los Angeles, New York City, San Francidtéashington, D.C., Las Vegas and Puerto Rico.

As of August 31, 2014:

The Company's retail store operations were stggpdy 19 major distribution centers with a tahapproximately 11 million square
feet of space, of which 13 locations are ownede fmaining space is leased. All distribution eenaire served by modern systems
for order processing control and rapid merchand&ivery to stores. In addition, the Company ysgslic warehouses and third
party wholesalers to handle certain distributioadse As of August 31, 2014, AmerisourceBergerritisted substantially all of the
Company's branded and generic pharmaceutical pis

The Company operated 34 principal office faetitcontaining approximately three million squaetf of which 13 locations were
owned. The Company operated two mail serviceifesicontaining approximately 237 thousand sqéeeé one of which was
owned.

The Company owned 16 strip shopping malls contgiajpproximately 500 thousand square f

The foregoing does not include properties of unobdated partially owned entities, such as Alliafmots, of which we own 45% of
the outstanding share capital as of the date sfréport (see "Overview of Alliance Boots" in Itdnabove). As a result, the foregoing
location information at August 31, 2014 also doesinclude properties of the Take Care Employeir®ss in which we sold a majority
interest in June 2014.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

The information in response to this item is incldde Note 12 to our Consolidated Financial Statemarcluded below in Part Il, Iltem 8
of this Form 10-K.

ltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Executive Officers of the Registrant




The following table sets forth, for each persorrently serving as an executive officer of Walgreg¢hs name, age (as of October 15,
2014) and office(s) held by such person.

Name Age Office(s) Hel

Gregory D. Wasso 55 President and Chief Executive Offic

Timothy R. McLevist 59 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Kermit R. Crawforc 55 Executive Vice President, Pharmacy, Health and Ings®

Mark A. Wagnel 53 President, Business Operatic

Alexander W. Gourlay Executive Vice President, President of Customereigpce and Daily Living and Presid
54 Elect of Walgreen Cc

Thomas J. Sabatino, Jr. Executive Vice President, General Counsel and GatpdSecretary and Chief Administra
55 Officer

Richard Ashwortt 39 President, Retail and Pharmacy Operat

Jeffrey Berkowitz 48 Cc-President, Walgreens Boots Alliance Development Bt

Sona Chawli 47 President of Digital and Chief Marketing Offic

Bradley M. Fluege 53 Senior Vice President and Chief Strategy and Bssilevelopment Office

Mia M. Scholz 48 Senior Vice President, Corporate Financial Openai

Timothy J. Theriaul 54 Senior Vice President and Chief Information, Innaaand Improvement Office

Kathleen Wilso-Thompsor 57 Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resourceiséd

Theodore J. Heidlof 38 Divisional Vice President, Accounting and Contrp

@ Effective December 31, 2014, Mr. Crawford will leiring from the Company

Set forth below is information regarding the prpadioccupations and employment and business exyerigver the past five years for
each executive officer. Executive officers arectdd by, and serve at the discretion of, the Bo&@irectors. Unless otherwise stated,
employment is by Walgreens. There are no famitienships between any of the Company's execufffieers or directors.

Mr. Wassorhas served as President and Chief Executive Officdra director of Walgreens since February 20B8om May 2007 to
February 2009, he served as President and Chiet@mg Officer. Mr. Wasson has served as a direaft&/erizon Communications
Inc., a provider of communications, information ardertainment products and services, since Mab&3,2of Alliance Boots GmbH
since August 2012, and of AmerisourceBergen Cotmraa pharmaceutical sourcing and distributionvises company, since May
2014.

Mr. McLevishhas served as Executive Vice President and Chigfrigial Officer since August 2014. Previously, beved as Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Krafiods Group, Inc. from October 2012 to DecembéB2@nd continued as Executive
Vice President until April 2014. Prior to that, $erved as Executive Vice President of Kraft Fotals, from March 2011 until October
2012 and from October 2007 to March 2011 he seagdfixecutive Vice President and Chief Financiald®ffof Kraft Foods, Inc. Prior
to that, he served as Senior Vice President andf@mancial Officer of Ingersoll-Rand Company Lied from 2002 to 2007. He has
served as a director of Kennametal, Inc. since 20@4of URS Corporation since 2012.

Mr. Crawfordhas served as Executive Vice President, PharmagaitiHand Wellness since September 2014 and sasvBdesident,
Pharmacy, Health and Wellness from September 20 8@ptember 2014. He previously served as ExecMice President of
Pharmacy Services from January 2010 to Septemti€r @&3d as Senior Vice President of Pharmacy Sexfioen October 2007 to
January 2010. He has served as a director of Tletak Corporation, an insurance holding compamge January 2013. Mr.
Crawford is retiring from the Company effective Bater 31, 2014.

Mr. Wagnetrhas served as President, Business OperationsSaptember 2014 and served as President, OperatidnSommunity
Management from September 2010 to September 2@&4erved as an Executive Vice President of Stper&@ions from March 2006
to September 2010.

Mr. Gourlayhas served as Executive Vice President, Presideiistomer Experience and Daily Living since Octod@l3 and
President Elect of Walgreen Co. since Septembet.20r. Gourlay is an employee of Alliance Bootslas seconded to Walgreens
pursuant to an agreement between Alliance Bootd/Maldreens. He served as Chief Executive of thaltH& Beauty Division,

Alliance Boots, from January 2009 to September 2@h8 previously was Managing Director of Boots Uakd a member of the
Alliance Boots Group operating committee followitng acquisition of Alliance Boots plc by AB Acquisins Ltd in 2007. He served as
a director of Alliance Boots GmbH from January 260%eptember 2013.

Mr. Sabatinchas served as Executive Vice President, Generatsaband Corporate Secretary since September 2@llasaChief
Administrative Officer since April 2014. Previdyshe served as Executive Vice President and Gé@aunsel of UAL Corporation
and United Air Lines, Inc. from March 2010 to Dedmn 2010 and as Executive Vice President and Ge@ertasel of Schering-Plough
Corporation from April 2004 to November 2009. Hastserved as a director of Alliance Boots GmbHesiwagust 2012.

Mr. Ashworthhas served as President of Retail and Pharmacya@ges since September 2014. He previously seagddirector of
Healthcare, Health & Beauty UK and Republic ofdred of Alliance Boots GmbH from January 2014 tot8ejber 2014. Prior to that,
he served as Corporate Operations Vice PresidéMatgreens from July 2011 to December 2013 and Piesident of Pharmacy
Operations from September 2010 to September 20din March 2009 to November 2010, he served as Mafice President of
Walgreens and from March 2007 to March 2009, heeskas Executive Vice President, PBM Services olgvéans Health Initiatives,



former subsidiary of Walgreens.

Mr. Berkowitzhas served as Co-President, Walgreens Boots Adlilavelopment GmbH based in Bern, Switzerland siaceiary
2013. Previously, he served as Senior Vice Prasidharmaceutical Development and Market AcceS¥alfjreens from September
2010 to January 2013. Prior to joining Walgreévis,Berkowitz served as senior vice president obgl market access for Merck &
Company, Inc. from November 2009 to September 240m 2002 to 2009, Mr. Berkowitz held a variefypositions with increasing
responsibility in market access, sales and margetith Schering-Plough Corporation prior to its aisition by Merck in 2009. He has
served as a director of Infinity Pharmaceuticats,,la biopharmaceutical company, since March 2014.

Ms. Chawlahas served as President of Digital and Chief Margedfficer since January 2014. She served addemis E-Commerce
from January 2011 to January 2014, and as Sengw Riiesident, E-Commerce from July 2008 to Jan2@tyt. She has served as a
director of Express, Inc., a specialty apparel amxkssory retailer, since August 2012.

Mr. Fluegelhas served as Senior Vice President, Chief StratadyBusiness Development Officer since Septembi4 2nd served as
Senior Vice President and Chief Strategy OfficenfrOctober 2012 to September 2014. He served asuixe in Residence at Health
Evolution Partners from April 2011 to September2@hd as Executive Vice President and Chief Styateg External Affairs Officer
of Wellpoint, Inc. from September 2007 to Decem®@0. He has served as a director of Performanatrieial Corporation, a provider
of technology-enabled recovery and related anal\g@vices, since February 2014.

Ms. Schol:has served as Senior Vice President - CorporanEial Operations since October 2012. She hasders Senior Vice
President of Accounting since January 2011 andesen¢ Vice President Accounting from October 2@0January 2011. She served as
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer from Janu@004 to January 2013.

Mr. Theriaulthas served as Senior Vice President and Chiefrirdtion, Innovation and Improvement Officer sincedber 2012. He
served as Senior Vice President and Chief Infolmnafifficer from October 2009 to October 2012. Ryesly, he served as President,
Corporate and Institutional Services of NortherastiCorporation from January 2006 to October 2009.

Ms. Wilsol-Thompsorhas served as Senior Vice President and Chief HiReanurces Officer since January 2010. Previoshly,
served as Senior Vice President, Global Human Resswf Kellogg Company from July 2005 to Decenf2#i9. She has served as a
director of Vulcan Materials Company, a producecafstruction aggregates, since 2009.
Mr. Heidloff has served as Divisional Vice President, Accoungind Controller since January 2013. He servessasstant Controller
from May 2011 to January 2013. Previously, heagias Controller of Aon Hewitt, a division of Aomiporation, from October 2010
to April 2011 and as Assistant Controller of Hewliisociates, Inc. from September 2008 to Septe2®ED.

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of ity Securities

The Company's common stock is listed on the Newk8tock Exchange, Chicago Stock Exchange and TlsdddpStock Market LLC
under the symbol WAG. As of August 31, 2014, theeze approximately 73,730 holders of record of @any common stock.

The following table sets forth the sales price engf the Company's common stock by quarter duhiadiscal years ended August 31,
2014 and August 31, 2013 as reported by the Catatelil Transaction Reporting System.

Quarter Ended

November February May August Fiscal Year
Fiscal 2014 Higk $ 60.9¢ $ 69.8¢ $ 7197 $ 76.3¢ $ 76.3¢
Low 48.1¢ 54.8¢ 62.8( 57.7¢ 48.1¢
Fiscal 2013 Higk $ 36.98 $ 41,98 $ 50.77 $ 51.2¢ $ 51.2¢
Low 32.1¢ 34.27 39.9¢ 44.1: 32.1¢

The Company's cash dividends per common sharerdddaring the two fiscal years ended August 3laariollows:

Quarter Ended 2014 2013

Novembel $ 315C $ 27¢
February .315( 27¢
May .315( 27k
August .337¢ 31E
Fiscal Year $ 1.282F $ 1.14

The Company has paid cash dividends every quanes $933. Future dividends will be determinedeldlasn the Company's earnings,
capital requirements, financial condition and otfaetors considered relevant by the Board of Doext

The following table provides information about puasses by the Company during the quarter ended AB§u2014 of equity securities
that are registered by the Company pursuant tadet? of the Exchange Act. Subject to applicdéwe, share purchases may be made
in open market transactions, privately negotiatadgactions, or pursuant to instruments and plamgpbying with Rule 10b-1, amonc



other types of transactions and arrangements.

Average Total Number of Shares Purchased a
gﬁ;?éggm%i;g; Price Paid Part of Publicly Announced
Period ) per Share Repurchase Programg?
6/01/2014- 6/30/2014 - $ = -
7/01/2014- 7/31/2014 - - -
8/01/2014 - 8/31/2014 8,106,55. 61.7¢ -
Total 8,106,55. $  61.7¢ -

@ The Company purchased 8,106,551 shares of its constogk in open-market transactions to satisfyrégglirements of the Company's
Omnibus Incentive Plan and employee stock purchkse

@ On August 5, 2014, the Board of Directors approaathare repurchase program (2014 repurchase prptrarauthorized the purchase
of up to $3.0 billion of the Company's common stpdior to its expiration on August 31, 2016. OiyJLB, 2011, the Board of Directors
approved a share repurchase program (2012 reperphagram) that authorized the repurchase of §210 billion of the Company's
common stock prior to its expiration on DecemberZIl5. The 2012 repurchase program, which haairengy authorized purchases of
$425 million, was replaced in its entirety by tha12 repurchase program. The total remaining aizhtion under the 2014 repurchase
program was $3.0 billion as of August 31, 2014.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

Five-Year Summary of Selected Consolidated Finandi®ata
Walgreen Co. and Subsidiaries
(Dollars in Millions, except per share and locatanounts)

Fiscal Year 2014 2013® 2012®M 2011 2010@
Net sales $ 76,39: $ 72,217 % 71,63: $ 72,18: $ 67,42(
Cost of sale: 54,82: 51,09¢ 51,29: 51,69: 48,44«
Gross Profit 21,56¢ 21,11¢ 20,34: 20,49: 18,97¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 17,99: 17,54: 16,87¢ 16,56 15,51¢
Gain on sale of busine® - 20 - 434 -
Equity earnings in Alliance Boo™® 617 344 - - -
Operating Incom 4,194 3,94( 3,464 4,36¢ 3,45¢
Interest expense, n (15€) (165) (88) (77) (85)
Other (expense)/incon® (482) 12C - - -
Earnings Before Income Tax Provisi 3,551 3,89t 3,37¢ 4,29¢ 3,37:
Income tax provisiol 1,52¢ 1,44t 1,24¢ 1,58( 1,28
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling intés: 99 - - - -
Net Earnings attributable to Walgreen ¢ $ 1,93 $ 245( $ 2,127 % 2,71 $ 2,091
Per Common Share

Net earning:

Basic $ 20 $ 25¢ % 24 $ 297 $ 2.1z
Diluted 2.0C 2.5¢ 2.4z2 2.9/ 2.12
Dividends declare 1.2¢ 1.14 .9k 75 .5¢
Book value 21.5: 20.5¢ 19.32 16.6¢ 15.3¢
Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term debt $ 3,736 $ 4,477 $ 4,07 $ 2,3% $ 2,38¢
Deferred income taxe 1,04¢ 60C 54t 342 31¢
Other nor-current liabilities 2,94; 2,06 1,88¢ 1,78t 1,73¢
Assets and Equity

Total Assets $ 37,18: $ 3548. $ 33,46: $ 27,45  $ 26,27*
Walgreen Co. Shareholders' EqL 20,457 19,45« 18,23¢ 14,847 14,40(
Noncontrolling interest 104 - - - -
Shareholders' Equil 20,56 19,45« 18,23¢ 14,847 14,40(
Return on average shareholders' eq 9.7% 13.(% 12.9% 18.€% 14.5%
Locations

Year-end® 8,30¢ 8,582 8,38t 8,21( 8,04¢

@) On August 2, 2012, the Company completed the aitiguiof 45% of the issued and outstanding shapétabof Alliance Boots GmbH
(Alliance Boots) in exchange for cash and Compdrayess. The Company accounts for this investmeanguke equity method of
accounting on a three-month lag basis. Becauseldang of this investment occurred in August 2042 financial statements for
fiscal 2013 reflect 12 months of the dilutive effe€the incremental shares and interest experseated with our Alliance Boots
investment, but only 10 months (August 2012 throtgty 2013) of Alliance Boots results, reported gsiify earnings in Alliance
Boots.

@ In fiscal 2011, the Company sold its pharmacy bienginagement business, Walgreens Health Initigfikes., to Catalyst Health



Solutions, Inc. and recorded a pre-tax gain of $8Hon. In fiscal 2013, the Company recordedaalditional pre-tax gain of $20
million relating to a client retention escro

@ In fiscal 2014, the Company recognized a non-cas$ ¢f $866 million related to the amendment aretase of the Alliance Boots
call option to acquire the remaining 55% shareteapf Alliance Boots. In addition, the Companyli@dnce Boots and
AmerisourceBergen entered into a Framework Agreéndated as of March 18, 2013, pursuant to whiofgreg other things, the
Company was issued warrants to purchase AmerisBargen common stock. In fiscal 2014 and 2013Qbmpany recorded pre-tax
income of $385 million and $120 million, respectiyérom fair value adjustments of the warrants #melamortization of the deferred
credit associated with the initial value of the raats.

@Includes results of Duane Reade operations sircAphil 9, 2010 acquisition dat

®)Locations include drugstores, infusion and respisaservices facilities, specialty pharmacies aril service facilities. Locations in
2010 through 2013 also included worksite health\aaliness centers, which were part of the Take Eanployer business in which
we sold a majority interest in fiscal 2014. Theefgoing does not include locations of unconsolidgi@rtially owned entities, such as
Alliance Boots, of which the Company owns 45% af tutstanding share capital as of the date oféisrt.

ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of f@ncial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our firahcondition and results of operations should bad together with the financial
statements and the related notes included elsewta®n. This discussion contains forward-lookatgtements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results may differ maty from those discussed in forward-looking staémts. Factors that might cause a
difference include, but are not limited to, thosscdssed under "Cautionary Note Regarding Forwaoiking Statements” below and in
Item 1A (Risk Factors) of this Form-K. References herein to "Walgreens," the "Compdhve," "us" or "our" refer to Walgreen Co.
and its subsidiaries included in the consolidatiedricial statements and do not include unconsodidatartially owned entities, such as
Alliance Boots GmbH, of which we own 45% of thestaunding share capital as of the date of this répexcept as otherwise indicat

or the context otherwise requires.

INTRODUCTION

Walgreens is principally a retail drugstore chaiattsells prescription and non-prescription drugs$ general merchandise. General
merchandise includes, among other things, conveaiand fresh foods, household items, personal photofinishing and beauty

care. Prescription drugs represent the Compaangedt product class, followed by general merctsgndnd non-prescription drugs. In
fiscal 2014, fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012, presaiptrugs represented 64%, 63% and 63% of totaksabspectively, general
merchandise represented 26%, 27% and 25% of tltd,gespectively, and non-prescription drugsesgmted 10%, 10% and 12% of
total sales, respectively. The Company offersarasts the choice to have prescriptions filledsatétail pharmacies, as well as through
the mail, and customers may also place orders bpgbr online including through the Company's n@hjpplication.

All Company sales during the last three fiscal gamrcurred within the United States, Puerto Ric&. Wirgin Islands and Guam. There
were no export sales.

At August 31, 2014, we operated 8,309 locatiorsQistates, the District of Columbia, Puerto Ricd #re U.S. Virgin Islands. Total
locations do not include 437 Healthcare Clinics 4Bdvorksite pharmacies, which operate primarilthini other Walgreens drugstores.
Total locations also do not include locations ofemsolidated partially owned entities such as AttaBoots.

Number of Locations

Location Type 201¢ 201z 2012
Drugstores 8,201 8,11¢ 7,93(
Worksite Health and Wellness Cent - 371 36€
Infusion and Respiratory Services Facilit 91 82 76
Specialty Pharmacie 9 11 11
Mail Service Facilities 2 2 2
Total 8,30¢ 8,58: 8,38t

The drugstore industry remains highly competitiveeve we compete with other drugstore chains, inufigret drugstores and mail order
prescription providers. We also compete with vasiother retailers including grocery stores, coresate stores, mass merchants, online
pharmacies, warehouse clubs and dollar stores.

Our sales, gross profit margin and gross profitadlslare impacted by, among other things, botlp#reentage of prescriptions that we
fill that are generic and the rate at which newegiendrugs are introduced to the market. In gdngemeric versions of drugs generate
lower total sales dollars per prescription, butleiggross profit margins and gross profit dollasscompared with patent-protected brand
name drugs. The positive impact on gross profitging and gross profit dollars typically has begmigicant in the first several months
after a generic version of a drug is first allotedompete with the branded version, which is galhereferred to as a "generic
conversion." In any given year, the number of mhjand name drugs that undergo a conversion fn@mdd to generic status can
increase or decrease, which can have a signifiogrdct on our sales, gross profit margins and gposfit dollars. Because any number
of factors outside of our control or ability to é&see can affect timing for a generic conversionfage substantial uncertainty in
predicting when such conversions will occur and wffect they will have on particular future perdfodWe also experienced a shift from
historical patterns of deflation in generic drugtsato inflation in fiscal 2014. During fiscal 28lwe experienced cost increases on a
subset of generic drugs and in some cases thesagss have been significant. We expect this geimflation to continue in fiscal

2015.



The long-term outlook for prescription utilizatismstrong due in part to the aging population,itieeeasing utilization of generic drugs,
the continued development of innovative drugs itm@rrove quality of life and control healthcare &stnd the expansion of healthcare
insurance coverage under the Patient ProtectiorAffoddable Care Act (the ACA). The ACA seeks tmluce federal spending by
altering the Medicaid reimbursement formula (AMB) fnulti-source drugs, and when implemented, ietqd to reduce Medicaid
reimbursements. State Medicaid programs are alsected to continue to seek reductions in reimbuesgs independent of AMP. We
continuously face reimbursement pressure from phayrbenefit management (PBM) companies, health teradimce organizations,
managed care organizations and other commercidl plairty payers; our agreements with these payersegularly subject to expiration,
termination or renegotiation. In addition, plaranges with rate adjustments often occur in Janaadyour reimbursement arrangements
may provide for rate adjustments at prescribedwats during their term. In fiscal 2013, the higtte of introduction of new generic
drugs moderated the impact of any associated digistamnents. We experienced lower reimbursemerntsaasignificantly lower rate of
new generic introductions in fiscal 2014 as comgdoethe preceding fiscal year.

We anticipate new generic introductions to increasa year over year basis in fiscal 2015. Theetuirenvironment of our pharmacy
business also includes ongoing generic inflatieimbursement pressure, and a shift in pharmacyteowiard 90-day at retail. Our 90-
day at retail offering is typically at a lower marghan comparable 30-day prescriptions, but presids the opportunity to increase
business with patients with chronic prescriptiordewhile offering increased convenience, helpagiifate improved prescription
adherence and resulting in a lower cost to fill9eday prescription. In addition, because wedkxtito accept lower reimbursement
rates in order to secure preferred relationshipls Wiedicare Part D plans serving senior patienth gignificant pharmacy needs, our
Medicare Part D reimbursement rates will decreasmliendar year 2015. We expect that these faaiitirsave an adverse impact on
gross profit dollar growth in our pharmacy businiesscal 2015.

On July 19, 2012, Walgreens and Express Scriptswaroed their entry into a new multi-year agreenpemsuant to which Walgreens
began participating in the broadest Express Sargtésl pharmacy provider network available to Eegw Scripts clients as of
September 15, 2012. From January 1, 2012, urpile®sber 14, 2012, however, Express Scripts' netdintkot include Walgreens
pharmacies. The positive impact of this agreergenterally has been incremental over time sinceegdper 15, 2012. Rejoining the
Express Scripts retail pharmacy provider network asitively affected our net sales, net earnimgscash flows over time relative to
the levels we otherwise would have achieved if veeeanot in the Express Scripts network and paytraitigated the adverse effects
related to our non-participation in the Expressi@smetail pharmacy provider network during theige from January 1, 2012, through
September 14, 2012.

Periodically, we make strategic acquisitions anggtments that fit our long-term growth objectiv€Xonsideration is given to retalil,
health and well-being enterprises and other paikatiquisitions and investments that provide unigpeortunities and fit our business
objectives. In fiscal 2014, we acquired certaiseds of Kerr Drug and its affiliates, which includ retail drugstore locations, as well as
a specialty pharmacy business and a distributiotecgall based in North Carolina. In fiscal 200&, acquired Stephen L. LaFrance
Holdings, Inc. (USA Drug), which includes 141 drtage locations operating under the USA Drug, Sup&rug, May's Drug, Med-X
and Drug Warehouse names. Additionally, we acduame 80% interest in Cystic Fibrosis FoundationrRlzey LLC. This investment
provides joint ownership in a specialty pharmaaydystic fibrosis patients and their families irdagbn to providing new product

launch support and call center services for drugufecturers.

On August 2, 2012, we acquired a 45% equity intére8lliance Boots GmbH, a leading internationahpmacy-led health and beauty
group, which we account for using the equity methbdccounting. As part of the initial 45% investmin Alliance Boots, we also
acquired the right, but not the obligation, to ekecacquire the remaining 55% interest in Alliamots (the second step transaction), at
any time during the period beginning February 2,28nd ending on August 2, 2015, in exchange fatEBbillion in cash, payable in
British pounds sterling, and 144,333,468 share&algreens common stock, subject to certain specfaential adjustments (the call
option). On August 5, 2014, the Purchase and @ptigreement was amended to permit the exerciseeofdll option beginning on that
date, and we, through an indirectly wholly-ownetissdiary to which we previously assigned our rigiotthe call option, exercised the
call option on August 5, 2014. Additional inforriwat regarding our investment in Alliance Boots dinel pending second step
transaction is available in our and Walgreens B@dltance's filings with the SEC, including our Foi8-K filed on May 15, 2014 that
includes Alliance Boots' audited consolidated fitiahstatements (prepared in accordance with lateynal Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International AccourBtagdards Board (IFRS) and audited in accordaiitbelhS. GAAS), comprised of
the statements of financial position at March 31142and 2013 of Alliance Boots and its subsidiafilke Group) and the related Group
income statements, Group statements of compreteimsiome, Group statements of changes in equityGndp statements of cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year gkdnded March 31, 2014, and our Form 8-K filed ept€mber 16, 2014 that includes
certain unaudited pro forma consolidated finanicitdrmation related to the pending Transactions.

In addition, we plan to complete, immediately ptiothe completion of the second step transactiorprganization of Walgreens into a
holding company structure, under which Walgreenaldvbecome a wholly-owned subsidiary of a new Del@icorporation named
"Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc." and Walgreen Gareholders immediately prior to the Reorganizatimuld become shareholders of
Walgreens Boots Alliance, with shares of Walgreen&@mmon stock being converted automatically sfitares of Walgreens Boots
Alliance common stock on a one-for-one basis. Rherganization is conditioned upon the secondtstgysaction being completed
immediately following the completion of the Reorgaation. The second step transaction is not camit! on the completion of the
Reorganization. Closing of the Transactions igextlio shareholder and various regulatory appeoaat is expected to occur in the
first quarter of calendar 2015.

Walgreens equity earnings, initial investment araldall option exclude the Alliance Boots minoiityerest in Galenica Ltd.
(Galenica). The Alliance Boots investment in Galarwas distributed to the Alliance Boots sharebdther than Walgreens during
May 2013, which had no impact on the Company. mant for our 45% investment in Alliance Bootsngsthe equity method «



accounting. Investments accounted for under thé&emethod are recorded initially at cost and sgjoeatly adjusted for our share of
the net income or loss and cash contributions @stdltlitions to or from these entities. Net incoraported by Alliance Boots is
translated from British pounds Sterling at the agerrate for the period. See Note 5 to our Cotiatdd Financial Statements in Part I,
Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional informatieagarding our equity method investments. Weagtih three-month lag in reporting
equity income from our investment in Alliance Bqgaesported as equity earnings in Alliance BootgtanConsolidated Statements of
Earnings. The investment is recorded as Equitgstment in Alliance Boots in the Consolidated BetaSheets. Upon closing of the
second step transaction, Alliance Boots will béuded in our consolidated financial statementse fiiming of the closing of the second
step transaction and the length of the reportiggifaany, we use to report the results of AlliaBmots after the closing of the second
step transaction is expected to impact our repdimaghcial results in fiscal 2015. An earlier dleg and/or shorter reporting lag would
increase, and a later closing would decrease xtemeto which fully consolidated Alliance Bootsudts would be reflected in our
consolidated fiscal 2015 financial statements.

Upon the amendment and immediate exercise of thept#on to acquire the remaining 55% ownershifAiiance Boots, the Company
was required to compare the fair value of the aradraption with the book value of the original optiwith a non-cash gain or loss
recognized for the difference. The fair valueled amended option was estimated to be zero basksivaiuation as a financial
instrument without regard for its strategic valtighe reduction in value was primarily due to therstr duration of the amended option
and the appreciation since the original valuatiothe price of the Company's stock used as padiadideration for the purchase of the
remaining 55% ownership interest in Alliance Bootdiis resulted in the recognition of a non-cass lon the exercise of the call option
of $866 million.

Combined synergies across both companies werexpmtely $491 million in fiscal 2014. Fiscal 20&é6mbined synergies are
currently estimated to be approximately $650 millioThe three-month lag impacts the quarterly &hf year timing of when Alliance
Boots results and synergies will be reflected ameluity earnings in Alliance Boots included in énancial statements. See
"Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statetsithelow. Because of the three-month lag andithiag of the closing of this
investment, our financial statements for the yealeel August 31, 2013, reflect twelve months ofdihetive effect of the incremental
shares and interest expense associated with danéd Boots investment, but only ten months (Au@@42 through May 2013) of
results of Alliance Boots are reflected in the ¢gearnings in Alliance Boots included in our Colidated Statements of Earnings for
the twelve-month period.

The Alliance Boots business is seasonal in natypg&ally generating a higher proportion of revemumg earnings in the winter holiday
and cold and flu season. Because we utilize @threnth lag in reporting equity income from ouréstment in Alliance Boots, the
results of Alliance Boots for December, January Bebruary are reflected in the equity income inetlith our financial statements for
the fiscal quarter ending May 31. See "Cautiomdoye Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" below.

Investments accounted for under the equity methedecorded initially at cost and subsequently stéjdi for the Company's share of the
net income or loss and cash contributions andibigtons to or from these entities. The Compaimygstment in Alliance Boots was
recorded as an asset with a $7.2 billion aggregatee on the Company's August 31, 2014 balance,shbich represented 29.1% of the
Company's long-lived assets as of that date. Becthe Company's investment in Alliance Boots isodginated in a foreign currency
(British pounds Sterling), translation gains orsles impact the value of the investment. See Ntdeobr Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part I, Item 8 of this Form 10-K &aiditional information.

On March 19, 2013, we, in conjunction with AllianBeots and AmerisourceBergen Corporation (AmeriseBergen) announced
various agreements and arrangements, including-geter pharmaceutical distribution agreement betveegselves and
AmerisourceBergen pursuant to which we will solstanded and generic pharmaceutical products frorerisourceBergen; an
agreement which provides AmerisourceBergen thétabil access generics and related pharmaceutiodupts through Walgreens
Boots Alliance Development GmbH, a global sourgmigt venture between ourselves and Alliance Boatst agreements and
arrangements pursuant to which we and Alliance 8tmgether have the right, but not the obligattorpurchase a minority equity
position in AmerisourceBergen and gain associapdesentation on AmerisourceBergen's board of tiredn certain circumstances.
At August 31, 2014, we owned approximately 5.1%hef outstanding common shares in AmerisourceBeaigdrheld one position on
AmerisourceBergen's Board of Directors.

AmerisourceBergen began to distribute all brandeatipaceutical products that we historically sourftedh distributors and suppliers,
effective September 1, 2013. In calendar year 28i#kerisourceBergen began to distribute increagisgnificant levels of generic
pharmaceutical products that in the past we selfiduted. At August 31, 2014, the transition tmérisourceBergen distribution was
substantially complete. In addition to the infotioa in this report, please refer to our Currenp&®on Form 8-K filed on March 20,
2013, for more detailed information regarding thageeements and arrangements.

STORE CLOSURES AND COST REDUCTION INITIATIVES

On March 24, 2014, our Board of Directors approaqdan to close underperforming stores in effartsptimize and focus resources in a
manner intended to increase shareholder valueof Asigust 31, 2014, we have closed 67 locationsiacgrred pre-tax charges associated
with the plan of $209 million of which $137 milliawlated to lease termination costs, $71 millidateal to asset impairment charges and $1
million in severance and other costs. This st@tgmzation plan is expected to result in an anmymdrating income benefit of $40 million to
$50 million beginning in fiscal 2015. The amouatsl timing of all estimates are subject to charbige actual amounts and timing may vary
materially based on various factors, includingttiréng and number of store closings; the timing antbunt of sublease income and other
lease expense; factors relating to real estatadimgy sale proceeds; asset write-downs and otk&sriaffecting inventory value; changes in
management's assumptions; and other factors. GGagdidnary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Stateisieb¢low.



In addition, as part of our goal to establish ditieint global platform, we are pursuing a multcéded cost-reduction initiative across the
enterprise with the goal of realizing $1 billiondast savings by fiscal year 2017. This effofbisused on several areas including
corporate costs, distribution costs, field costs stiore costs. The Company anticipates that aspéthis multi-faceted plan will result

in restructuring and other special charges asihfgemented over the next three fiscal years. "Sagitionary Note Regarding Forward-
Looking Statements" below.

OPERATING STATISTICS

Percentage Increases/ (Decrease

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012

Net Sales 5.8 0.8 (0.8
Net Earnings Attributable to Walgreen ( (21.7) 15.2 (21.¢
Comparable Drugstore Sal 4.9 (1.3 (3.6
Prescription Sale 7.8 0.4 (3.2
Comparable Drugstore Prescription St 6.8 (1.7) (6.2)
Fron-End Sale: 2.1 1.t 3.€
Comparable Drugstore Fr-End Sale: 2.C (0.7) 0.€
Gross Profit 2.1 3.8 (0.7)
Selling, General and Administrative Expen 2.€ 3.8 1.8

Percent to Net Sales

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012

Gross Margir 28.2 29.2 28.4
Selling, General and Administrative Expen 23.€ 24.: 23.€

Other Statistics

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012

Prescription Sales as a % of Net Si 64.2 62.¢ 63.2
Third Party Sales as a % of Total Prescription € 96.t 95.¢ 95.¢
Number of Prescriptions (in million: 69¢ 683 664
Comparable Prescription % Increase/(Decre 1.8 2.8 (8.9
3C-Day Equivalent Prescriptions (in millions 85¢€ 821 784
Comparable 3-Day Equivalent Prescription % Increase/(Decreas 4.3 4.8 (5.7
Total Number of Location 8,30¢ 8,58 8,38¢

* Includes the adjustment to convert prescriptigreater than 84 days to the equivalent of thred@0prescriptions. This adjustment reflects
the fact that these prescriptions include approtetyahree times the amount of product days sudpl@mpared to a normal prescriptit

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal 2014 net earnings attributable to Walgreendecreased 21.1% to $1.9 billion, or $2.00 plettelil share, versus net earnings of
$2.5 billion, or $2.56 per diluted share, in fis2@ll3. The decrease was primarily attributabllewer gross margins, a loss related to the
Alliance Boots call option and a higher effectiea tate, partially offset by higher sales, lowdliisg, general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of sales, increased earnfpgs in Alliance Boots and increased gainfaommarket value adjustments related
to the AmerisourceBergen warrants. Included ine@ehings and net earnings per diluted share, casply, were the negative impacts of
an $866 million, or $0.90 per diluted share, lossh®e Alliance Boots call option; $238 million, $0.25 per diluted share, in acquisition-
related amortization; $179 million, or $0.18 pdutiid share, of store closure and other optimipatiosts; $167 million, or $0.17 per
diluted share, in Alliance Boots related tax; $88iom, or $0.09 per diluted share, of LIFO prowsi and $54 million, or $0.06 per
diluted share, of acquisition-related costs. Nehimgs in fiscal 2014 were positively impacted#3p1 million, or $0.36 per diluted
share, from the combined fair value adjustmentsaandrtization related to both our and Alliance Bowarrants to purchase
AmerisourceBergen common stock and $6 million,@0$ per diluted share, from the gain on sale effthke Care Employer Solutions,
LLC business. Included in fiscal 2013 net earniagd net earnings per diluted share, respectivadye the negative impacts of $241
million, or $0.25 per diluted share, in acquisiti@iated amortization; $151 million, or $0.16 pédutkd share, of LIFO provision; $124
million, or $0.13 per diluted share, in Alliance ®s related tax; $60 million, or $0.06 per dilustthre, of acquisition-related costs; $47
million, or $0.05 per diluted share, relating ttegal settiement with the Drug Enforcement Admiigon (DEA); $24 million, or $0.03
per diluted share, in costs related to Hurricamed8aand $8 million, or $0.01 per diluted sharecasts related to the completion of a
pharmaceutical distribution contract. Net earniimgiscal 2013 were positively impacted by $110liom, or $0.12 per diluted share,
from the combined fair value adjustments and arratitin related to both our and Alliance Boots watsdo purchase
AmerisourceBergen common stock and $13 milliors@01 per diluted share, from an additional gainhen2011 sale of the Walgreens
Health Initiatives, Inc. business relating to @wtiretention escrow.

Net sales increased by 5.8% to $76.4 billion ingi2014 compared to an increase of 0.8% in 208i3astecrease of 0.8% in 2012. |
sales growth in fiscal 2014 was attributed to newessales and an increase in comparable drugsttee over the prior year. In fiscal
2013, sales were positively impacted by our degisiorejoin the Express Scripts pharmacy proviaggwork and the acquisition of USA
Drug and BioScrip assets, both of which were piytafset by lower comparable store sales. Salesmparable drugstores increased
4.9% in 2014 compared to decreases of 1.3% and B.@%l3 and 2012, respectively. Comparable dorgstare defined as those t



have been open for at least twelve consecutive Imsomithout closure for seven or more consecutiwes @nd without a major remodel or
a natural disaster in the past twelve months. ¢¢al and acquired stores are not included as cainlpastores for the first twelve
months after the relocation or acquisition. Weraped 8,309 locations (8,207 drugstores) at Auglis014, compared to 8,582
locations (8,116 drugstores) at August 31, 20138885 locations (7,930 drugstores) at August 8122

Prescription sales increased 7.9% in 2014 compared increase of 0.4% in 2013 and a decreasel®§ B 2012. Comparable drugstore
prescription sales increased 6.8% in 2014 comptarddcreases of 1.7% and 6.1% in 2013 and 2012ectsgely. The effect of generic
drugs, which have a lower retail price, replacingnia name drugs reduced prescription sales by 1082914, 5.3% for 2013, and 3.5%
for 2012, while the effect on total sales was 0fé%®2014, 3.0% for 2013 and 1.9% for 2012. Neweagandrug introductions have led to
an increased proportion of generics on total niessa Third party sales, where reimbursementdsived from managed care
organizations, the government, employers or prirgerers, were 96.5% of prescription sales in 20548% of prescription sales in
2013, and 95.6% of prescription sales in 2012. ri#¢eive market-driven reimbursements from thirdyppayers, a number of which
typically reset in January. The total number @sgriptions filled (including immunizations) waspapximately 699 million in 2014, 683
million in 2013 and 664 million in 2012. Presciguts adjusted to 30-day equivalents were 856 mililn2014, 821 million in 2013 and
784 million in 2012.

Front-end sales increased 2.1% in 2014, 1.5% i8 20i 3.6% in 2012. The increase over the priar y&s due, in part, to new store
openings and improved sales related to non-pragmrigrugs, convenience and fresh foods, photdfings products and personal
care. Front-end sales were 35.8% of total saléisdal 2014, 37.1% of total sales in fiscal 2018 86.8% of total sales in fiscal 2012.
Comparable drugstore front-end sales increased B\@a14 compared to a decrease of 0.7% in 2013andcrease of 0.6% in 2012.
The increase in fiscal 2014 comparable front-emelssaas primarily attributable to an increase isked size partially offset by lower
customer traffic.

Gross margin as a percent of sales was 28.2% i, 2@pared to 29.3% in fiscal 2013. Gross mairgiiscal 2014 was negatively
impacted by lower retail pharmacy margins primaftigm lower third-party reimbursement; the increas®ledicare Part D mix and the
strategy to continue driving 90-day prescriptiohse#ail; fewer brand-to-generic drug conversioompared with the prior year period;
generic drug inflation on a subset of generic dragsl the mix of specialty drugs, which carry adownargin percentage. Front-end
margins were negatively impacted in the photofimghnon-prescription drug and convenience anchffeeds categories. Pharmacy and
front-end margin decreases were partially offseplchasing synergies realized from the joint vemformed by Walgreens and Alliance
Boots and a lower provision for LIFO in fiscal 201&ross margin as a percent of sales was 29.3¥cal 2013 and 28.4% in fiscal
2012. Gross margin in fiscal 2013 was positivatpacted by higher retail pharmacy margins, wheedrtipact of new generics more
than offset lower market driven reimbursementsroupd front-end margins primarily from the non-mmstion drug, personal care and
beauty care categories and a lower LIFO provisamgared to fiscal 2012.

Gross profit dollars in fiscal 2014 increased 2.d%r the prior year. The increase is primarilyilatited to increased sales and a lower
LIFO provision which was partially offset by lowestail pharmacy margins. Gross profit dollarsigtél 2013 increased 3.8% over fiscal
2012, primarily attributed to higher retail pharmawsargins.

We use the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method of intery valuation. The LIFO provision is dependepbmn inventory levels, inflation rates
and merchandise mix. The effective LIFO inflatiates were 1.5% in 2014, 2.7% in 2013 and 3.3%®&22which resulted in charges to
cost of sales of $132 million in 2014, $239 millimn2013 and $309 million in 2012. Inflation orepcription inventory was 14.0% in
2014, 10.7% in 2013 and 10.0% in 2012. As a redudeclining inventory levels, the fiscal 2014,130and 2012 LIFO provisions were
reduced by LIFO liquidations of $187 million and%®i1million and $268 million, respectively.

Selling, general and administrative expenses warg?2 of sales in fiscal 2014, compared to 24.3%atds in fiscal 2013. As a
percentage of sales, expenses were lower prinduiyto lower store compensation costs, store oomypeosts and headquarters costs,
partially offset by costs related to our store mitation plan. Selling, general and administraixpenses as a percentage of sales
increased to 24.3% in 2013 as compared to 23.62012. The increase was primarily due to higheupaocy expense, investments in
strategic initiatives and capabilities and stolarsas attributable to new store growth, which weaetially offset by lower expenses
associated with our investment in Alliance Bootsasipared to 2012.

Selling, general and administrative expense doitaneased $449 million, or 2.6% over fiscal 20T3e growth is attributable to 1.5% of
store closure and other optimization costs, 1.3%e0f store expenses, and 0.5% of comparable stdrbeadquarter expenses. These
increases were partially offset by a reductionaguasition related costs and acquisition-relate@mization, each of which were lower by
0.1%. In addition, certain nonrecurring costs wacoeirred in the prior year, each of which conttdsito a lower growth rate in the
current year including Hurricane Sandy of 0.2%alegpsts related to the DEA settlement last yed.2% and costs related to the
completion of a pharmaceutical distribution conti@f0.1%. Selling, general and administrativeenge dollars in fiscal 2013 increased
3.9% over fiscal 2012. The increase was attridateibnew store expenses of 2.4%, 0.5% from USAgperations, 0.2% of
comparable store and headquarter expenses, 0.2¥Huoricane Sandy, 0.2% in acquisition-related amation, 0.2% in costs related to
the DEA settlement, 0.1% from acquisition-relatedts and 0.1% in costs related to the completicaptiarmaceutical distribution
contract.

Earnings in the 45% Alliance Boots equity methogestment for fiscal 2014 were $617 million compai@&344 million last year.
Alliance Boots earnings are reported on a threetmtarg. The twelve month period ended August 81,.3only included 10 months
(August 2012 through May 2013) results of operaiohAlliance Boots reflected in the equity earrsinig Alliance Boots due to the
timing of this investment. Earnings included anzation expense resulting from the fair value ataia Alliance Boots assets of $42
million and $57 million in fiscal 2014 and 2013spectively. Fiscal 2013 amortization included $&8ion related to inventory fair
value adjustment:



Interest was a net expense of $156 million in fi2€d 4, $165 million in fiscal 2013 and $88 millianfiscal 2012. Interest expense for
fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was net of $6 millionpdillion, and $9 million, respectively, which weapitalized to construction projects.
The decrease in 2014 interest expense was due tephayment of the $550 million notes that matimedarch 2014 and the $1.3 billion
notes that matured in August 2013, partially offsghigher interest charges related to incremerspital and finance lease obligations.
The increase in interest expense from fiscal 2012013 was due to the $4.0 billion note issuancgeptember 2012, partially offset by
the fixed to variable interest rate swaps on ou® $illion 5.250% notes and the repayment of ouB $illlion 4.875% notes in August
2013.

Other non-operating expense was $481 million icali2014 versus income of $120 million last yelarfiscal 2014, we recorded a loss
of $866 million related to the Alliance Boots cafition. Partially offsetting the loss was an irase of $366 million in the fair value of
the AmerisourceBergen warrants and $19 milliontfieramortization of the deferred credit associati the initial value of the
warrants. The increase in the fair value of therargts was primarily attributable to the increaséhie price of AmerisourceBergen's
common stock. Other income in fiscal 2013 includadncrease in the fair value of the AmerisouragBe warrants and amortization of
the deferred credit of $111 million and $9 millisespectively.

The effective income tax rate was 42.9% for fi@l4, 37.1% for fiscal 2013 and 37.0% for 2012e Tritrease in the effective tax rate
from fiscal 2013 was primarily attributed to thes$oassociated with the Company's option to purctieesezmaining equity interest in
Alliance Boots, which did not generate a tax beaneffiscal 2014, partially offset by the favoraliepact of additional foreign source
income taxed at lower rates. The loss will begant, a capital loss for tax purposes for which@oenpany did not have any capital gains
to offset against and has recorded a full valuagitowance. The capital loss on the Alliance Bazah option is available to be carried
forward and offset against future capital gainstgh fiscal 2020. The increase in the effectiweréde from fiscal 2012 compared to
fiscal 2013 was primarily attributed to higher ntax-deductible permanent differences.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and cash equivalents were $2.6 billion at Augli, 2014, compared to $2.1 billion at AugustZ11,3. Short-term investment
objectives are to minimize risk, maintain liquiddapd maximize after-tax yields. To attain thesgctives, investment limits are placed
on the amount, type and issuer of securities. dtments are principally in U.S. Treasury marketin

Our long-term capital policy is to maintain a sigdmalance sheet and financial flexibility; reinvesbur core strategies; invest in strategic
opportunities that reinforce our core strategies meet return requirements; and return surplus tashto shareholders in the form of
dividends and share repurchases over the long term.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $8l®n at August 31, 2014, compared to $4.3 billiat August 31, 2013. The decre
was primarily a result of changes in working cdgi@ances compared to the prior year. Cash peavii operations is the principal
source of funds for expansion, investments, adipis, remodeling programs, dividends to sharehsldad stock repurchases.

Net cash used for investing activities was $1.[fdilfor fiscal 2014 versus $2.0 billion for fisca013. Additions to property ai
equipment were $1.1 billion compared to $1.2 hilllast year. In 2014, the Company opened or aed@68 locations. Acquisitions
included Kerr Drug, which contributed 76 drugsttweations as well as a specialty pharmacy andtdlgition center. In 2014, the
Company had a net reduction of 273 locations piiindtie to the sale of the Take Care Employer Sohgt LLC business, which
consisted primarily of worksite locations, and @@mpany's efforts to close underperforming drugstorTotal locations do not include
437 Healthcare Clinics and 48 worksite pharmadiasare operated primarily within our Walgreensgdtares. Total locations also
exclude locations of unconsolidated partially oweetities such as Alliance Boots. There were 2Bamhlocations added during the year
and 16 under construction at August 31, 2014, #B8uowned locations added and 41 under construa®f August 31, 2013.

Infusion and
Respiratory Specialty
Drugstores Worksites Services Pharmacy Mail Service Total
August 31, 201. 7,93( 36€ 76 11 2 8,38t
New/Relocate! 17z 14 10 2 - 19¢
Acquired 147 - 1 4 - 152
Closed/Replaced (139) (9) (5) (6) - (159)
August 31, 2013 8,11¢ 371 82 11 2 8,58:
New/Relocate! 15¢ 26 4 1 - 184
Acquired 70 - 14 - - 84
Disposec - (365) - - - (365)
Closed/Replaced (132 (32 9 (3 - (176
August 31, 2014 8,207 - 91 9 2 8,30¢

Business acquisitions in fiscal 2014 were $344iamliversus $630 million during fiscal 2013. Busisecquisitions in the current year
include the purchase of the regional drugstorercKair Drug and affiliates for $173 million, subjdo adjustment in certain
circumstances. In fiscal 2014, we purchased sharesmmon stock of AmerisourceBergen for $493immill Fiscal 2013 business
acquisitions included the purchase of the regidnadgistore chain USA Drug from Stephen L. LaFrano&ligs, Inc. and members of the
LaFrance family for $436 million net of assumedigamn 80% interest in Cystic Fibrosis FoundatioarRfacy, LLC for $29 million ne



of assumed cash, and selected other assets (pyim@scription files). Last year, we also puratthshares of common stock of
AmerisourceBergen for $224 million.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2015 are expeatelget approximately $1.7 billion, excluding businasguisitions, joint ventures and
prescription file purchases, although the actuadammay vary depending upon a variety of factmrduding, among other things, the
timing of closing of the second step transactiot e timing of implementation of certain capitabjects. In addition, we continue to
optimize and focus our resources in a manner t@ase shareholder value. In fiscal 2014, we irclcharges of $209 million related to
the closure of 67 retail locations previously armmed to be closed, most of which relates to leaiseihation and related asset
impairment charges. We expect to add approxim&@lip 120 new drugstores in fiscal 2015.

Net cash used by financing activities in fiscal 20das $1.6 billion compared to $1.5 billion in {wéor year. In fiscal 2014, we repe

our $550 million floating rate notes upon matuiityMarch 2014. In September 2012, we receivedgeds from a public offering of

$4.0 billion of notes with varying interest ratsgé¢ Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statenieart II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K).
The notes were used, in part, to repay the $3li0miB64-day bridge term loan obtained in August2@ connection with the investment
in Alliance Boots. In addition, we repaid our $biBion 4.875% notes upon maturity on August 1120 We repurchased shares totaling
$705 million in fiscal 2014, all of which was topport the needs of the employee stock plans. diptior year, we repurchased shares
totaling $615 million to support the needs of theployee stock plans. We had proceeds related phogree stock plans of $612 million
in fiscal 2014, compared to $486 million in fis€8l13. Cash dividends paid were $1.2 billion icdis2014, versus $1.0 billion a year
ago. On August 5, 2014, we announced an increatbe iquarterly dividend to 33.75 cents per shiama the previous rate of 31.5 cents
per share. The increase raised the annual divicegedrom $1.26 per share to $1.35 per share.

In connection with our long-term capital policy,rd@oard of Directors has authorized several shegpenchase programs and set a long-
term dividend payout ratio target between 30 ang&%ent of net earnings. On July 13, 2011, owarBf Directors authorized the 2012
stock repurchase program, which allowed for theirgpase of up to $2.0 billion of the Company's camrmstock prior to its planned
expiration on December 15, 2015. In August 20td,Board of Directors approved the 2014 share ofyase program, which replaces
the 2012 repurchase program and allows for thehases of up to $3.0 billion of the Company's comrstmtk prior to its expiration on
August 31, 2016. Activity related to these progsamas as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended

2014 2013 2012
2012 stock repurchase progr $ - $ - % 1,151
2014 stock repurchase program - - -
$ - $ - $ 1,151

We determine the timing and amount of repurchases fime to time based on our assessment of vafamisrs including prevailing
market conditions, alternate uses of capital, tgyj the economic environment and other factdrge timing and amount of these
purchases may change at any time and from timienta tThe Company has repurchased and may fromttrime in the future
repurchase shares on the open market through Rbk1 plans, which enable a company to repurchases at times when it otherwise
might be precluded from doing so under insideritrgdaws.

We have periodically borrowed under our commerngégier program during the current fiscal year, aagt mcrease our commercial
paper borrowings in future periods. We had avedadly short-term borrowings of $4 million of comro&l paper outstanding at a
weighted average interest rate of 0.23% for fi2€dl4. We had no commercial paper outstanding gusi31, 2014. In connection with
our commercial paper program, we maintain two umstbackup syndicated lines of credit that tolaB3 billion. The first $500

million facility expires on July 20, 2015, and alls for the issuance of up to $250 million in lettef credit. The second $850 million
facility expires on July 23, 2017, and allows foe issuance of up to $200 million in letters ofdite The issuance of letters of credit
under either of these facilities reduces avail#lderowings. Our ability to access these facilitiesubject to our compliance with the
terms and conditions of the credit facility, inciinigl financial covenants. The covenants requirtousaintain certain financial ratios
related to minimum net worth and priority debt,rejavith limitations on the sale of assets and pasel of investments. At August 31,
2014, we were in compliance with all such covenafitse Company pays a facility fee to the finandiagks to keep these lines of credit
active. At August 31, 2014, there were no lettérsredit issued against these facilities and wreeruly do not anticipate any future
letters of credit to be issued against these fagsli We currently expect to amend or replacedtfiesilities in connection with the pending
Alliance Boots second step transaction and relfaacing.

As of October 20, 2014, our credit ratings were:

Long-Term Debt Rating Commercial
Rating Agency Paper Rating Outlook
Moody's Baa2 P-2 Stable
Standard & Poor’ BBB A-2 Stable

In assessing our credit strength, both Moody's@taddard & Poor's consider our business modeltadagtructure, financial policies and
financial performance as well as the financial parfance and level of outstanding debt of Alliana®8. Our credit ratings impact our
borrowing costs, access to capital markets andatipgriease costs. The rating agency ratings @rescommendations to buy, sell or
hold our debt securities or commercial paper. Eatihg may be subject to revision or withdrawahay time by the assigning rating
organization and should be evaluated independeh#yy other rating.



On August 5, 2014, we entered into an amendmeietpurchase and option agreement, which among titings, accelerated the option
period to the period beginning August 5, 2014 amdirey February 5, 2015. Pursuant to the amendmengxercised the call option on
August 5, 2014 and are obligated to make a casimeatyof £3.133 billion (equivalent to approximat8ly.2 billion based on exchange
rates as of August 31, 2014) and issue approxignaet.3 million shares of common stock, with theoamt and form of such
consideration being subject to adjustment in cert@aicumstances including if the volume weighted@+age price of our common stock is
below $31.18 per share during a period shortly teefioe closing of the second step transaction.(M/&/algreens Boots Alliance, as
applicable) also would assume the then-outstandifg of Alliance Boots upon the closing of the setetep transaction. As of its
March 31, 2014 fiscal year end, Alliance Boots tatdl borrowings of approximately £5.7 billion (égalent to approximately $9.5

billion based on exchange rates as of March 31420We also expect to incur other fees and exgseassociated with the closing of the
transaction.

Our obligation to complete the second step trafmact not subject to the receipt of financing.sBd on exchange rates as of August 31,
2014, we currently estimate that the total amodifiiieds required to pay the cash portion of theoedcstep transaction consideration,
refinance all or substantially all of the AllianBeots' existing long-term debt, and pay related faed expenses, will be approximately
$15 billion. We currently expect to finance theasd step transaction cash consideration and/aefirancing of all or substantially all
of the indebtedness of Alliance Boots with a coration of the issuance of new debt (which may ineladange of instruments including
commercial paper, borrowings under existing or hewk credit facilities, and issuance of debt séies)i and available cash on our
balance sheet. We will determine the specificignisources and related matters based on our ass@ssf various factors including
prevailing market conditions, the economic enviremtrand other factors.

Pursuant to our arrangements with AmerisourceBeagehAlliance Boots, we and Alliance Boots haverthbt, but not the obligation, to
purchase a minority equity position in Amerisoureedgen over time pursuant to open market purchambsvarrants to acquire
AmerisourceBergen common stock. WAB Holdings, LiaGyewly formed entity jointly owned by Walgreemslglliance Boots, which
is consolidated by Walgreens, can acquire up t8589795 shares, which represents approximately fA##ecmutstanding
AmerisourceBergen common stock on a fully dilutedib, assuming exercise in full of the warrantee @amount of permitted open
market purchases is subject to increase in cecteinmstances. We have purchased a total of appately 11.5 million
AmerisourceBergen shares in the open market, inguid.5 million with a cost basis of $493 milliom fiscal 2014. We have funded and
plan to continue funding these purchases over timmigh cash contributions to WAB Holdings. Shamechases may be made from
time to time in open market transactions or purstmmstruments and plans complying with Rule Qb5

If we elect to exercise the two warrants issuedmerisourceBergen in full, Walgreens would, subjedhe terms and conditions of such
warrants, be required to make a cash payment abappately $584.4 million in connection with theeggise of the first warrant during a
six-month period beginning in March 2016 and $598ifion in connection with the exercise of the eed warrant during a six-month
period beginning in March 2017. Similarly, if Adiice Boots elects to exercise the two warranteisby AmerisourceBergen in full,
Alliance Boots would, subject to the terms and d¢tioals of such warrants, be required to pay AmeniseBergen similar amounts upon
the exercise of their warrants in 2016 and 201dr &d Alliance Boots ability to invest in equity AmerisourceBergen above certain
thresholds is subject to the receipt of regulatgprovals.

See Item 7A (Qualitative and Quantitative Disclesuabout Market Risk) below for a discussion ofaierfinancing and market risks.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The information set forth in Note 12 to our Condated Financial Statements included in Part ImI&of this Form 10-K is incorporated
herein by reference.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatigepted in the United States of
America and include amounts based on managemeutlsmt judgments and estimates. Actual results difésr from these estimates.
Management believes that any reasonable deviationm those judgments and estimates would not hawatarial impact on our
consolidated financial position or results of opiers. To the extent that the estimates usedrdiféen actual results, however,
adjustments to the statement of earnings and gmmnekng balance sheet accounts would be neces$agse adjustments would be made
in future statements. Some of the more signifiestimates include goodwill and other intangibleeasmpairment, allowance for

doubtful accounts, vendor allowances, asset impaits; liability for closed locations, liability fdnsurance claims, cost of sales, equity
method investments and income taxes. We use Hogvfog methods to determine our estimates:

Goodwill and other intangible asset impairmenBoodwill and other indefinite-lived intangiblesa$s are not amortized, but are
evaluated for impairment annually during the fougttarter, or more frequently if an event occursimmumstances change that would
more likely than not reduce the fair value of aomipg unit below its carrying value. As part aframpairment analysis for each
reporting unit, we engage a third party appraisai fo assist in the determination of estimated ¥alue for each reporting unit. This
determination includes estimating the fair valumg$oth the income and market approaches. Thaieapproach requires
management to estimate a number of factors for egadrting unit, including projected future opengtresults, economic projections,
anticipated future cash flows and discount raf#se market approach estimates fair value using eoafgle marketplace fair value data
from within a comparable industry grouping.

The determination of the fair value of the repartimits and the allocation of that value to indiidtlassets and liabilities within those
reporting units requires us to make significaninestes and assumptions. These estimates and assosngrimarily include, but are not
limited to: the selection of appropriate peer graompanies; control premiums appropriate for adtjoms in the industries in which w



compete; the discount rate; terminal growth rades|, forecasts of revenue, operating income, degtieniand amortization and capital
expenditures. The allocation requires severalygealto determine fair value of assets and ligslincluding, among other things,
purchased prescription files, customer relationshipd trade names. Although we believe our estisnattfair value are reasonable,
actual financial results could differ from thoséirestes due to the inherent uncertainty involvethaking such estimates. Changes in
assumptions concerning future financial resultstber underlying assumptions could have a significapact on either the fair value of
the reporting units, the amount of the goodwill aiyment charge, or both.

We also compared the sum of the estimated fairegatii the reporting units to the Company's tothleras implied by the market value
of the Company's equity and debt securities. €bmparison indicated that, in total, our assumgtiand estimates were reasonable.
However, future declines in the overall market eaddi the Company's equity and debt securities mdigate that the fair value of one or
more reporting units has declined below its cagwalue.

One measure of the sensitivity of the amount ofdgalh impairment charges to key assumptions isahmunt by which each reporting
unit "passed” (fair value exceeds the carrying amjoor "failed” (the carrying amount exceeds faitue) the first step of the goodwiill
impairment test. Our reporting units' fair valgeseeded their carrying amounts ranging from agprately 12% to more than 117%.

Generally, changes in estimates of expected futasd flows would have a similar effect on the eated fair value of the reporting unit.
That is, a 1% change in estimated future cash floagld change the estimated fair value of the rigpgunit by approximately 1%. The
estimated long-term rate of net sales growth came lassignificant impact on the estimated futuréhdmvs, and therefore, the fair value
of each reporting unit. Of the other key assunmtithat impact the estimated fair values, mostnteygpunits have the greatest sensitivity
to changes in the estimated discount rate. Thepaagnbelieves that its estimates of future cashifland discount rates are reasonable,
but future changes in the underlying assumptionsdediffer due to the inherent uncertainty in maksuch estimates.

We have not made any material changes to the methexdaluating goodwill and intangible asset impaEnts during the last three years.
Based on current knowledge, we do not believe tisemereasonable likelihood that there will be d@arial change in the estimates or
assumptions used to determine impairment.

Allowance for doubtful accoun— The provision for bad debt is based on both hisabwrite-off percentages and specifically idéet
receivables. We have not made any material chawngbe method of estimating our allowance for diwltaccounts during the last three
years. Based on current knowledge, we do not\eeligere is a reasonable likelihood that there vl material change in the estims

or assumptions used to determine the allowance.

Vendor allowances Vendor allowances are principally received assalt of purchases, sales or promotion of vengooslucts.
Allowances are generally recorded as a reductianvatory and are recognized as a reduction df@iosales when the related
merchandise is sold. Those allowances receivegrianoting vendors' products are offset againsedibing expense and result in a
reduction of selling, general and administrativpanses to the extent of advertising incurred, tthexcess treated as a reduction of
inventory costs. We have not made any materiaigésito the method of estimating our vendor all@earduring the last three years.
Based on current knowledge, we do not believe tiseseareasonable likelihood that there will be d@arial change in the estimates or
assumptions used to determine vendor allowances.

Asset impairment- The impairment of long-lived assets is assesseeldbaigson both qualitative and quantitative factorsluding years
of operation and expected future cash flows, asgttefor impairment annually or whenever eventsimumstances indicate that a
certain asset may be impaired. If the future dlsirs reveal that the carrying value of the assetig may not be recoverable, an
impairment charge is immediately recorded. We hatemade any material changes to the method whatshg our asset impairments
during the last three years. Based on current ledge, we do not believe there is a reasonabléHikad that there will be a material
change in the estimates or assumptions used totateasset impairments.

Liability for closed location— The liability is based on the present value tdifel rent obligations and other related costs ¢ghestimated
sublease rent) to the first lease option date. hdle not made any material changes to the methestiofiating our liability for closed
locations during the last three years. Based oreotiknowledge, we do not believe there is a nealsie likelihood that there will be a
material change in the estimates or assumptiorss tasgetermine the liability.

Liability for insurance claim— The liability for insurance claims is recorded®a on estimates for claims incurred and is natodisted.
The provisions are estimated in part by considehistprical claims experience, demographic factors other actuarial assumptions. We
have not made any material changes to the methestiofiating our liability for insurance claims cwgithe last three years. Based on
current knowledge, we do not believe there is aorable likelihood that there will be a materiahiche in the estimates or assumptions
used to determine the liability.

Cost of sales- Drugstore cost of sales is derived based on fudistile scanning information with an estimatedforinkage and adjusted
based on periodic inventory counts. Inventoriesvalued at the lower of cost or market determimgthe last-in, first-out (LIFO)
method. We have not made any material changé®tméethod of estimating cost of sales during teethree years. Based on current
knowledge, we do not believe there is a reasorialhood that there will be a material changeha estimates or assumptions used to
determine cost of sales.

Equity method investmer- We use the equity method to account for investmientsmpanies if the investment provides the apitit

exercise significant influence, but not controlepeperating and financial policies of the invest&rir proportionate share of the net
income or loss of these companies is included insclidated net earnings. Judgment regarding thed &f influence over each equity
method investment includes considering key facsah as our ownership interest, representatioh®@ibadard of directors, participatir



in policy-making decisions and material intercompémansactions.

The underlying net assets of the Company's equitthad investment in Alliance Boots include goodwilld indefinite-lived intangible
assets. These assets are evaluated for impaianenglly or more frequently if an event occursiorumstances change that would more
likely than not reduce the fair value of a repagtimit below its carrying value. Based on the Camys evaluation as of August 31,
2014, the fair value of one of the Alliance Bookt@pmaceutical wholesale reporting units did noteexkits carrying value by a significant
amount. The Company utilizes a three-month lagporting its share of equity income in Alliancedss including for this reporting

unit. Goodwill allocated to this reporting unit Byliance Boots as of May 31, 2014 was £255 milli6a15 million based on the
Company's 45% ownership percentage (approximated3 $nillion using May 31, 2014 exchange rates)e Tompany will continue to
monitor this reporting unit in accordance with Aaoting Standards Codification 350, Intangibles o@will and Other.

Income taxe— We are subject to routine income tax audits datir periodically in the normal course of businedsS. federal, state,
local and foreign tax authorities raise questi@ggarding our tax filing positions, including thenthg and amount of deductions and the
allocation of income among various tax jurisdiciorin evaluating the tax benefits associated withvarious tax filing positions, we
record a tax benefit for uncertain tax positionsigghe highest cumulative tax benefit that is mdeely than not to be realized.
Adjustments are made to our liability for unrecagpu tax benefits in the period in which we deteentime issue is effectively settled with
the tax authorities, the statute of limitations ieap for the return containing the tax positiormdren more information becomes available.
Our liability for unrecognized tax benefits, inclng accrued penalties and interest, is primarigjuided in other long-term liabilities and
current income taxes on our consolidated balaneetsland in income tax expense in our consolidatgdments of earnings.

In determining our provision for income taxes, vée @n annual effective income tax rate based biyéar income, permanent

differences between book and tax income, and stgtiicome tax rates. The effective income tag aso reflects our assessment of the
ultimate outcome of tax audits in addition to aoyefgn-based income deemed to be taxable in thieetlSitates. Discrete events such as
audit settlements or changes in tax laws are rézediin the period in which they occur. Based orrent knowledge, we do not believe
there is a reasonable likelihood that there wilabaaterial change in the estimates or assumptised to determine the amounts recorded
for income taxes.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMITMENTS
The following table lists our contractual obligat®oand commitments at August 31, 2014 (in millions)

Payments Due by Perioc

Less Than 1
Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5Years  Over5 Years
Operating lease® $ 33,72. $ 2,49¢ $ 4,92 3 4,61€ $ 21,68:
Purchase obligatior®:
Open inventory purchase ordt 1,537 1,537 - - -
Real estate developme 177 13t 38 4 -
Other corporate obligatior 64¢ 203 283 14& 17
Alliance Boots purchase option exerc® 5,201 5,201 - - -
Long-term debt* 4,49¢ 75€ 7 2,011 1,71¢
Interest payment on lo-term deb 1,25¢ 13¢ 25¢ 20¢ 65C
Insurance’ 57¢ 14¢ 202 80 14~
Retiree health 427 12 27 33 35t
Closed location obligations 262 51 60 38 11z
Capital lease obligations® 49z 16 28 28 42C
Finance lease obligatiol 26€ - 1 - 267
((4))ther longterm liabilities reflected on the balance sh 1,21 107 93¢ 17¢ 6=
Total $ 50,26¢ $ 10,80 $ 6,06¢ $ 7,34 % 26,05
*Recorded on balance sheet.
@ Amounts for operating leases and capital leasationclude certain operating expenses under tleases such as common area
maintenance, insurance and real estate taxes.e Bxpgnses were $429 million for the fiscal yeaeehAugust 31, 201-
@ Purchase obligations include agreements to puechasds or services that are enforceable and yelgialdiing and that specify all
significant terms, including open purchase ord
@) Pursuant to the Alliance Boots Purchase and Ogtgneement, as amended, the Company is requirsthke a cash payment of

£3.133 billion (approximately $5.2 billion at Aud&l, 2014) if the second step transaction is cetepl The Company is also
required to issue approximately 144.3 million conmsbares if the second step transaction is contpéatd would assume the then-
outstanding debt of Alliance Boots upon closinghef transaction, neither of which is reflectedhia above table

@) Includes $127 million ($73 million in 1-3 yeargi&million in 3-5 years and $6 million over 5 ygan§ unrecognized tax benefits
recorded under Accounting Standards Codificatiopi@@40, Income Taxe

The obligations and commitments included in théetalbove do not include the obligations and committs of unconsolidated partially
owned entities, such as Alliance Boots, of whichaman 45% of the outstanding share capital as ofittie of this report. The expected
timing of payments of the obligations above israatied based on current information. Timing of pagita and actual amounts paid may
be different, depending on the time of receipt@bds or services, or changes to agreed-upon amfaurgesme obligations.



On August 5, 2014, we entered into an amendmethiet®urchase and Option Agreement, which among tirgs, accelerated the
option period to the period beginning August 5,42@hd ending February 5, 2015. Pursuant to thendment, we exercised the call
option on August 5, 2014 and are obligated to naakash payment of £3.133 billion (equivalent toragpnately $5.2 billion based on
exchange rates as of August 31, 2014) and issuexipmtely 144.3 million shares of our common stogkh the amount and form of
such consideration being subject to adjustmenértam circumstances including if the volume wegghtiverage price of our common
stock is below $31.18 per share during a periodtishioefore the closing of the second step trarigactWe also would assume the then-
outstanding debt of Alliance Boots upon the closifithe second step transaction.

In addition, pursuant to our arrangements with AsmerrceBergen and Alliance Boots, we and Allianc®®® have the right, but not the
obligation, to purchase a minority equity positinrAmerisourceBergen over time, including open magurchases and warrants to
acquire AmerisourceBergen common stock. If wetdle exercise the two warrants issued by AmeriseBergen in full, Walgreens
would, subject to the terms and conditions of sualrants, be required to make a cash payment abaijppately $584.4 million in
connection with the exercise of the first warrantiglg a six-month period beginning in March 2016 §595.8 million in connection with
the exercise of the second warrant during a sixtmpariod beginning in March 2017. Similarly, iflidnce Boots elects to exercise the
two warrants issued by AmerisourceBergen in fullighice Boots would, subject to the terms and ctiows of such warrants, be required
to pay AmerisourceBergen similar amounts upon Kegaése of their warrants in 2016 and 2017. Ifgkeond step transaction is
completed, Walgreens would acquire the warrantd bglAlliance Boots and be required to make cagtmgats of approximately $1.2
billion in order to exercise each tranche of watsarOur and Alliance Boots ability to invest inudg in AmerisourceBergen above
certain thresholds is subject to the receipt ofil&ry approvals. See "Liquidity and Capital Reses" above.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not have any unconsolidated special purpotiies and, except as described herein, we dba¢ significant exposure to any
off-balance sheet arrangements. The term "offdzaaheet arrangement” generally means any trémsaagreement or other
contractual arrangement to which an entity uncadatdd with us is a party, under which we haveafiy obligation arising under a
guarantee contract, derivative instrument or vadgiaiierest; or (ii) a retained or contingent ietgrin assets transferred to such entity or
similar arrangement that serves as credit, liquiditmarket risk support for such assets.

Letters of credit are issued to support purchasigatipns and commitments (as reflected on the @aital Obligations and
Commitments table) as follows (in millions):

August 31

201/

Inventory purchase commitmer $ 151
Insurance 25¢
Real estate development 9
Total $ 41¢

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements othetrthioge disclosed on the Contractual Obligatioms@ommitments table. Both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet financingnaltiees are considered when pursuing our capitattsire and capital allocation
objectives.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8q&ASB) issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Congragth Customers, as a new
Topic, ASC Topic 606. The new revenue recognifitandard provides a five-step analysis of transastio determine when and how
revenue is recognized. The core principle is ghedmpany should recognize revenue to depict émster of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the conslie to which the entity expects to be entitleédkchange for those goods or services.
This ASU is effective for annual periods beginnafter December 15, 2016 (fiscal 2018) and shalifgdied retrospectively to each
period presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustae of the date of adoption. The Company isusatalg the effect of adopting this
new accounting guidance, but does not expect amtoptill have a material impact on the Company'siteof operations, cash flows or
financial position.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, RepuaytDiscontinued Operations and Disclosures of Biatsoof Components of an
Entity. This ASU raises the threshold for a disgpds qualify as discontinued operations and rexguitew disclosures for individually
material disposal transactions that do not meetidfimition of a discontinued operation. Under tfesv standard, companies report
discontinued operations when they have a dispbaaképresents a strategic shift that has or wileha major impact on operations or
financial results. This update will be applied gpectively and is effective for annual periods, anterim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2014 (fiscal 20163rl\eadoption is permitted provided the disposas wat previously disclosed. This
update will not have a material impact on the Comyfsareported results of operations and finanasiton. This ASU is non-cash in
nature and will not affect the Company's cash posit

In May 2013, the FASB reissued an exposure drafease accounting that would require entities togaize assets and liabilities arising
from lease contracts on the balance sheet. Thpopea exposure draft states that lessees anddesdsmild apply a "right-of-use model”

in accounting for all leases. Under the proposedet lessees would recognize an asset for the taglse the leased asset, and a liability
for the obligation to make rental payments overldase term. When measuring the asset and lighiliriable lease payments are
excluded, whereas renewal options that providgrifsdant economic incentive upon renewal wouldrmduded. The accounting by a
lessor would reflect its retained exposure to thlesror benefits of the underlying leased assetes&or would recognize an as



representing its right to receive lease paymerdgedban the expected term of the lease. The leqsmnse from real estate based leases
would continue to be recorded under a straightdipproach, but other leases not related to reafesatould be expensed using an
effective interest method that would acceleratedesxpense. A final standard is currently expetttde issued in calendar 2014 and
would be effective no earlier than annual reporpiegods beginning on January 1, 2017 (fiscal Z0t8he Company). The proposed
standard, as currently drafted, would have a natenpact on the Company's financial position dmlitmpact on the Company's reported
results of operations is being evaluated. The ghphthis exposure draft is non-cash in naturewadld not affect the Company's cash
position.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

This report and other documents that we file oniglr with the Securities and Exchange Commissianado forward-looking statements
that are based on current expectations, estinfaresasts and projections about our future perfogaaour business, our beliefs and our
management's assumptions. In addition, we, orsie our behalf, may make forward-looking statetm@mpress releases or written
statements, on the Company's website or in our agmuations and discussions with investors and ategip the normal course of
business through meetings, webcasts, phone cafiference calls and other communications. Sonseidf forward-looking statements
may be based on certain data and forecasts relatiogr business and industry that we have obtdued internal surveys, market
research, publicly available information and indygtublications. Industry publications, surveysl amarket research generally state that
the information they provide has been obtained fsmurces believed to be reliable, but that the moguand completeness of such
information is not guaranteed. Statements thahatdistorical facts are forward-looking statenseiricluding, without limitation,
statements regarding our future financial and dpeggerformance, as well as forward-looking infation concerning our investment in
Alliance Boots and the arrangements and transactiontemplated by the Purchase and Option AgreewitmiAlliance Boots and their
possible effects, the proposed holding companygasozation, our commercial agreement with AmeriseBergen, the arrangements and
transactions contemplated by our framework agreémigh AmerisourceBergen and Alliance Boots andrtpessible effects, generic
inflation or deflation, payer reimbursement, estiasaof the impact of developments on our earniegsings per share and other
financial metrics, network participation, coughftaind flu season, prescription volume, pharmaadgssaénds, prescription margins,
number and location of new store openings, veryrer and customer relationships and terms, pesséw contracts or contract
extensions, competition, economic and businessitionsl, outcomes of litigation and regulatory megtdéhe level of capital expenditures,
industry trends, demographic trends, growth stiagedinancial results, cost reduction initiativasquisition and joint venture synergies,

competitive strengths and changes in legislatioregulations. Words such as "expect,” "likely," tlook," "forecast," "would," "could,"
"should," "can," "will," "project," "intend," "plaji "goal," "target," "continue," "sustain," "synegrg "on track," "headwind," "tailwind,"
"believe,"” "seek," "estimate," "anticipate," "maygossible," "assume," variations of such words sinalar expressions are intended to

identify such forward-looking statements, which arade pursuant to the safe harbor provisions oPtheate Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995.

These forward-looking statements are not guaramtefegure performance and are subject to risksetainties and assumptions that
could cause actual results to vary materially fthose indicated, including, but not limited to:osle relating to the Purchase and Option
Agreement and other agreements relating to ouegfiapartnership with Alliance Boots, the arrangeis and transactions contemplated
thereby and their possible effects, the proposelditig company reorganization, the risks that onmore closing conditions to the
transactions may not be satisfied or waived, dmaly basis or otherwise, including that a governtakentity may prohibit, delay or
refuse to grant approval for the consummation efttansactions or that the required approvals eyCthmpany's shareholders may not be
obtained; the risk of a material adverse changetiigaCompany or Alliance Boots or either of theispective businesses may suffer as a
result of disruption or uncertainty relating to th@nsactions; risks associated with changes in@o@ and business conditions generally
or in the markets in which we or Alliance Bootstapate; risks associated with new business aaadsactivities; risks associated with
acquisitions, joint ventures, strategic investmemts divestitures, including those associated entiss-border transactions; risks
associated with governance and control matteilss associated with the Company's ability to tineiyange for and consummate
financing for the contemplated transactions on piatde terms; risks relating to the Company anibAte Boots' ability to successfully
integrate our operations, systems and employealizeanticipated synergies and achieve anticiptatacial results, tax and operating
results in the amounts and at the times anticipaedpotential impact of announcement of the @matisns or consummation of the
transactions on relationships and terms, inclugiitg employees, vendors, payers, customers and ettoys; the amounts and timing of
costs and charges associated with our optimizatitintives; our ability to realize expected savdrand benefits in the amounts and at the
times anticipated; changes in management's assamsptiur commercial agreement with AmerisourceBergjee arrangements and
transactions contemplated by our framework agreémith AmerisourceBergen and Alliance Boots andrtpessible effects; risks
associated with equity investments in AmerisourcgBe including market fluctuations and whethentlarants to invest in
AmerisourceBergen will be exercised and the ramifims thereof; the occurrence of any event, chang¢her circumstance that could
give rise to the termination, cross-terminatiommdification of any of the transaction documertg; isks associated with transitions in
supply arrangements; risks that legal proceedirag Ioe initiated related to the transactions; thewamhof costs, fees, expenses and
charges incurred by Walgreens and Alliance Bodtged to the transactions; the ability to retaig gersonnel; changes in financial
markets, interest rates and foreign currency exghaates; the risks associated with internationainess operations; the risk of
unexpected costs, liabilities or delays; changesetwork participation and reimbursement and otbiens; risks of inflation in the costs

of goods, including generic drugs; risks associati the operation and growth of our customer lyprogram; risks associated with
outcomes of legal and regulatory matters, and abmiglegislation, regulations or interpretatiamsreof; and other factors described in
Item 1A (Risk Factors) above and in other documtraswe file or furnish with the SEC. Should @remore of these risks or
uncertainties materialize, or should underlyinguagstions prove incorrect, actual results may vaagamally from those indicated or
anticipated by such forward-looking statementscadkdingly, you are cautioned not to place unduiamek on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date theeynade. Except to the extent required by law, waataindertake, and expressly
disclaim, any duty or obligation to update publialyy forward-looking statement after the date tagement is made, whether as a result
of new information, future events, changes in aggions or otherwise.



ltem 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk

We are exposed to interest rate volatility withanebto future issuances of fixed-rate debt, andtiexj and future issuances of floating-
rate debt. Primary exposures include U.S. Treasuigs, LIBOR, and commercial paper rates. Frome tio time, we use interest rate
swaps and forward-starting interest rate swap®tiyé our exposure to interest rate changes, taedtie volatility of our financing costs
and, based on current and projected market conditichieve a desired proportion of fixed versoatihg-rate debt. Generally under
these swaps, we agree with a counterparty to egehtre difference between fixed-rate and floatiatg-interest amounts based on an
agreed upon notional principal amount. In Septaribé4, we entered into an additional forward-gtgrinterest rate swap for a $250
million notional amount.

Information regarding our interest rate swap tratieas is set forth in Note 10 to our Consolida&@aancial Statements in Part Il, Item 8
of this Form 10-K. These financial instruments sgasitive to changes in interest rates. On AuglLis2014, we had $1.0 billion in long-
term debt obligations that had floating interes¢sa A one percentage point increase or decreaaterest rates would increase or
decrease the annual interest expense we recogrdzih@ cash we pay for interest expense by appairign$10 million.

In connection with our Purchase and Option Agredmath Alliance Boots and the transactions conteatgal thereby, our exposure to
foreign currency risks, primarily with respect ketBritish pound Sterling, and to a lesser exteatfuro and certain other foreign
currencies, is expected to increase. We are eggogie translation of foreign currency earnirgthe U.S. dollar as a result of our 45%
interest in Alliance Boots, which we account fomgsthe equity method of accounting on a three-mmdeng. This exposure will further
increase if the second step transaction is contpldt@reign currency forward contracts and otheiveléve instruments may be used
from time to time in some instances to hedge ihduin part certain risks relating to foreign cemcy denominated assets and liabilities,
intercompany transactions, and in connection wétjugsitions, joint ventures or investments outshie United States. As of August 31,
2014 and August 31, 2013, we did not have any andshg foreign exchange derivative instruments.

Changes in AmerisourceBergen common stock priceegody volatility may have a significant impact the value of the warrants to
acquire AmerisourceBergen common stock describ&tbite 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statemengairt Il, Item 8 of this Form
10-K. As of August 31, 2014, a one dollar changAinerisourceBergen's common stock would, holditgofactors constant, increase
or decrease the fair value of the Company's washayn$22 million and a one percent change in AreriseBergen's equity volatility
would, holding other factors constant, increasdemrease the fair value of the Company's warrang&tmillion. Additionally, the
Company holds an investment in AmerisourceBergemncon stock. As of August 31, 2014, a one dollangfe in AmerisourceBergen's
common stock would increase or decrease the faiewa the Company's investment by $12 million.




Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Walgreen Co. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended August 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(In millions, except per share amounts)

2014 2013 2012
Net sales $ 76,39: 72,217 $ 71,63
Cost of sales 54,82: 51,09¢ 51,29:
Gross Profif 21,56¢ 21,11¢ 20,34:
Selling, general and administrative exper 17,99: 17,54: 16,87¢
Gain on sale of busine - 20 -
Equity earnings in Alliance Boots 617 344 -
Operating Incom: 4,19¢ 3,94( 3,46¢
Interest expense, n (15€) (16%) (88)
Other (expense) income (487) 12C -
Earnings Before Income Tax Provisi 3,551 3,89¢ 3,37¢
Income tax provision 1,52¢ 1,44¢ 1,24¢
Net Earnings 2,031 2,45( 2,12
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling intés: (99) - -
Net Earnings Attributable to Walgreen ¢ $ 1,937 2,450 $ 2,121
Net earnings per common share attributable to VéalyiCo— basic $ 2.0¢ 25¢ % 2.4:
Net earnings per common share attributable to VéalyiCo- diluted 2.0C 2.5¢€ 2.4z
Average shares outstandi 953.1 946.( 874.1
Dilutive effect of stock options 12.1 9.2 5.4
Average diluted shares 965.2 955.2 880.1

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkS8tents are integral parts of these statements.




Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Walgreen Co. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended August 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

(In millions)
2014 2013 2012
Comprehensive Incorr

Net Earning: $ 2,031 $ 245 $ 2,12

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Postretirement liabilit (48) (5) 52
Changes in unrecognized gain on avai-for-sale investment 10€ 1 -
Unrealized loss on cash flow hed: (27 - -
Share of other comprehensive loss of Alliancet8 (42) (59 -
Cumulative translation adjustments 28€ (103 -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 27€ (16€) 52
Total Comprehensive Incol 2,301 2,28¢ 2,17¢
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontroliirigrests (99) - -
Comprehensive income attributable to Walgreen Co. $ 2,208 $ 2,28¢ $ 2,17¢

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatks8tents are integral parts of these statements.




Balance,
August 31,
2011

Net earning:

Dividends
declared
($.95 per
share)

Treasury stoc
purchase:

Employee
stock
purchase
and option
plans

Stock-based
compensati

Employee
stock loan
receivable

Shares issuec
for
investment
in Alliance
Boots

Postretiremer
liability, net
of $32 tax
expense

Balance,
August 31,
2012

Net earning:

Dividends
declared
($1.14 per
share)

Treasury stoc
purchase:

Employee
stock
purchase
and option
plans

Stock-based
compensati

Employee
stock loan
receivable

Cumulative
currency
translation,
net of $55
tax benefit

Share of othe

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equit

Walgreen Co. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended August 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(In millions, except shares and per share amounts)

Equity attributable to Walgreen Co.

Employee Accumulated
Common Common Treasury Stock Other
Stock Stock Stock Paid-In Loan Comprehensive Retained Noncontrolling Total
Shares Amount Amount Capital Receivable Income (Loss) Earnings Interests Equity

889,294,13 $ 8C $ (4,926 $ 834 $ (34 $ 16 $ 1887 $ - $ 14,84
- - - - - - 2,127 - 2,12i
- - - - - - (84¢) - (84¢)
(34,720,21) - (1,19)) - - - - - (1,19)
6,088,74! - 22¢ (75) - - - - 154
- - - 99 - - - - 99
- - - - 15 - - - 15
83,392,67 0 2,90z 78 - - - - 2,981
- - - - - 52 - - 52
944,055,33 $ 8C $ (2,989 $ 93¢ $ (19 $ 68 $ 20,15t $ - $§ 18,23¢
- - - - - - 2,45( - 2,45(
- - - - - - (1,087 - (1,089
(13,797,49) - (615) - - - - - (615)
16,337,73 - 48€ 34 - - - - 52C
- - - 104 - - - - 104
- - - - 8 - - - 8
- - - - - (103) - - (103)



comprehensiv
loss of
Alliance
Boots, net ¢
$32 tax
benefit
Unrecognized
gain on
available-
for-sale
investments
net of tax
Postretiremer
liability, net
of $3 tax
benefit
Balance,
August 31,
2013
Net earning:
Dividends
declared
($1.28 per
share)
Treasury stoc
purchase:
Employee
stock
purchase
and option
plans
Stock-based
compensati
Employee
stock loan
receivable
Cumulative
currency
translation,
net of $154
tax expens:
Share of othe
comprehen:
loss of
Alliance
Boots, net ¢
$22 tax
benefit
Unrecognized
gain on
available-
for-sale
investments
net of $63
tax expens:
Unrealized
loss on casl
flow hedge,
net of $17
tax benefit
Post
retirement
liability, net
of $29 tax
benefit
Other

Balance,

- - - - - (59) - - (59)

- - - - - 1 - - 1

- - - - - ©) - - ©)
946,59557 $  8C $ (3,119 $ 107 $ (1) $ (99 $ 2152 $ - $ 19,45
- - - - - 1,93: 9¢ 2,031

) ; - - : - (1,226) - (1,226)
(11,810,35) - (705) - - - - - (705)
15,601,66 - 622 (16) - - - - 60€
- - - 114 - - - - 114

- - - - 6 - - - 6

- - - - - 28€ - - 28€

- - - - - (42) - - (42)

- - - - - 10€ - - 10€

) - - - g 27 - - (27

- - - - - (49) - - (49)

- - - - - - - 5 5




August 31,
2014 950,386,88 $ 8C $ (319) ¢ 117 $ 5) $ 176 $§ 22,22¢ $ 104 $§ 20,56:

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkStents are integral parts of these statements.




Consolidated Balance Sheets
Walgreen Co. and Subsidiaries
At August 31, 2014 and 2013
(In millions, except shares and per share amounts)

Assets 2014 2013
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2,64 $ 2,10¢
Accounts receivable, n 3,21¢ 2,632
Inventories 6,07¢ 6,852
Other current assets 302 284
Total Current Assets 12,24: 11,87¢
Non-Current Assets
Property and equipment, at cost, less accumulagprkdiation and amortizatic 12,257 12,13¢
Equity investment in Alliance Boo 7,24¢ 6,261
Alliance Boots call optiol - 83¢
Goodwill 2,35¢ 2,41(C
Other non-current assets 3,07¢ 1,95¢
Total Non-Current Assets 24 ,94( 23,607
Total Assets $ 37,18: $ 35,48:

Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities

Shor-term borrowings $ 774 $ 57C
Trade accounts payak 4,31¢ 4,63¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 3,701 3,571
Income taxes 10% 101
Total Current Liabilities 8,89¢ 8,88¢
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term debi 3,73¢ 4,47
Deferred income taxe 1,04¢ 60C
Other non-current liabilities 2,94 2,067
Total Non-Current Liabilities 7,72¢€ 7,144
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 1
Equity

Preferred stock, $.0625 par value; authorized 3Romishares; none issut - -
Common stock, $.078125 par value; authorized 3lidiishares; issued and outstanding 1,028,180,1

shares in 2014 and 20 80 80
Paic-in capital 1,172 1,07¢
Employee stock loan receivat (5) (17)
Retained earning 22,22¢ 21,52
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I 17¢ (98)
Treasury stock at cost, 77,793,261 shares in 20d8&,584,572 shares in 2013 (3,199 (3,119

Total Walgreen Co. Equity 20,45 19,45¢
Noncontrolling interests 104 -

Total Equity 20,56 19,45«

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 37,18 $ 35,48

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents are integral parts of these statements.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Walgreen Co. and Subsidiaries
For the years ended August 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

(In millions)
2014 2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net earning: $ 2,031 $ 245 $ 2,12]
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net caskiged by operating activitie-
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,31¢ 1,28: 1,16¢€
Change in fair value of warrants and related arpatitin (38%) (120 -
Loss on exercise of call optic 86¢€ - -
Deferred income taxe 177 14¢ 26&
Stock compensation exper 114 104 99
Equity earnings in Alliance Boo (617) (344) -
Other 181 113 43
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Accounts receivable, n (61€) (449 394
Inventories 86C 321 1,08:
Other current asse (20 18 4
Trade accounts payak (339 182 (439
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 19t 424 (189
Income taxe: 17 10z (22¢)
Other non-current assets and liabilities 10¢ 68 10¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,89z 4,301 4,431
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Additions to property and equipme (1,106 (1,212 (1,550
Return of restricted cas - - 191
Proceeds from sale of ass 20¢€ 14& 12:
Business and intangible asset acquisitions, neastf receive (3449 (630 (497
Purchases of short term investments held to mgi (59) (66) -
Proceeds from short term investments held to ntst 58 16 -
Proceeds (payments) from sale of busit 93 20 (45)
Investment in AmerisourceBerg (499 (229 -
Investment in Alliance Bootl - - (4,025
Other (86) (45) (63)
Net cash used for investing activities (1,737 (1,996 (5,860
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of l-term debr - 4,00( 3,00(
Payments of lor-term deb! (550 (4,300 -
Proceeds from financing leas 26¢ - -
Stock purchase (70%) (615) (1,297
Proceeds related to employee stock p 612 48€ 16E
Cash dividends pai (1,199 (2,040 (787)
Other (48) (27) )
Net cash (used for) provided by financing actisgtie (1,6272) (1,496) 1,17C
Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalen
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 54C 80¢ (259
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,10¢ 1,297 1,55¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 2,64¢ $ 2,10¢ $ 1,29i

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents are integral parts of these statements.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(1) Summary of Major Accounting Policies

Description of Business

The Company is principally in the retail drugstbresiness and its operations are within one repersggment. At August 31, 2014, there
were 8,309 drugstore and other locations in abtafes, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico an8.Wirgin Islands. Prescription sales w
64.2% of total sales for fiscal 2014 compared t®%2in 2013 and 63.2% in 2012.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries. méricompany transactions have been
eliminated. The consolidated financial statemenésprepared in accordance with accounting priasigenerally accepted in the United
States of America and include amounts based ongeament's prudent judgments and estimates. Aatsalts may differ from these
estimates.

The Company's 45% proportionate share of earnmgfsel Alliance Boots GmbH (Alliance Boots) equitgtinod investment is included

in consolidated net earnings. The Company rejitsrihare of equity earnings in Alliance Boots witthe operating section in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings because opesaif Alliance Boots are integral to Walgreensie Tompanies share common board
of director members, recognize purchasing synetbimsigh Walgreens Boots Alliance Development GmdBEQ/50 joint venture, as

well as engage in intercompany sales transactiorsekect front-end merchandise. Because of tleethtonth lag and the timing of the
closing of this investment, only the ten month&afjust through May's results of operations areecddld in the equity earnings in
Alliance Boots included in the Company's reportetiearnings for year ended August 31, 2013 compareglelve months operating
results for June through May in the current figczdr.

The Company directly owns a 50% interest in WalgseBoots Alliance Development GmbH and indirectlyns an additional ownership
interest through its 45% ownership in Alliance Bpatpresenting a direct and indirect economiaésteof 72.5%. The financial results
of the Walgreens Boots Alliance Development Gmbirtjgenture are fully consolidated into the Compgampnsolidated financial
statements and reported without a lag. As thd janture is included within the Company's operatigsults, Alliance Boots
proportionate share of Walgreens Boots Alliance dd@yment GmbH earnings is removed from equity egsiand presented as a
component of noncontrolling interests.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handlmdhly liquid investments with an original maity of three months or less. Credit and
debit card receivables from banks, which genealyle within two business days, of $229 million &160 million were included in cash ¢
cash equivalents at August 31, 2014 and 2013, césply. At August 31, 2014 and 2013, the Comphag $1.9 billion and $1.6 billion,
respectively, in money market funds, all of whichsancluded in cash and cash equivalents.

The Company's cash management policy providesoiairalled disbursement. As a result, the Compad/dutstanding checks in excess of
funds on deposit at certain banks. These amowhish were $267 million at August 31, 2014, and4#27illion at August 31, 2013, are
included in trade accounts payable in the acconipgrnyonsolidated Balance Sheets.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The provision for bad debt is based on both histbrivrite-off percentages and specifically identified recblea. Activity in the allowance fi
doubtful accounts was as follows (in millions):

2014 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of ye $ 154 $ 99 3 101
Bad debt provisiol 86 124 107
Write-offs (67) (69) (109)
Balance at end of year $ 17 $ 154 $ 99

Inventories

Inventories are valued on a lower of last-in, fost (LIFO) cost or market basis. At August 3112@&nd 2013, inventories would have been
greater by $2.3 billion and $2.1 billion, respeety if they had been valued on a lower of firstfirst-out (FIFO) cost or market basis. As a
result of declining inventory levels, the fiscall2) 2013 and 2012 LIFO provisions were reduced IByOLliquidations of $187 million, $194
million and $268 million, respectively. Inventoncludes product costs, inbound freight, warehaysiosts and vendor allowances not
classified as a reduction of advertising expense.

Equity Method Investments

The Company uses the equity method to accounhf@siments in companies if the investment providesability to exercise significant
influence, but not control, over operating and fficial policies of the investee. The Company's pripnate share of the net income or
loss of these companies is included in consolidatdadarnings. Judgment regarding the level dfiémfce over each equity method
investment includes considering key factors sucth@¥ompany's ownership interest, representatici® board of directors,
participation in policy-making decisions and madkitercompany transactions.

The Company purchases inventory from Alliance Baothe ordinary course of business. These relpéety inventory purchases, whi



began in fiscal 2013, were not material in fisdal42 or 2013.

The underlying net assets of the Company's equitthad investment in Alliance Boots include goodwilld indefinite-lived intangible
assets. These assets are evaluated for impaianenglly or more frequently if an event occursiorumstances change that would more
likely than not reduce the fair value of a repagtimit below its carrying value. Based on the Camys evaluation as of August 31,
2014, the fair value of one Alliance Boots pharmaical wholesale reporting unit did not exceectcasrying amount by a significant
amount. Goodwill allocated to this reporting umjtAlliance Boots as of May 31, 2014 was £255 milli£115 million based on the
Company's 45% ownership percentage (approximafed3 $nillion using May 31, 2014 exchange rates)e Tompany utilizes a three-
month lag in reporting its share of equity incomelliance Boots, including this reporting unith& Company will continue to monitor
this reporting unit in accordance with Accountingr@lards Codification 350, Intangibles - GoodwileOther.

Property and Equipment

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basisrdhe estimated useful lives of owned assetaséleold improvements and leased
properties under capital leases are amortizedtheeestimated useful life of the property or over term of the lease, whichever is shorter.
Estimated useful lives range from 10 to 39 yearddiod improvements, buildings and building impnments; and 2 to 13 years for
equipment. Major repairs, which extend the uskfielof an asset, are capitalized; routine mainteeaand repairs are charged against
earnings. The majority of the business uses thgposite method of depreciation for equipment. &fare, gains and losses on retirement or
other disposition of such assets are includediiniegs only when an operating location is closennpletely remodeled or impaired. Fully
depreciated property and equipment are removed thencost and related accumulated depreciatioraaradtization accounts. Property and
equipment consists of (in millions):

2014 2013

Land and land improvemer

Owned location: $ 3,05¢ $ 3,20:

Distribution center: 93 97

Other location: 26€ 21¢
Buildings and building improvemen

Owned location: 3,921 3,80¢

Leased locations (leasehold improvements ¢ 2,041 1,811

Distribution center: 582 62C

Other location: 351 351
Equipment

Locations 5,45¢ 5,33¢

Distribution center: 1,17( 1,19C

Other location: 93t 75E
Capitalized system development cc 68€ 581
Capital lease properties 53C 21E

19,09¢ 18,18:

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 6,83¢ 6,04:

$ 12257 $ 12,13¢

Depreciation expense for property and equipment$28 million in fiscal 2014, $894 million in fisc2013 and $841 million in fiscal 2012.

The Company capitalizes application stage developieests for significant internally developed sadte projects, such as upgrades to the
store point-of-sale system. These costs are aradrover a five-year period. Amortization expewss $111 million in fiscal 2014, $100
million in fiscal 2013 and $70 million in fiscal 28. Unamortized costs at August 31, 2014 and AL@Ls2013, were $410 million and $374
million, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of assets acquired and itaslassumed. The Company accounts for
goodwill and intangibles under ASC Topic 350, Infiisles — Goodwill and Other, which does not perniiortization, but requires the
Company to test goodwill and other indefinite-liveskets for impairment annually or whenever eventircumstances indicate impairment
may exist.

Impaired Assets and Liabilities for Store Closings

The Company tests long-lived assets for impairmadrgnever events or circumstances indicate thattaiceasset may be impaired. Store
locations that have been open at least five yaarse@iewed for impairment indicators at least aliyu Once identified, the amount of the
impairment is computed by comparing the carryingieaf the assets to the fair value, which is bagethe discounted estimated future cash
flows. Impairment charges included in selling, gieh and administrative expenses were $167 millidiscal 2014, primarily resulting from
the Company's store optimization plan. Impairnadarges recognized in fiscal 2013 and 2012 werenfiBi®on and $27 million respectivel

The Company also provides for future costs reladerlosed locations. The liability is based on phesent value of future rent obligations
other related costs (net of estimated subleasg teetite first lease option date. The reservesfore closings including $137 million from
locations closed under the Company's optimizatian,pvas $257 million as of August 31, 2014 com@daoe$123 million as of August 31
2013. See Note 2 for additional disclosure regaydine Company's reserve for future costs relatedbsed locations.

Financial Instruments



The Company had $151 million and $197 million ofstanding letters of credit at August 31, 2014 263, respectively, which guarantee
the purchase of foreign goods, and additional entlihg letters of credit of $259 million and $268lion at August 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, which guarantee payments of insurat@ms. The insurance claim letters of creditamaually renewable and will remain in
place until the insurance claims are paid in fLditters of credit of $9 million and $4 million weoaitstanding at August 31, 2014, and August
31, 2013, respectively, to guarantee performanamosétruction contracts. The Company pays a fadée to the financing bank to keep
these letters of credit active. The Company hatlestate development purchase commitments of 8iien and $185 million at August 3
2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company uses interest rate swaps to manaigeeitsst rate exposure associated with some fikeéd-rate borrowings. At August 31,
2014, the Company had $1 billion of fixed-rate delapped to floating designated as fair value heddée Company also manages its
interest rate exposure associated with its antiegpdebt issuance. In fiscal 2014, the Compangredtinto a series of forward starting
interest rate swap transactions locking in the thament three-month LIBOR interest rate on $1Ibdni of anticipated debt issuance. These
forward starting swap transactions are designaasash flow hedges. The Company's fair value astl ilow hedges are accounted for
according to ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedgangd measured at fair value in accordance with A8fic 820, Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosures. See Notes 10 anar BHdlitional disclosure regarding financial ingtents.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue at the time themesttakes possession of the merchandise. Custemens are immaterial. Sales taxes
are not included in revenue.

Gift Cards

The Company sells Walgreens gift cards to retailestustomers and through its website. The Comgdarg not charge administrative fees
on unused gift cards and most gift cards do noelzawvexpiration date. Income from gift cards gmized when (1) the gift card is
redeemed by the customer; or (2) the likelihoothefgift card being redeemed by the customer i®terfyift card breakage) and there is no
legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemi#tiagirds to the relevant jurisdictions. The Comyga gift card breakage rate is determined
based upon historical redemption patterns. Gif taeakage income, which is included in sellingneral and administrative expenses, was
not significant in fiscal 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Loyalty Program

The Company's rewards program, Balance ® Rewasdsdrued as a charge to cost of sales at theatjpoint is earned. Points are funded
internally and through vendor participation, ane emredited to cost of sales at the time a vendonspred point is earned. Breakage is
recorded as points expire as a result of a memibacsivity or if the points remain unredeemed afteee years. Breakage income, which is
reported in cost of sales, was not significanisndl 2014 or 2013.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is derived based upon point-of-saaring information with an estimate for shrinkagel is adjusted based on periodic
inventories. In addition to product costs, cossales includes warehousing costs, purchasing, dosigght costs, cash discounts and vendor
allowances.

Vendor Allowances

Vendor allowances are principally received as altes purchases, sales or promotion of vendomipets. Allowances are generally
recorded as a reduction of inventory and are rezedras a reduction of cost of sales when theaglaterchandise is sold. Those
allowances received for promoting vendors' prodaotsoffset against advertising expense and rasalteduction of selling, general and
administrative expenses to the extent of advegisosts incurred, with the excess treated as atieduof inventory costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses maiohsist of store salaries, occupancy costs, apdrses directly related to stores. In
addition, other costs included are headquartepgreses, advertising costs (net of advertising ne@eand insurance.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs, which are reduced by the portiorded by vendors, are expensed as incurred.adietrtising expenses, which are inclu
in selling, general and administrative expenseseW265 million in fiscal 2014, $286 million in fial 2013 and $291 million in fiscal 2012.
Included in net advertising expenses were vendeerdiding allowances of $256 million in fiscal 202240 million in fiscal 2013 and $239
million in fiscal 2012.

Insurance

The Company obtains insurance coverage for cafstr@exposures as well as those risks requirecimtd be insured. It is the
Company's policy to retain a significant portionceftain losses related to workers' compensatimpgsty, comprehensive general,
pharmacist and vehicle liability. Liabilities ftiese losses are recorded based upon the Compatigisites for claims incurred and are
not discounted. The provisions are estimated ihlpaconsidering historical claims experience, dgnaphic factors and other actuarial
assumptions.

Available-for-Sale Investments

The Company, Alliance Boots and AmerisourceBergerpGration (AmerisourceBergen) entered into a Fraonk Agreement dated as of
March 18, 2013, pursuant to which Walgreens anthAdle Boots together were granted the right tolpase a minority equity position in
AmerisourceBergen, beginning with the right, but the obligation, to purchase up to 19,859,795eshaf AmerisourceBergen common
stock (approximately 7 percent of the then fulllutdid equity of AmerisourceBergen, assuming thease in full of the warrants described
below) in open market transactions. As of AugustZ014, the Company held 11.5 million shares ofefisburceBergen common stc



which are classified as available-for-sale. SeteMdor additional disclosure regarding the Conysmavailable-for-sale investments.

Warrants

The Company and Alliance Boots were each issued {#grrant to purchase shares of AmerisourceBergemmon stock exercisable durin
six-month period beginning in March 2016, and (Warant to purchase shares of AmerisourceBergemam stock exercisable during a
six-month period beginning in March 2017. The Camygs warrants are valued at the date of issuamt¢ha end of the period using a
Monte Carlo simulation. Key assumptions used ealuation include risk-free interest rates ugiogstant maturity treasury rates; the
dividend yield for AmerisourceBergen's common std@kerisourceBergen's common stock price at theatadn date; AmerisourceBergen's
equity volatility; the number of shares of AmerisceBergen's common stock outstanding; the numbempiloyee stock options and the
exercise price; and the details specific to theravds. The fair value of the Company's warrant®anch 18, 2013, the date of issuance, was
$77 million. The Company recorded the fair vali@owarrants as a non-current asset with a cpoeding deferred credit in its
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The deferred creediiwgable to the warrants will be amortized ottez life of the warrants. The fair value of
the Company's warrants at August 31, 2014 and 2@k3$553 million and $188 million, respectivelysukting in the Company recording
other income of $366 million and $111 million withis Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Theease in the fair value of the warrants
was primarily attributable to the increase in thiegpof AmerisourceBergen's common stock. In aoldjtthe Company recorded $19 million
and $9 million in fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectiyef other income relating to the amortizatiortted deferred credit. See Note 10 for
additional disclosure regarding the Company's wasta

Pre-Opening Expenses
Non-capital expenditures incurred prior to the operohg new or remodeled store are expensed as atturr

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

In accordance with ASC Topic 718, CompensationoelSCompensation, the Company recognizes compensatpense on a straight-line
basis over the employee's vesting period or tethployee's retirement eligible date, if earliental stock-based compensation expense for
fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $114 million, $104ion and $99 million, respectively. The recogaiztax benefit was $31 million, $30
million and $9 million for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 1) respectively. Unrecognized compensation @lated to non-vested awards at August
31, 2014, was $188 million. This cost is expedtetle recognized over a weighted average of theaesy See Note 14 for more information
on the Company's stock-based compensation plages.NSte 14 for more information on the Compangslksbased compensation plans.

Interest Expense

The Company capitalized $6 million, $7 million a®@ million of interest expense as part of significeonstruction projects during fiscal
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Interest palidch is net of capitalized interest, was $161 ionillin fiscal 2014, $158 million in fiscal
2013 and $108 million in fiscal 2012.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes accorditigg@sset and liability method. Under this methitederred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized based upon the estimated futureotasequences attributable to differences betwefirthncial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities andrtfespective tax bases. Deferred tax assets alitities are measured pursuant to tax
laws using rates expected to apply to taxable irconthe years in which those temporary differeraresexpected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets abdilias of a change in tax rate is recognizediicome in the period that includes the
enactment date. Valuation allowances are estauligfhen necessary to reduce deferred tax assis &mnounts more likely than not to
be realized.

In determining the Company's provision for incormeets, an annual effective income tax rate basddlbyear income, permanent
differences between book and tax income, and stgtiricome tax rates are used. The effective irectan rate also reflects the
Company's assessment of the ultimate outcome @fudits in addition to any foreign-based incomentled to be taxable in the United
States. Discrete events such as audit settlernentsanges in tax laws are recognized in the peniechich they occur.

The Company is subject to routine income tax aubas occur periodically in the normal course ofibess. U.S. federal, state and local
and foreign tax authorities raise questions regarttie Company's tax filing positions, including timing and amount of deductions and
the allocation of income among various tax juriidits. In evaluating the tax benefits associatél its various tax filing positions, the
Company records a tax benefit for uncertain taxtjpos using the highest cumulative tax benefit teanore likely than not to be
realized. Adjustments are made to the liabilitydarecognized tax benefits in the period in whiod Company determines the issue is
effectively settled with the tax authorities, thatste of limitations expires for the return contag the tax position or when more
information becomes available. The Company'slltsldor unrecognized tax benefits, including acdypenalties and interest, is
included in other long-term liabilities on the Cohdated Balance Sheets and in income tax expengeiConsolidated Statements of
Earnings.

Earnings Per Share

The dilutive effect of outstanding stock optionsearnings per share is calculated using the trgatack method. Stock options are anti-
dilutive and excluded from the earnings per shateutation if the exercise price exceeds the averagrket price of the common shares.

Outstanding options to purchase common sharesvitrat anti-dilutive and excluded from earnings pgerre totaled 3,510,395, 12,316,949
and 32,593,870 in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, ctapmdy.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8q&ASB) issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Congragth Customers, as a new
Topic, ASC Topic 606. The new revenue recognistandard provides a five-step analysis of transastio determine when and how
revenue is recognized. The core principle is éhadmpany should recognize revenue to depict émsfier of promised goods or servi



to customers in an amount that reflects the consiia to which the entity expects to be entitleégkchange for those goods or services.
This ASU is effective for annual periods beginnafter December 15, 2016 (fiscal 2018) and shalifg@ied retrospectively to each
period presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustae of the date of adoption. The Company isusatalg the effect of adopting this
new accounting guidance, but does not expect amtoptill have a material impact on the Company'siteof operations, cash flows or
financial position.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, RepuaytDiscontinued Operations and Disclosures of Biafsoof Components of an
Entity. This ASU raises the threshold for a disgpds qualify as discontinued operations and rezguitew disclosures for individually
material disposal transactions that do not meetidfimition of a discontinued operation. Under tigev standard, companies report
discontinued operations when they have a disphaaképresents a strategic shift that has or \aileha major impact on operations or
financial results. This update will be applied gpectively and is effective for annual periods, anterim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2014 (fiscal 2016jlyEzdoption is permitted provided the disposal waspreviously disclosed. This
update will not have a material impact on the Comyfsareported results of operations and finanasiton. This ASU is non-cash in
nature and will not affect the Company's cash posit

In May 2013, the FASB reissued an exposure drafease accounting that would require entities togaize assets and liabilities arising
from lease contracts on the balance sheet. Thgopea exposure draft states that lessees anddesdsmild apply a "right-of-use model”

in accounting for all leases. Under the proposedet) lessees would recognize an asset for thétaghse the leased asset, and a liability
for the obligation to make rental payments overldase term. When measuring the asset and lighiliriable lease payments are
excluded, whereas renewal options that providgrifsant economic incentive upon renewal wouldrmduded. The accounting by a
lessor would reflect its retained exposure to thlesror benefits of the underlying leased assekes&or would recognize an asset
representing its right to receive lease paymergedban the expected term of the lease. The leqemse from real estate based leases
would continue to be recorded under a straightdipproach, but other leases not related to reafesatould be expensed using an
effective interest method that would acceleratsdezxpense. A final standard is currently expetddst issued in calendar 2014 and
would be effective no earlier than annual reporpegods beginning on January 1, 2017 (fiscal 20t8e Company). The proposed
standard, as currently drafted, would have a nmadtenipact on the Company's financial position dmitnpact on the Company's reported
results of operations is being evaluated. The ghpfthis exposure draft is non-cash in naturewadld not affect the Company's cash
position.

(2) Store Closures

In March 2014, the Board of Directors approvedanfb close underperforming stores in efforts tnoige and focus resources in a manner
intended to increase shareholder value. Totatpreharges associated with the plan are estintated between $240 million and $280
million. In fiscal 2014, the Company incurred piee-charges of $209 million as a result of clo$idgstores; $137 million from lease
termination costs, $71 million from asset impairingmarges and $1 million of other charges.

(3) Leases

The Company owns approximately 20% of its operaltiegtions; the remaining locations are leased {@esn Initial terms are typically 20
25 years, followed by additional terms containiagewal options at five-year intervals, and mayudelrent escalation clauses. The
commencement date of all lease terms is the eafligre date the Company becomes legally obligedadake rent payments or the date the
Company has the right to control the property. Tloepany recognizes rent expense on a straighbhses over the term of the lease. In
addition to minimum fixed rentals, some leases ®¥or contingent rentals based upon a portiogsatds.

The Company continuously evaluates its real egtatiolio in conjunction with its capital needs fiscal 2014, the Company entered
into several sale-leaseback transactions. In srtteese transactions, the Company negotiated fiatdrenewal options which
constitute a form of continuing involvement, reggtin the assets remaining on the balance shekd @orresponding finance lease
obligation.

Minimum rental commitments at August 31, 2014, uralkleases having an initial or remaining non<slable term of more than one year
are shown below (in millions):

Financing Capital Operating

Obligation Lease Lease
2015 $ 18 $ 43 $ 2,56¢
2016 18 41 2,53
2017 18 39 2,49:¢
2018 18 38 2,407
2019 18 38 2,29t
Later 1,32¢ 66E 22,16¢
Total minimum lease payments $ 141t $ 864 $ 34,46¢

The capital and finance lease amounts include §llién of imputed interest and executory cost@tal minimum lease payments have not
been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of appeairly $141 million on leases due in the futurearntbn-cancelable subleases.

The Company provides for future costs related ésad locations. The liability is based on the gnésalue of future rent obligations and
other related costs (net of estimated subleasg tetite first lease option date. In fiscal 202@13 and 2012, the Company recorded che



of $177 million, $43 million and $20 million, respevely, for facilities that were closed or reloedtunder long-term leases, including stores
closed through the Company's store optimization.plBhese charges are reported in selling, geaadbhdministrative expenses on the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

The changes in reserve for facility closings ardteel lease termination charges include the folawiin millions):

Year Ended
August 31,
2014 2013

Balance- beginning of periot $ 12 % 117
Provision for present value of n-cancellable lease payments of closed facil 171 34
Assumptions about future sublease income, ternainatnd changes in interest re (8) (6)
Interest accretio 14 15
Cash payments, net of sublease income (43) (37)
Balance — end of period $ 257 $ 128

The Company remains secondarily liable on 20 assideases. The maximum potential undiscounteddyiayments are $33 million at
August 31, 2014. Lease option dates vary, withesertending to 2041.

Rental expense, which includes common area maintenansurance and taxes, was as follows (in miljo

2014 2013 2012
Minimum rentals $ 2,681 $ 2,64 $ 2,58t
Contingent rental 5 6 6
Less: Sublease rental income (22 (22 (20)
$ 2,67C $ 2,628 $ 2,571

(4) Acquisitions and Divestitures

In June 2014, the Company completed the sale djarity interest in its subsidiary, Take Care EnygloSolutions, LLC (Take
Care Employer) to Water Street Healthcare PartfWeder Street). At the same time, Water Streetaraadinvestment in CHS
Health Services (CHS), an unrelated entity and eegHS with Take Care Employer to create a leadioiksite health company
dedicated to improving the cost and quality of esypk health care. Water Street owns a majorigrést in the new company
while Walgreens owns a significant minority intdrand has representatives on the new company'd lebairectors. The value of
the investment at August 31, 2014 was $67 millidhe Company recognized an immaterial gain onrdmesaction.

In November 2013, the Company completed its acirsof certain assets of Kerr Drug and its affégfor $173 million, subject to
adjustment in certain circumstances. This acdorsincluded 76 retail locations as well as a splécipharmacy business and a
distribution center. The preliminary purchase atmg for the Kerr Drug acquisition added $45 ioillto goodwill and $54 million to
intangible assets, primarily prescription files gg&yer contracts, with $74 million allocated to teetgible assets. This allocation is
subject to change as the Company finalizes purchessunting.

The aggregate purchase price of all business aadgible asset acquisitions, excluding Kerr Drugsw171 million in fiscal 2014.
These acquisitions added $13 million to goodwill &119 million to intangible assets, primarily prégtion files. The remaining fair
value relates to immaterial amounts of tangibletssdess liabilities assumed. Operating resiltsisinesses acquired have been
included in the Consolidated Statements of Earniraga their respective acquisition dates forward aere not material.

In fiscal 2013, the Company acquired Stephen L.raa€e Holdings, Inc. (USA Drug) for $436 milliontraf assumed cash. This
acquisition increased the Company's presence imitie€South region of the country. The purchasegpaillocation for this acquisition
added $220 million to goodwill and $156 millionitdangible assets, primarily prescription files arwh-compete agreements, with $60
million allocated to net tangible assets, primaiilyentory. The Company also acquired an 80% éstein Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
Pharmacy LLC for $29 million net of assumed casth aicall option to acquire the remaining 20% irgene 2015. The investment
provides joint ownership in a specialty pharmaaydystic fibrosis patients and their families angravider of new product launch
support and call center services for drug manufactu The investment added $16 million to goodanitl $21 million to intangible
assets, primarily payer contracts.

(5) Equity Method Investments

Equity method investments as of August 31, 20142018, were as follows (in millions, except pereg@s):

2014 2013
Carrying Ownership Carrying Ownership
Value Percentage Value Percentage
Alliance Boots $ 7,24¢ 45% $ 6,261 45%
Other equity method investments 74 30%- 5% 7 30%- 5C%

Total Equity Method Investmen $ 7,322 $ 6,26¢



Alliance Boots

On August 2, 2012, pursuant to a Purchase and ©ptpeement dated June 18, 2012, by and amongdhegpény, Alliance Boots
GmbH and AB Acquisitions Holdings Limited (the Poase and Option Agreement), the Company acquirée ef3he issued and
outstanding share capital of Alliance Boots in ewde for $4.025 billion in cash and approximate&ydanillion shares of Company
common stock. On August 5, 2014, the Company edti&to an amendment to the purchase and optieeagmt, which among other
things, accelerated the option period from Augyuf®4 to February 5, 2015. The Purchase and @piimeement, as amended on
August 5, 2014, provides, subject to the satisbactir waiver of specified conditions, a call optibat gives the Company the right, but
not the obligation, to acquire the remaining 55%Atiince Boots (second step transaction) in exgledor an additional £3.1 billion in
cash (approximately $5.2 billion using August 3012 exchange rates) as well as an additional 1#4dli®n Company shares, subject to
certain adjustments. Pursuant to the amended ©Agoeement, the Company exercised its option ogusti5, 2014. In certain
circumstances, if the second step transaction bloeslose, the Company's ownership of Alliance Bawitl reduce from 45% to 42% in
exchange for nominal consideration. The Compagysty earnings, initial investment and the cali@p exclude the Alliance Boots
minority interest in Galenica Ltd. (Galenica). TAkiance Boots investment in Galenica was distiélalito the Alliance Boots
shareholders other than the Company in May 2018&had no impact on the Company's financial result

The call option, prior to its amendment and subsatjaxercise, was valued using a Monte Carlo sitimaising assumptions
surrounding Walgreens equity value as well as titergial impacts of certain provisions of the Paistnand Option Agreement that are
described in the Form 8-K filed by the Company onel19, 2012. The call option was accounted faopat and subsequently adjusted
for foreign currency translation gains or loss&ke final purchase price allocation resulted irl4gllion of the total consideration being
allocated to the investment and $866 million beifigcated to the call option based on their ret@fair values. The amendment to the
call option was accounted for as a non-monetarp@&xge with the amended call option valued as aftite-money option using a
Monte Carlo simulation. The $866 million remeasneat loss was recorded in other (expense)/incontbeonsolidated Statements of
Earnings.

The Company accounts for its 45% investment inafiltie Boots using the equity method of accountiigestments accounted for under
the equity method are recorded initially at cost anbsequently adjusted for the Company's shatteeafet income or loss and cash
contributions and distributions to or from thesétas. Because the underlying net assets in #déaBoots are denominated in a foreign
currency, translation gains or losses will imp&et tecorded value of the Company's investment. Gdrapany utilizes a three-month lag
in reporting equity income in Alliance Boots. Digethe lag and timing of the investment, only 10nths results of Alliance Boots were
recorded in fiscal 2013 compared to 12 months sifilte recorded in fiscal 2014. The Company's itmaest is recorded as "Equity
investment in Alliance Boots" in the Consolidatealdce Sheets.

The Company's initial investment in Alliance Boetseeded its proportionate share of the net asgéttiance Boots by $2.4 billion.
This premium of $2.4 billion is recognized as pHrthe carrying value in the Company's equity irrent in Alliance Boots. The
difference is primarily related to the fair valueAdliance Boots indefinite-lived intangible assetisd goodwill. The Company's equity
method income from the investment in Alliance Bdstadjusted to reflect the amortization of faitueaadjustments in certain definite-
lived assets of Alliance Boots. The Company'sénm@ntal amortization expense associated with thanske Boots investment was
approximately $42 million in fiscal 2014. In fid@013, the Company recognized approximately $9%anj including the inventory
step-up, which was amortized over the first inventarn.

During July 2013, the UK Government enacted a lavwetluce the UK corporate tax rate effective Apoil4 with a further reduction
scheduled to take effect in April 2015. The noskcampact of $71 million was recorded in fiscal 2@lue to the three-month lag.

Other Equity Method Investments

Other equity method investments relate to jointtwess associated with the Company's infusion agplir&tory business and its equity
method investment received through the sale oT#ie Care Employer business. These investmentacdugled within other non-
current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sh&htssCompany's share of equity income is reportiglainvselling, general and
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Stateyaf Earnings.

Summarized Financial Information

Summarized financial information for the Comparegsiity method investees is as follows:

Balance Sheet (in million:

At August 31,
2014M 2013
Current Asset $ 8,76¢ $ 8,90¢
Non-Current Asset 21,52¢ 19,48¢
Current Liabilities 7,791 7,20
Non-Current Liabilities 11,28¢ 12,22¢
Shareholders' Equil(?) 11,217 8,95¢

Income Statement (in million



Year Ended August 31,

2014® 2013 2012
Net sales $ 37,30f % 30,44¢ $ 37
Gross Profit 7,927 6,391 17
Net Earnings 1,44¢ 1,022 2
Share of income from investments accounted forgugie equity metho® 61¢ 34t 1

M Net assets in Alliance Boots are translated aMhbg 31, 2014 spot rate of $1.68 to one British gb8terling, corresponding to the three-
month lag. Fiscal 2013 net assets in Alliance Boatre translated at a spot rate of $1.52 to oftsBpound Sterling.

@ Shareholders' equity at August 31, 2014 and 20t8jdes $257 million and $374 million relatednimn-controlling interests, respectively.
®) The Company utilizes a three-month lag in repgrits share of equity income in Alliance BootsheTiscal year ended August 31, 2013
included only ten month's results for Alliance Bobecause of the three-month lag and the timirigefinvestment on August 2, 2012,
compared to twelve months results recorded infidda4. Earnings in Alliance Boots are translaethe average exchange rate of $1.61
$1.57 to one British pound Sterling for the yeardesl August 31, 2014 and 2013 respectively. WalgsdBoots Alliance Development
GmbH operations are excluded from these resultisea€ompany consolidates the joint venture.

(6) Available-for-Sale Investments

In conjunction with its long-term relationship wimerisourceBergen, the Company has the right qoiiae up to 7% of the common
shares of AmerisourceBergen through open markesactions. The Company's cost basis of commoreslzaquired in fiscal 2014 and
2013 were $493 million and $224 million, respediiveThe available-for-sale investment is classifées long-term and reported at fair
value within other non-current assets in the Cadatéd Balance Sheets. The Company also holds iiestments with maturities
greater than 90 days that are reported at fairevaithin other current assets in the ConsolidataldBce Sheets.

Fair value adjustments are based on quoted stéokspwith the unrealized holding gains and losepsnted in other comprehensive
income. Unrealized holding gains at August 31,£284d 2013 were $170 million and $1 million, respety. See Note 11 for
additional fair value disclosures. Available-f@les investments reported at fair value at Augus814 and 2013 were $887 million and
$225 million, respectively.

(7) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible atsare not amortized, but are evaluated for impamtannually during the fourth
quarter, or more frequently if an event occursimuenstances change that would more likely tharredtice the fair value of a reporting
unit below its carrying value. As part of the Canp's impairment analysis for each reporting uh& Company engaged a third party
appraisal firm to assist in the determination dineated fair value for each unit. This determioatincluded estimating the fair value
using both the income and market approaches. ridwarie approach requires management to estimatabeanwof factors for each
reporting unit, including projected future opergti®sults, economic projections, anticipated futash flows and discount rates. The
market approach estimates fair value using comparahbrketplace fair value data from within a conae industry grouping.

The determination of the fair value of the repartimits and the allocation of that value to indiidtlassets and liabilities within those
reporting units requires the Company to make sicgift estimates and assumptions. These estimadessssumptions primarily include,
but are not limited to: the selection of approgripéer group companies; control premiums apprapftatacquisitions in the industries in
which the Company competes; the discount rate;iteingrowth rates; and forecasts of revenue, opgyaitcome, depreciation and
amortization and capital expenditures. The aliocatequires several analyses to determine thevdire of assets and liabilities
including, among other things, purchased presonigpiiies, customer relationships and trade namdthough the Company believes its
estimates of fair value are reasonable, actuahéi@ results could differ from those estimates thuthe inherent uncertainty involved in
making such estimates. Changes in assumption&aang future financial results or other underlyagsumptions could have a
significant impact on either the fair value of te@orting units, the amount of the goodwill impaémh charge, or both. The Company
also compared the sum of the estimated fair vadfids reporting units to the Company's total vahsemplied by the market value of its
equity and debt securities. This comparison irtditdhat, in total, its assumptions and estima&®weasonable. However, future
declines in the overall market value of the Comgmeyuity and debt securities may indicate thafalvevalue of one or more reporting
units has declined below its carrying value.

One measure of the sensitivity of the amount ofdgalh impairment charges to key assumptions isahmunt by which each reporting
unit "passed” (fair value exceeds the carrying amjoor "failed” (the carrying amount exceeds faitue) the first step of the goodwiill
impairment test. The Company's reporting uniis'ialues exceeded their carrying amounts rangiog fapproximately 12% to more
than 117%.

Generally, changes in estimates of expected fudgasb flows would have a similar effect on the eated fair value of the reporting unit. T

is, a 1% change in estimated future cash flows @ohbhnge the estimated fair value of the repouinig by approximately 1%. The estima
long-term rate of net sales growth can have a fiogmt impact on the estimated future cash flowsl therefore, the fair value of each
reporting unit. Of the other key assumptions thitact the estimated fair values, most reportingsumave the greatest sensitivity to changes
in the estimated discount rate. The Company bedi¢lat its estimates of future cash flows andodistrates are reasonable, but future
changes in the underlying assumptions could difter to the inherent uncertainty in making suchesis.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill consighe following activity (in millions):



2014 2013

Net book value September . $ 241C $ 2,161
Acquisitions 58 23€
Sale of business (92) -
Other®) (17) 13
Net book value- August 31 $ 2,35¢ $ 2,41C

@ "Other" primarily represents immaterial purchasecamting adjustments for the Company's acquisiti

In June 2014, the Company completed the sale ddjarity interest in its subsidiary, Take Care Enyglo As a result, $92 million of
goodwill allocated to this business was removedfgmodwill on the consolidated balance sheet.

In November 2013, the Company purchased certagtsae$ Kerr Drug and its affiliates for $173 milipsubject to adjustment in certain
circumstances. The Company recorded $45 milliogooidwill and $54 million of intangible assets ongunction with the preliminary
purchase accounting for this acquisition.

In September 2012, the Company purchased the @giongstore chain USA Drug from Stephen L. LaFeaHoldings, Inc. and
members of the LaFrance family for $436 million oeassumed cash and selected other assets (gyimaascription files). In
December 2012, the Company purchased an 80% inter€gstic Fibrosis Foundation Pharmacy LLC fo®$8illion, net of assumed
cash. The USA Drug and Cystic Fibrosis acquis#tiadded $220 million and $16 million of goodwi#spectively.

The carrying amount and accumulated amortizatiantahgible assets consists of the following (itlions):

2014 2013
Gross Intangible Asse
Purchased prescription filt $ 1,07¢ $ 1,09¢
Favorable lease interes 38z 381
Purchasing and payer contra 301 347
Non-compete agreemer 151 152
Trade name 19¢ 19¢
Other amortizable intangible assets 4 4
Total gross intangible assets 2,11¢ 2,18:
Accumulated amortizatio
Purchased prescription fils (474 (467)
Favorable lease intere (174 (149
Purchasing and payer contra (145) (147)
Non-compete agreemer (70 (67)
Trade name (69 (49
Other amortizable intangible assets (4) (3
Total accumulated amortization (93€) (87€)
Total intangible assets, net $ 1,18 $ 1,307

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $8Bi#on in fiscal 2014, $289 million in fiscal 2@land $255 million in fiscal 2012. The
weighted-average amortization period for purchasedcription files was six years for fiscal 2014l @even years for fiscal 2013. The
weighted-average amortization period for favordéese interests was 11 years for fiscal 2014 ad8.20he weighted-average amortization
period for purchasing and payer contracts was &Bsyfer fiscal 2014 and 2013. The weighted-aveeagertization period for non-compete
agreements was five years for fiscal 2014 and satyfor fiscal 2013. The weighted-average amatitin period for trade names was 12
years for fiscal 2014 and 12 years for fiscal 20TBe weighte-average amortization period for other amortizahiangible assets was eight
years for fiscal 2014 and 10 years for fiscal 2(

Expected amortization expense for intangible agsetsrded at August 31, 2014, not including amouweltsted to Alliance Boots that will be
amortized through equity method investment incomas follows (in millions):

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
$ 25C $ 21C $ 167 $ 12¢ $ 10€

(8) Income Taxes
The components of Earnings Before Income Tax Pimvigere (in millions):

2014 2013
U.S. $ 3,38¢ $ 3,471
Non-U.S. 171 41¢€
Total $ 3,651 $ 3,89t




The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlhg (in millions):

2014 2013 2012

Current provisior-

Federal $ 1,200 $ 1,12: $ 89C

State 10¢ 134 12C

Non-U.S. 35 15 -

1,351 1,271 1,01(

Deferred provisiot-

Federal 18: 174 251

State 3) 2 12

Non-U.S. (5) 2 -

17% 174 23¢

Income tax provision $ 1,52t $ 1,448 % 1,24¢

The difference between the statutory federal inctareate and the effective tax rate is as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Federal statutory ra 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 1.9% 2.2% 2.1%
Loss on Alliance Boots call optidH 8.5% 0.C% 0.C%
Foreign income taxed at non-US rate (3.1% (0.3% 0.C%
Other 0.6% 0.2% (0.1)%
Effective income tax rate 42 S 37.1% 37.(%

@ Upon the amdendment and immediate exercise ofalhemtion to acquire the reamining 55% ownersHigliance Boots, the Company
was required to copmare the fair value of the aradraption with the book value of the original optiwith a gain or loss recognized for the
difference. The fair value of the amended optigsuited in a financial statement loss of $866 orilli The loss on the Alliance Boots call
option will be, in part, a capital loss and avdiato be carried forward and offset future capifains through fiscal 2020. The loss also
contributed to the increased valuation allowancewrhreporting in the deferred income tax tablewel

The deferred tax assets and liabilities includethénConsolidated Balance Sheets consist of thafirig (in millions):

2014 2013
Deferred tax asse-
Postretirement benefi $ 247 $ 21¢
Compensation and benef 16€ 13€
Insurance 98 121
Accrued ren 16¢€ 157
Tax benefits 43C 15¢
Stock compensatic 131 15¢
Other 14C 96
Subtotal 1,37¢ 1,04¢
Less: Valuation allowance 228 19
Total deferred tax assets 1,15¢ 1,027
Deferred tax liabilities-
Accelerated depreciatic 1,24¢ 1,36¢
Inventory 407 39€
Intangible assel 64 53
Equity method investmel 35E 21
Deferred income 20€ 4
Subtotal 2,27¢ 1,84:
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 1,127 $ 81€

At August 31, 2014, the Company has recorded dedeax assets of $430 million, primarily reflectithg benefit of $1.0 billion in
federal and $713 million in state ordinary and tapgosses. These deferred tax assets will exgixarious dates from 2015 through
2033, with the majority of the federal losses ergjrin 2019 and 2020.

The Company believes it is more likely than not the benefit from certain net operating and céjitss carryforwards will not be
realized. In recognition of this risk, the Compdras recorded a valuation allowance of 223 milbarcertain deferred tax assets relating
to these loss carryforwards as of August 31, 2014.

Income taxes paid were $1.2 billion for fiscal y&26014, 2013 and 2012.

ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, provides guidancerchigg the recognition, measurement, presentationdistlosure in the financial
statements of tax positions taken or expected taken on a tax return, including the decision Wbeto file in a particular jurisdictior



As of August 31, 2014, all unrecognized tax besefiere reported as long-term liabilities on the €itidated Balance Sheet. As of
August 31, 2013, $32 million, of unrecognized taxéfits were reported as current income tax ligddlj with the balance classified as

long-term liabilities on the Consolidated Balante&t.

The following table provides a reconciliation oéttotal amounts of unrecognized tax benefits (iions):

2014 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year $ 208 $ 197 $ 9
Gross increases related to tax positions in a peéoiod 55 18 10C
Gross decreases related to tax positions in a pecod (82 (32 (49
Gross increases related to tax positions in theeatiperioc 46 30 53
Settlements with taxing authoriti (22 2 (@D}
Lapse of statute of limitations (12 (3) -
Balance at end of year $ 195 $ 208 $ 197

At August 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, $105 millionl&illion and $118 million, respectively, of unagmized tax benefits would
favorably impact the effective tax rate if recoggdz During the next twelve months, the Companysdus expect a material change in

the amount of the unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesiinttome tax provision in its Consolidated StatetmefiEarnings. At August 31,
2014, and August 31, 2013, the Company had acdntieidst and penalties of $21 million and $28 millirespectively. For the year
ended August 31, 2014, the amount reported in igctax expense related to interest and penaltieawammaterial benefit.

The Company files a consolidated U.S. federal inedax return, as well as income tax returns inotegistates. It is no longer under
audit examination for U.S. federal income tax pggsofor any years prior to fiscal 2012. With fexgeptions, it is no longer subject to

state and local income tax examinations by taxaitids for years before fiscal 2007.

The Company has received tax holidays from Swiasocal income taxes relative to its Swiss operatiofihe income tax holidays are
expected to extend through September 2022. Thedysl had an immaterial impact on the Companylstseduring the current fiscal year.
At August 31, 2014, the Company has an unrecordéeted tax liability for temporary differencesatdd to its investments in certain fore

subsidiaries of approximately $85 million.
(9) Short-Term Borrowings and Long-Term Debt

Short-term borrowings and long-term debt consigheffollowing at August 31 (in millions):

Short-Term Borrowings - 2014 2013
Current maturities of loans assumed through thehase of land and buildings; various interest riates

5.000% to 8.750%; various maturities from 201508% $ 8 $ 2
1.000% unsecured notes due 2015, net of unamowdizedunt 75C -
Unsecured variable rate notes due 2014, net of artesed discoun - 55C
Other 16 18
Total short-term borrowings $ 774 $ 57C
Long-Term Debt -
1.000% unsecured notes due 2015, net of unamorizedunt - 74¢
1.800% unsecured notes due 2017, net of unamordizedunt 99¢ 99¢
5.250% unsecured notes due 2019, net of unamoizedunt and interest rate swap fair market value

adjustment (see Note 1 1,01C 994
3.100% unsecured notes due 2022, net of unamordizedunt 1,19¢ 1,19¢
4.400% unsecured notes due 2042, net of unamordizedunt 49¢ 49¢
Loans assumed through the purchase of land andifgsl; various interest rates from 5.000% to 8.7509

various maturities from 2015 to 2035 40 43

3,74¢ 4,47¢

Less current maturities (8) (2)
Total long-term debt $ 3,73¢ $ 4,477

On September 13, 2012, the Company received neeeds from a public offering of $4.0 billion of estwith varying maturities and interest

rates, the majority of which are fixed rate.
The following details each tranche of notes issue&eptember 13, 2012:

Notes Issued

(In millions) Maturity Date Interest Rate

Interest Payment Dates

$ 55C March 13, 2014 Variable; three-month U.S. Dollar

March 13, June 13, September 13 and



LIBOR, reset quarterly, plus 50 basis December 13; commencing on Decerr

points 13, 2012

75C March 13, 2015 Fixed 1.000% March 13 and September 13;
commencing on March 13, 20.

1,00C September 15, 2017 Fixed 1.800% March 15 and September 15;
commencing on March 15, 20.

1,20C September 15, 2022 Fixed 3.100% March 15 and September 15;
commencing on March 15, 20.

50C September 15, 2042 Fixed 4.400% March 15 and September 15;

commencing on March 15, 2013
$ 4,00(

The Company paid in full its $550 million obligatithat matured in March 2014. The Company mayeedie fixed rate notes at its option,
at any time in whole, or from time to time in pat,a redemption price equal to the greater of1()% of the principal amount of the notes
being redeemed; and (2) the sum of the presenesafithe remaining scheduled payments of prin@pélinterest thereon (not including ¢
portion of such payments of interest accrued dheflate of redemption), discounted to the datedémption on a semiannual basis
(assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelvel@®-months) at the Treasury Rate (as defined), Jusasis points for the notes due 201¢
basis points for the notes due 2017, 22 basis p&onthe notes due 2022 and 25 basis points &nttes due 2042. If a change of control
triggering event occurs, the Company will be regdijrunless it has exercised its right to redeenmthes, to offer to purchase the notes at a
purchase price equal to 101% of their principal ampplus accrued and unpaid interest, if any hennotes repurchased to the date of
repurchase. The notes are unsecured senior digditains and rank equally with all other unsecuaed unsubordinated indebtedness of the
Company. Total issuance costs relating to thespdaneluding underwriting discounts and fees, w26 million. The fair value of the notes
as of August 31, 2014 and 2013 was $3.4 billion $3@ billion, respectively. Fair value for thesstes was determined based upon quoted
market prices.

On January 13, 2009, the Company issued notesnimthl .0 billion bearing an interest rate of 5.2508d semiannually in arrears on Jant
15 and July 15 of each year, beginning on July2089. The notes will mature on January 15, 2008 Company may redeem the notes, at
any time in whole or from time to time in part,istoption at a redemption price equal to the great (1) 100% of the principal amount of
the notes to be redeemed; or (2) the sum of treeptevalues of the remaining scheduled paymerngsindipal and interest, discounted to the
date of redemption on a semiannual basis at thastlirg Rate, plus 45 basis points, plus accruedesiten the notes to be redeemed to, but
excluding, the date of redemption. If a changeaoftrol triggering event occurs, unless the Comgeas/exercised its option to redeem the
notes, it will be required to offer to repurchalse hotes at a purchase price equal to 101% ofrtheipal amount of the notes plus accrued
and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. fidtes are unsecured senior debt obligations aridaqually with all other unsecured senior
indebtedness of the Company. The notes are noktdilnle or exchangeable. Total issuance cos#singl to this offering were $8 million,
primarily underwriting fees. The fair value of thetes as of August 31, 2014 and 2013, was $1lliarbdnd $1.1 billion, respectively. Fair
value for these notes was determined based updedjumarket prices.

We have periodically borrowed under our commengégder program during the current fiscal year, aagt nontinue to borrow in future
periods. We had average daily short-term borrow/ifgh4 million of commercial paper outstandingateighted average interest rate of
0.23% for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2014 h&ad no commercial paper outstanding at Augus2@14. In connection with the
commercial paper program, the Company maintainsumgecured backup syndicated lines of credit thtat £1.35 billion. The first

$500 million facility expires on July 20, 2015, aaibws for the issuance of up to $250 millionattérs of credit. The second $850
million facility expires on July 23, 2017, and ails for the issuance of up to $200 million in ledtef credit. The issuance of letters of
credit under either of these facilities reduceslalsbe borrowings. The Company's ability to acddese facilities is subject to
compliance with the terms and conditions of thelitracilities, including financial covenants. Thevenants require the Company to
maintain certain financial ratios related to minmmaet worth and priority debt, along with limitati® on the sale of assets and purchases
of investments. At August 31, 2014, the Compang imacompliance with all such covenants. The Campaays a facility fee to the
financing banks to keep these lines of credit actit August 31, 2014, there were no letters eflitrissued against these credit facilities
and the Company does not anticipate any futurerketif credit to be issued against these facilities

(10) Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative instruments to martagetérest rate exposure associated with somis &ked-rate borrowings. The
Company does not use derivative instruments faliigpor speculative purposes. All derivative instents are recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Thepamm designates interest rate swaps as fair vadgds of fixed-rate borrowings. For
derivatives designated as fair value hedges, thagdhin the fair value of both the derivative instent and the hedged item are
recognized in earnings in the current period. Thenpany's forward starting interest rate swaps tsbeédge anticipated debt issuances
are designated as cash flow hedges. Changes faithalue of cash flow hedges deemed effectieeracognized in other comprehensive
income. At the inception of a hedge transactiba,Gompany formally documents the hedge relatignahd the risk management
objective for undertaking the hedge. In additibassesses both at inception of the hedge and @mgoing basis whether the derivative
in the hedging transaction has been highly effedtivoffsetting changes in fair value of the hedieh and whether the derivative is
expected to continue to be highly effective. Tin@act of any ineffectiveness is recognized curyeintearnings.

Counterparties to derivative financial instrumesipose the Company to credit-related losses ietkat of nonperformance, but the
Company regularly monitors the credit worthinessath counterparty.

Fair Value Hedges



In prior fiscal years, the Company entered interes of interest rate swaps converting $750 nmilbbits 5.250% fixed rate notes to a
floating interest rate based on the six-month LIBi@Rrrears plus a constant spread and an interesswap converting $250 million of
its 5.250% fixed rate notes to a floating interas¢ based on the one-month LIBOR in arrears pkenatant spread. All swap
termination dates coincide with the notes matutiie, January 15, 2019. The changes in fair \atiee notes attributable to the hedged
risk are included in short-term and long-term dabthe Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets. dilrial gains or losses were
recorded in fiscal 2014 or 2013 from ineffectivenes

Cash Flow Hedges

In the current fiscal year, the Company enteredl énseries of forward starting interest rate swapstactions locking in the then current
three-month LIBOR interest rate on $1.5 billionanticipated debt issuance, with expected matweitytes of 10 and 30 years. The swap
transactions are designated as cash flow heddesng@s in the fair value of swaps are recordedhercomprehensive income. Any
ineffectiveness is recognized in interest expemsthe Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The notional amounts of derivative instruments taunding at August 31, 2014 and 2013, were as falfwmillions):

2014 2013
Derivatives designated as fair value hed:
Interest rate sway $ 1,00 $ 1,00(
Derivatives designated as cash flow hed
Forward interest rate swa 1,50(C -

The changes in fair value of the Company's delitvilag swapped from fixed to variable rate and degied as fair value hedges are
included in long-term debt on the Consolidated Be¢aSheets (see Note 9). At August 31, 2014, dhautative fair value adjustments
resulted in an increase in long-term debt of $1Honicompared to a decrease in fair value of $Bioni at August 31, 2013.

Changes in fair value of the cash flow hedgesrieidled in other comprehensive income, with anfféetiveness recorded directly to
interest expense. The fair value change in fi20a4 reported in other comprehensive income was@iflidn, $27 million net of tax, at
August 31, 2014. Upon termination of the cash fledges, cumulative changes included in other cehgursive income will be
amortized with the debt's cash flow. No materdd ¥alue changes or ineffectiveness was recotaediggh other comprehensive income
in fiscal 2014.

The fair value and balance sheet presentationrofateve instruments at August 31, 2014 and 201&enas follows (in millions):

Location in Consolidated Balance Sheel 2014 2013
Asset derivatives designated as hed
Interest rate sway Other nol-current assel $ 1€ $ 1
Liability derivatives designated as cash flow hexd
Forward interest rate swa Other nor-current liabilities 44 -
Warrants

The Company, Alliance Boots and AmerisourceBergerpGration entered into a Framework Agreement dasedf March 18, 2013,
pursuant to which (1) Walgreens and Alliance Bdoggether were granted the right to purchase a ntynequity position in
AmerisourceBergen, beginning with the right, but the obligation, to purchase up to 19,859,795eshaf AmerisourceBergen common
stock (approximately 7 percent of the then fulllutdid equity of AmerisourceBergen, assuming thease in full of the warrants
described below) in open market transactions;H@)@ompany and Alliance Boots were each issued ¢&grrant to purchase up to
111,348,456 shares of AmerisourceBergen commak stioan exercise price of $51.50 per share exabigsiuring a six-month period
beginning in March 2016, and (b) a warrant to pasghup to 11,348,456 shares of AmerisourceBergamom stock at an exercise price
of $52.50 per share exercisable during a six-mpetiod beginning in March 2017. The parties ariiligted entities also entered into
certain related agreements governing relationsdmtvand among the parties thereto, including tlaeedlolders Agreement, the
Transaction Rights Agreement and the Limited LiabCompany Agreement of WAB Holdings LLC, a nevitymed limited liability
company jointly owned by the Company and Alliana® for the purpose of acquiring and holding As@urceBergen common stock,
described in the Company's Current Report on Fekfiged on March 20, 2013.

The Company reports its warrants at fair valuee Sete 11 for additional fair value measurementldsures. The fair value and balance
sheet presentation of derivative instruments nsigihated as hedges at August 31, 2014 and 201Zxzsvaslows (In millions):

Location in Consolidated Balance Sheet 2014 2013

Asset derivatives not designated as hed
Warrants Other noi-current asset $ b5 % 18¢€

(11) Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures certain assets and liabilitizscordance with ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Meaments and Disclosures. ASC
Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that wWide received for an asset or paid to transfealalily in an orderly transaction betwe



market participants on the measurement date. ditian, it establishes a fair value hierarchy thasritizes observable and unobservable
inputs used to measure fair value into three bleagls:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets thateaneessible at the measurement date for identisatsaand liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1iitg

Level 2- Observable inputs other than quoted prices in actiarkets

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for which there tddior no market data available. The fair valierdrchy gives the lowest priority to

Level 3 inputs

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarring basis were as follows (in millions):

August 31,
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:;
Money market fund $ 1,87¢ $ 1,87¢ $ - $ =
Interest rate swag® 16 - 16 -
Investment in AmerisourceBerg(® 887 887 - -
Warrants® 552 - 552 -
Liabilities:
Forward interest rate swa® 44 - 44 -
August 31,
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Money market fund $ 1,636 $ 1,636 $ - $ =
Interest rate sway® 1 - 1 -
Investment in AmerisourceBerg® 22t 22t - -
Warrants® 18¢ - 18¢ -

@ Interest rate swaps are valued using the six-mamthone-month LIBOR in arrears rates. See Not®rladditional disclosure regarding
financial instruments

@  The investment in AmerisourceBergen Corporatioraisied using the closing stock price of AmerisoBemgen as of the balance sheet
dates. See Note 6 for additional disclosures @ailahle-for-sale investment:

@ Warrants were valued using a Monte Carlo simulatikay assumptions used in the valuation includk-fiee interest rates using
constant maturity treasury rates; the dividenddyfel AmerisourceBergen's common stock; AmerisoBergen's common stock price at
the valuation date; AmerisourceBergen's equitytilitig the number of shares of AmerisourceBergemsmon stock outstanding; the
number of AmerisourceBergen employee stock optimtsthe exercise price; and the details specifibéavarrants

@) Forward interest rate swaps are valued using thmexeth LIBOR in arrears rates. See Note 10 fortamtthl disclosure regarding financ

instruments.

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurrinig base as follows (in millions):

August 31, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Alliance Boots call optio $ - $ - $ - $ -
August 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Alliance Boots call optiol $ 83¢ $ -3 -3 83¢

The call option was valued using a Monte Carlo $ittion. Key assumptions used in the valuationudelexpected term, Walgreens
equity value, the value of Alliance Boots and tléeptial impacts of certain provisions of the Pasdand Option Agreement dated June
18, 2012, by and among the Company, Alliance Bants AB Acquisitions Holdings Limited. The optiorasvzamended, and exercised,
on August 5, 2014, resulting in a new fair valutedmination that resulted in a loss on the optib866 million.

The Company reports its debt instruments undegtiigance of ASC Topic 825, Financial Instrumentsiclv requires disclosure of the
fair value of the Company's debt in the footnotethe consolidated financial statements. See Bldoe further details.

(12) Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in legal proceedings arglilgject to investigations, inspections, auditguiries and similar actions by
governmental authorities, arising in the normalrsewf the Company's business, including the nsattescribed below. Legal
proceedings, in general, and securities and clagmditigation, in particular, can be expensivelalisruptive. Some of these suits may
purport or may be determined to be class actiodfaimvolve parties seeking large and/or indeteaté amounts, including punitive or
exemplary damages, and may remain unresolved Veraleyears. From time to time, the Company ie aisolved in legal proceedings
as a plaintiff involving antitrust, tax, contrasttellectual property and other matters. Gain ic@@ncies, if any, are recognized when
they are realized. The results of legal proceexlarg often uncertain and difficult to predict, dne costs incurred in litigation can



substantial, regardless of the outcome. The Cognpalieves that its defenses and assertions inipgmegal proceedings have merit, and
does not believe that any of these pending matiftes, consideration of applicable reserves arnlatsi¢p indemnification, will have a
material adverse effect on the Company's conselitifibancial position. However, substantial ungptted verdicts, fines and rulings do
sometimes occur. As a result, the Company coolah fime to time incur judgments, enter into settdats or revise its expectations
regarding the outcome of certain matters, and gdeelopments could have a material adverse effeitsaesults of operations in the
period in which the amounts are accrued and/arash flows in the period in which the amounts aielp

On a quarterly basis, the Company assesses iifitiéeband contingencies for outstanding legalge@dings and reserves are established
on a case-by-case basis for those legal claimstiath management concludes that it is probableghass will be incurred and that the
amount of such loss can be reasonably estimatelst&htially all of these contingencies are sulff@significant uncertainties and,
therefore, determining the likelihood of a loss/andhe measurement of any loss can be complexth Kspect to litigation and other
legal proceedings where the Company has deterntiaéch loss is reasonably possible, the Compangable to estimate the amount or
range of reasonably possible loss in excess of atagaserved due to the inherent difficulty of pcédg the outcome of and
uncertainties regarding such litigation and legacpedings. The Company's assessments are basstinates and assumptions that
have been deemed reasonable by management, bataiairove to be incomplete or inaccurate, and ticipated events and
circumstances may occur that might cause the Coynjgachange those estimates and assumptions. foheré is possible that an
unfavorable resolution of one or more pendingditign or other contingencies could have a matedsakrse effect on the Company's
consolidated financial statements in a future fipesiod. Management's assessment of currenatiig and other legal proceedings,
including the corresponding accruals, could charegause of the discovery of facts with respectdall actions or other proceedings
pending against the Company which are not preséntiywn. Adverse rulings or determinations by juglgaries, governmental
authorities or other parties could also resultianges to management's assessment of currenitiézbdind contingencies. Accordingly,
the ultimate costs of resolving these claims maguiestantially higher or lower than the amountemesd.

On June 11, 2013, the Company entered into a Bettieand Memorandum of Agreement (the Agreemert) thie United States
Department of Justice and the United States DridgrEement Administration (DEA) that settled andafeed all administrative and civil
matters arising out of DEA's previously-disclosed@erns relating to the Company's distribution disgensing of controlled substances.
Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company @aii80 million settlement amount, surrendered Ef\Degistrations for six
pharmacies in Florida until May 26, 2014, and fsrJupiter, Florida distribution center until Sel#, 2014, and agreed to implement
certain remedial actions. In addition, the Compdisynissed with prejudice its petition with the téai States Court of Appeals for the
District of Columbia Circuit that challenged cen&nforcement authority of the DEA. On July 3112@nd August 13, 2013, putative
shareholders filed derivative actions in federalrt the Northern District of lllinois againsteiWalgreens Board of Directors and
Walgreen Co. as a hominal defendant (collectivibly,defendants), arising out of the Company's 2048 settlement with the DEA
described above. The actions assert claims fachref fiduciary duty on the grounds that the dvexallegedly should have prevented
the events that led to the settlement. The pférfiled an amended consolidated complaint on BGetal, 2013, pursuant to which they
seek damages and other relief on behalf of the @ampThe defendants filed their motion to disnsissDecember 3, 2013. Subsequent
thereto, the plaintiffs filed an opposition brief Bebruary 7, 2014 and the defendants filed ttegityrbrief on March 10, 2014. In June
2014, the parties executed a settlement term sbiéetting an agreement in principle to settle thitter, subject to, among other things,
the execution of final settlement documentation emait approval. On September 11, 2014, the defetsddenying all wrongdoing and
liability, entered into a Stipulation and AgreemehSettlement whereby the Company agreed to cec@iporate governance measures
and the payment of up to $3.5 million for plairgiftounsel fees and costs in exchange for a coenfgktase of all claims against all
defendants. The Court entered an order preliminapiproving the Stipulation and Agreement of ®etttnt on September 19, 2014. A
final hearing to approve the settlement is schetlfde December 9, 2014. Settlement of this mattethe agreed terms would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company's conselititibancial position, results of operations ortcigws.

(13) Capital Stock

The Company's long-term capital policy is to mam&strong balance sheet and financial flexihiliginvest in its core strategies; invest in
strategic opportunities that reinforce its coratsigies and meet return requirements; and retuptusucash flow to shareholders in the form
of dividends and share repurchases over the lang tén connection with the Company's capital polihie Board of Directors set a lotgrm
dividend payout ratio target between 30 and 35gudrof net income. On July 13, 2011, the BoarDioéctors authorized the 2012
repurchase program, which allows for the repurclodse to $2.0 billion of the Company's common &tpdor to its expiration on December
31, 2015. In August 2014, the Board of Directgpraved the 2014 share repurchase program, whighaes the 2012 repurchase program,
that allows for the purchase of up to $3.0 billafthe Company's common stock prior to its expiraton August 31, 2016. Activity relatec
these programs was as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended

2014 2013 2012
2012 stock repurchase progr $ - $ - % 1,151
2014 stock repurchase program - - -
$ - $ - $ 1,151

The Company determines the timing and amount afrdqases from time to time based on its assessofigatious factors including
prevailing market conditions, alternate uses oftaggiquidity, the economic environment and otffi@ctors. The timing and amount of
these purchases may change at any time and froentditime. The Company has and may from timene tin the future repurchase
shares on the open market through Rule 10b5-1 pharish enable a company to repurchase sharesmes tivhen it otherwise might be
precluded from doing so under insider trading laws.



In addition, the Company continued to repurchaseeshto support the needs of the employee stocis pl8hares totaling $705 million
were purchased to support the needs of the empkipek plans during fiscal 2014 as compared to $6illfon in fiscal 2013. At August
31, 2014, 48.4 million shares of common stock weserved for future issuances under the Compaayisus employee benefit plans.

(14) Stock Compensation Plan:

The Walgreen Co. Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "Om®iBlan") which became effective in fiscal 201&vides for incentive
compensation to Walgreens non-employee directfiisecs and employees, and consolidates into desipign several previously
existing equity compensation plans: the ExecutiieelSOption Plan, the Long-Term Performance IneenBlan, the Broad Based
Employee Stock Option Plan, and the Nonemployeeddir Stock Plan (collectively, the "Former PlansAk of the effective date of the
Omnibus Plan, no further grants may be made um@éeFormer Plans and shares that were availablesoance under the Former Plans
and not subject to outstanding awards became &alailer issuance (in addition to newly authorizedres) under the Omnibus Plan. A
total of 60.4 million shares became available feliery under the Omnibus Plan.

A summary of the equity awards authorized and afsbdl for future grants under the Omnibus Plan archEr Plans follows:

Available for future grants at August 31, 2013 56,454,49
Newly authorized option -
Grantec (11,209,85)
Cancellation and forfeiture 1,417,14!
Plan termination 1,690,45
Available for future grants at August 31, 2014 48,352,24

A summary of the Company's stock options outstapdimder the Omnibus Plan and Former Plans follows:

Aggregate
Weighted- Weighted- Intrinsic
Average Exercise Average Remaining Value (in
Options Shares Price Contractual Term (Years) millions)
Outstanding at August 31, 2013 41,216,17 $ 34.6¢ 6.14 $ 54¢
Grantec 6,744,58. 60.7(
Exercisec (13,832,50) 35.41
Expired/Forfeited (2,211,42) 42.5¢
Outstanding at August 31, 2014 31,916,82 $ 39.2¢ 6.4C $ 674
Unvested at August 31, 2014 18,869,91 $ 43.3: 79 8 32€
Exercisable at August 31, 2014 12,433,71 $ 32.91 404 $ 342

The fair value of each option grant was determiumgidg the Black-Scholes option pricing model whik following weighted-average
assumptions used in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012:

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest rat® 1.9¢% 1.15% 1.72%
Average life of option (year® 6.S 7.C 7.6
Volatility © 26.2% 24.9% 27.02%
Dividend yield® 2.48% 2.4% 2.9(%
Weighted-average grant-date fair value $ 12.8¢ $ 6.7t % 8.0¢

@ Represents the U.S. Treasury security rates foetpected term of the optio

@ Represents the period of time that options graatedexpected to be outstanding. The Company asdiseparate groups of employ
with similar exercise behavior to determine theestpd term

@) Volatility was based on historical and implied wdity of the Company's common stoc

@) Represents the Company's cash dividend for theceeghéerm

The intrinsic value for options exercised in fis2all4, 2013 and 2012 was $346 million, $159 milkord $22 million, respectively. The total
fair value of options vested in fiscal 2014, 2008 2012 was $58 million, $51 million and $125 naifli respectively.

Cash received from the exercise of options in fi2044 was $490 million compared to $471 milliorttwe prior year. The related tax benefit
realized was $130 million in fiscal 2014 compare&®60 million in the prior year.

The Walgreen Co. 1982 Employees Stock Purchaseplamits eligible employees to purchase commorksad®0% of the fair market val
at the date of purchase. Employees may make meshay cash or payroll deductions up to certaiitdiniThe aggregate number of shares
that may be purchased under this Plan is 94 millidhAugust 31, 2014, 15 million shares were adal# for future purchase.

Restricted performance shares issued under thelfdimand Former Plans offer performance-based iiveeavards and equity-based awards
to key employees. Restricted stock units are edgaty-based awards with performance requireméatisare granted to middle managers and
key employees. The restricted performance shamsestricted stock unit awards are both subjentstrictions as to continuous employmr
except in the case of death, normal retirementtat aind permanent disability. In accordance W8C Topic 718, Compensati— Stock



Compensation, compensation expense is recognizadstaight-line basis over the employee's vegigrgpd or to the employee's retirement
eligible date, if earlier.

A summary of information relative to the Compangstricted stock units follows:

Weightec-
Average

Grant-Date
Outstanding Shares Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at August 31, 2013 3,497,831 $ 41.57
Grantec 679,65t 60.7¢
Dividends 79,07: -
Forfeited (265,65) 43.6:
Vested (710,85) 35.0¢
Outstanding at August 31, 2014 3,280,060 $ 45.4C
A summary of information relative to the Comparpesformance shares follows:

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date
Outstanding Shares Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at August 31, 2013 2,217,611 $ 32.9¢
Grantec 615,92: 65.0¢
Forfeited (163,479 44.01
Vested (606,921 28.31
Outstanding at August 31, 2014 2,06313 §$ 44.8¢

The Company also issues shares to nonemployedatsed=ach director receives an equity grant afek every year on November 1. The
number of shares granted is determined by divigitigh,000 by the price of a share of common stockevember 1. Each nonemployee
director may elect to receive this annual sharatgrathe form of shares or deferred stock unitsfiscal 2014, nonemployee directors
received a share grant of 2,892 shares compargd@ 89 shares and 4,788 shares in fiscal 2013 ah2l, 28spectively. New directors in any
fiscal year earned a prorated amount. Paymethechhnual retainer is paid in the form of cashciwhmnay be deferred.

A summary of total stock-based compensation exptiesvs (in millions):

2014 2013 2012
Stock options $ 52 $ 51 $ 62
Restricted stock unit 48 33 24
Performance shart 8 15 7
Share Walgreens 6 5 6
$ 114 $ 104 $ 99

(15) Retirement Benefits

The principal retirement plan for employees is\tti@lgreen Profit-Sharing Retirement Trust, to whichh the Company and participating
employees contribute. The Company's contributidrich has historically related to FIFO earningsdoefinterest and taxes and a portion of
which is in the form of a guaranteed match, is iheiteed annually at the discretion of the Board @kbBtors. The profisharing provision wé
$355 million in fiscal 2014, $342 million in fisc2D13 and $283 million in fiscal 2012. The Compampntributions were $328 million in
fiscal 2014, $262 million in fiscal 2013 and $378lion in fiscal 2012.

The Company provides certain health insurance literfef retired employees who meet eligibility régments, including age, years of
service and date of hire. The costs of these fisragE accrued over the service life of the emg@doylin fiscal 2012, the Company amende
prescription drug program for certain Medicare-blig retirees to a group-based Company-sponsoretidsliee Part D program, or employer
group waiver program, effective January 1, 2018e Tompany's postretirement health benefit plaroigunded.

Components of net periodic benefit costs (in miléh

2014 2013 2012
Service cos $ 8 $ 9 3% 13
Interest cos 17 14 22
Amortization of actuarial los 11 12 8
Amortization of prior service cost (23 (22) (10
Total postretirement benefit cost $ 13 8 13 $ 33

Change in benefit obligation (in millions



2014 2013

Benefit obligation at Septembel $ 35C $ 342
Service cos 8 9
Interest cos 17 14
Amendment: (23 -
Actuarial loss (gain 88 (@D}
Benefit payment (29 (20
Participants' contributions 6 6
Benefit obligation at August 31 $ 427 $ 35C

Change in plan assets (in millions):

2014 2013
Plan assets at fair value at Septemhb $ - $ =
Participants' contributior 6 6
Employer contribution 13 14
Benefits paid (19 (20)
Plan assets at fair value at August 31 $ - 8 -
Funded status (in millions):

2014 2013
Funded status at August $ (427 $ (350
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance SKHeemillions):

2014 2013
Current liabilities (present value of expected 2a&bbenefit payment: $ (11 $ (20

Non-current liabilities (416 (340

Net liability recognized at August : $ (427 $ (350
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekier(Bicome) loss (in millions):

2014 2013
Prior service cred $ (22¢) $ (22¢)
Net actuarial los 22t 14¢
Amounts expected to be recognized as componemistqgferiodic costs for fiscal year 2015 (in milln

2015

Prior service cred $ (24)
Net actuarial los 19

The measurement date used to determine postretitebanefits is August 31.

The discount rate assumption used to compute tsiegtivement benefit obligation at year-end wa®%4or 2014 and 5.20% for 2013. The
discount rate assumption used to determine neddlierbenefit cost was 5.05%, 4.15% and 5.40% &walfi years ending 2014, 2013 and 2
respectively.

The consumer price index assumption used to contpatpostretirement benefit obligation was 2.00¥&2f@14 and 2013.

Future benefit costs were estimated assuming mlecbists would increase at a 7.15% annual rate ugithddecreasing to 5.25% over the n
nine years and then remaining at a 5.25% annualtgrate thereafter. A one percentage point chamgfee assumed medical cost trend rate
would have the following effects (in millions):

1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on service and interest ci $ 1) $ 1
Effect on postretirement obligation 3 7

Estimated future federal subsidies are immateoiahfl periods presented. Future benefit paymemtsa follows (in millions):

Estimated
Future
Benefit

Payments



2015 $ 12

2016 13
2017 14
2018 16
2019 17
2020-2024 112

The expected benefit to be paid net of the estithiteeral subsidy during fiscal year 2015 is $1Riomi.

(16) Supplementary Financial Information

Significant non-cash transactions in fiscal 201lude $322 million for additional capital leaseightions. Significant non-cash transactions
in fiscal 2013 include $77 million related to tmétial valuation of the AmerisourceBergen warranBgnificant noncash transactions in fist

2012 include $3 billion in stock issuance relatioghe investment in Alliance Boots.

Included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets captioa the following assets and liabilities (in foitis):

2014 2013
Accounts receivabl-
Accounts receivabl $ 3,391 $ 2,78¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts (see Note 1) (173) (154)
$ 3,21¢ $ 2,63
Other nor-current asset-
Intangible assets, net (see Note $ 1,18 $ 1,307
Investment in AmerisourceBergen 887 22E
Warrants 552 18¢
Other 45€ 23¢
$ 3,07¢ $ 1,95¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit-
Accrued salarie $ 1,12 $ 92¢
Taxes other than income tax 377 42C
Insurance 18E 28E
Profit sharing 25¢ 23¢
Other 1,757 1,70¢
$ 3,701 $ 3,571
Other nor-current liabilities-
Postretirement healthcare bene $ 41¢ $ 34C
Accrued ren 40¢ 382
Insurance 42¢ 403
Other 1,68¢ 947
$ 294: $ 2,067
Summary of Quarterly Results (Unaudited)
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Quarter Ended
November February May August Fiscal Year
Fiscal 2014
Net Sales $ 18,32¢ $ 19,60 $ 19,40 $ 19,057 $ 76,39
Gross Profit 5,152 5,65( 5,44( 5,32 21,56¢
Net Earnings attributable to Walgreen Co. 69t 754 722 (239 1,932
Per Common Shar-
Basic $ 0.7 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7¢ $ (0.25 $ 2.02
Diluted 0.7z 0.7¢ 0.7t (0.25) 2.0C
Cash Dividends Declared Per Common Share $ 0.31t $ 0.31t $ 0.31t $ 0.337F $ 1.282¢
Fiscal 2013
Net Sales $ 17,31¢ $ 18,647 $ 18,31 $ 17,94: $ 72,217
Gross Profit 5,09¢ 5,607 5,22z 5,191 21,11¢
Net Earnings 413 75€ 624 657 2,45(
Per Common Shar
Basic $ 044 % 0.8C $ 0.6 $ 0.6¢ $ 2.5¢
Diluted 0.4z 0.7¢ 0.6t 0.6¢ 2.5¢€
Cash Dividends Declared Per Common Share $ 0.27F $ 0.27F $ 0.27F $ 0.31f $ 1.14(C

Common Stock Prices (Unaudited)



The following table sets forth the sales price engf the Company's common stock by quarter duhiadiscal years ended August 31, 2014
and August 31, 2013 as reported by the Consolidatadsaction Reporting System.

Quarter Ended

November February May August Fiscal Year
Fiscal 201¢ High $ 60.9: $ 69.8¢ $ 7191 $ 76.3¢ $ 76.3¢
Low 48.1¢ 54.8¢ 62.8( 57.7¢ 48.1¢
Fiscal 201: High $ 36.98 $ 4198 $ 50.77 $ 51.2¢ $ 51.2¢

Low 32.1¢€ 34.2% 39.9¢ 44.12 32.1¢




Management's Report on Internal Control

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervisind with the participation of our management,udalg our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, we conducted amlenation of the effectiveness of our internal cohtrver financial reporting based on the
framework inlnternal Control - Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on our evaluation, manageconcluded that our internal control over fitiahreporting was effective as of
August 31, 2014. Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Comgaiindependent registered public accounting fitess audited our internal control over
financial reporting, as stated in its report whiglncluded herein.

/sl Gregory D. Wasso /sl Timothy R. McLevisk

Gregory D. Wasso Timothy R. McLevist
President and Chief Executive Offic Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRMS
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of WsdgrCo.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Walgreen Co. and subsidiaries (thenffaay") as of August 31, 2014 and
2013, and the related consolidated statementsroingg, comprehensive income, shareholders' eciity,cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended August 31, 2014. Thesmdial statements are the responsibility of thengany's management. Our responsib

is to express an opinion on these financial statéseased on our audits. We did not audit thenfifed statements of Alliance Boots GmbH
("Alliance Boots"), the Company's investment in @lhis accounted for by use of the equity method (see 5 to the consolidated financial
statements), for the years ended August 31, 20d2@h3. The accompanying 2014 and 2013 consotidatancial statements of the
Company include its equity investment in Alliancedss of $7,248 million and $6,261 million as of Aisj 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
and its equity earnings in Alliance Boots of $61iflion and $344 million for the years ended Aug8% 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
financial statements of Alliance Boots as of andtiie year ended May 31, 2014 and for the ten nsoatided May 31, 2013, prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards as issued by the International Accour8itagdards Board, were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to uspandpinion, insofar as it relates to the amoumtkided for the Company's equity
investment and equity earnings in Alliance Bootstlee basis of International Financial Reportingnsiards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board, is based on the reffohte other auditors. We have applied auditimcpdures to the adjustments to reflect
Company's equity investment and equity earningslliance Boots in accordance with accounting prihes generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptexused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatodits and the report of the other auditors jgiea reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the repfattie other auditors, such consolidated finarstalements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Walgreen Cal smbsidiaries as of August 31, 2014 and 2013 tlemdesults of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the peginded August 31, 2014, in conformity with accingnprinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Aus) 31, 2014, based on the criteria establishéatémnal Control — Integrated Framework
(1992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report datelidr 20, 2014 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the Company's internaitaa over financial reporting based on our audit.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, lllinois
October 20, 2014




To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of WegrCo.:

We have audited the internal control over finanmglorting of Walgreen Co. and subsidiaries (therigany") as of August 31, 2014, based
on criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Framework (19983ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike
Treadway Commission. The Company's managemensp@nsible for maintaining effective internal cohwaer financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internarabover financial reporting, included in the angmanying Management's Report on Internal
Control. Our responsibility is to express an opinon the Company's internal control over finanmglorting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corax@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etnadutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiralecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemidi the company's principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons penigrg similar functions, and effected by the compsulspard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anet preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. A company's internaitom over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihnéartaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets afahgany; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adeace with generally accepted accounting princjied that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordanceawithorizations of management and directors of ¢mepany; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiothaf company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltaarover financial reporting to future periods ateéject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the polideprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fioal reporting as of August 31, 2014,
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Framework (19923ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns
the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endeglist 31, 2014 of the Company and our report datdber 20, 2014 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statemerstsdal on our audit and the report of other auditors.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, lllinois
October 20, 2014




To the Board of Alliance Boots GmbH:

We have audited the non-statutory consolidatedhfirz statements of Alliance Boots GmbH and itssadiries (the "Group", not
presented seperately herein), which comprise tloiGstatements of financial position as at 31 May4and 2013, and the related
Group income statements, Group statements of cdrapséve income, Group statements of changes iryegid Group statements of
cash flows for the year ended 31 May 2014 and tenths ended 31 May 2013. These non-statutory didased financial statements are
the responsibility of the Group's management. 1@sponsibility is to express an opinion on these-statutory consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBigUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdibtain reasonable assurance about whethethstatutory consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatementauttit includes examining, on a test basis, evidesupporting the amounts and
disclosures in the non-statutory consolidated firstatements. An audit also includes assesbhmg@ccounting principles used and the
significant accounting estimates made by manageraswell as evaluating the overall presentatiothefnon-statutory consolidated
financial statements. We believe that our auditsige a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the non-statutory consolidated ficial statements present fairly, in all materigiects, the financial position of the
Group as at 31 May 2014 and 2013, and the resliits aperations and its cash flows for the yeatezh31 May 2014 and ten months
ended 31 May 2013 in conformity with InternatioRalancial Reporting Standards as issued by theratenal Accounting Standards
Board, including the requirements of IAS 34, Intefinancial Reporting.

/s/IKPMG LLP

London
United Kingdom
16 July 2014




ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accournié on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management conducted an evaluation of the effentige of the design and operation of our disclosangrols and procedures as of the
end of the period covered by this Form 10-K. Taetwls evaluation was conducted under the supervand with the participation of
the Company's management, including its Chief Exreefficer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (Cl@ased upon the controls
evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded thaif tee end of the period covered by this repaut,disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to provide reasonablgrasse that information required to be disclosedunExchange Act reports is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported withitime periods specified by the SEC, and thelh snformation is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the CEO dfd,@s appropriate to allow timely decisions regaydequired disclosure.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management's report on internal control over finameporting and the report of Deloitte & ToucheR, the Company's independent
registered public accounting firm, related to tlasisessment of the effectiveness of internal cboter financial reporting are included in
Part Il, Item 8 of this Form 10-K and are incorgerhin this Item 9A by reference.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

In connection with the evaluation pursuant to ExgeAct Rule 13a-15(d) of the Company's internatia over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) by the Camyps management, including its CEO and CFO, nagémduring the quarter
ended August 31, 2014 were identified that haveernrally affected, or are reasonably likely to matiy affect, the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. The Company glan transition to a new general ledger systerhérfiscal quarter ending November
30, 2014. This is part of an ongoing initiativestthance the overall design and operating effentise of the Company's financial
reporting controls and is not in response to antifled internal control deficiency. Managemenliéees that controls over project
development and implementation are adequate toeatisere will be no material effect, or a reasoedikklinood of a material effect, on
our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, do xmeat that our disclosure controls and proceduresipinternal control over
financial reporting will prevent or detect all ersand all fraud. A control system, no matter lvoell designed and operated, can provide
only reasonable, not absolute, assurance thabttiteot system's objectives will be met. The desifja control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, andeheftis of controls must be considered relativihé&r costs. Further, because of the
inherent limitations in all control systems, no leraion of controls can provide absolute assurdhaemisstatements due to error or fraud
will not occur or that all control issues and imstas of fraud, if any, within the Company have bdetected. These inherent limitations
include the realities that judgments in decisiorkim@ can be faulty and that breakdowns can occoatse of simple error or mistake.
Controls can also be circumvented by the indivichgas of some persons, by collusion of two or npmeple, or by management override
of the controls. The design of any system of astis based in part on certain assumptions alheutkelihood of future events, and
there can be no assurance that any design wilesdicin achieving its stated goals under all paaéfiture conditions. Projections of any
evaluation of controls effectiveness to future pésiare subject to risks. Over time, controls imagome inadequate because of changes
in conditions or deterioration in the degree of ptince with policies or procedures.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc.

Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc. is a new corporatimorporated on September 2, 2014 under the ld\Rel@aware and is a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Walgreens. To date, Walgr&wats Alliance has not conducted any activitieothan those incident to its formation
and the matters contemplated by the Reorganizienger Agreement (described below). Walgreens 8déditance currently has no
material assets, operations, revenues or cash.flows

Reorganization Merger Agreeme

On October 17, 2014, Walgreens entered into anékgeat and Plan of Merger (the Reorganization Mefggeement) by and among
Walgreens, Ontario Merger Sub, Inc., an lllinoispmration and indirect wholly owned subsidiary oéMteens (Merger Sub), and Walgreens
Boots Alliance. The Reorganization Merger Agreetpenvides that Merger Sub will merge with and ilt@lgreens (the Reorg Merger),
with Walgreens surviving the Reorg Merger as a Whmlvned subsidiary of Walgreens Boots Alliancet tide effective time of the Reorg
Merger, issued and outstanding shares of Walgreemsnon stock will be converted automatically irtie tight to receive shares of
Walgreens Boots Alliance common stock, on a onesfm basis. Walgreens shareholders will own theesaumber of shares of Walgreens
Boots Alliance common stock as they own of Walgseemmmon stock immediately prior to the completiéthe Reorg Merger, and, after
taking into account the completion of the secoeg $tansaction, such shares will represent the sawmership percentage of Walgreens
Boots Alliance as they would have of Walgreens idiaely following the completion of the second stegmsaction without the Reo



Merger.
The completion of the Reorg Merger depends ondlkisfaction or waiver of several conditions, inéhgithe following:
. adoption of the Reorganization Merger Agreementapputoval of the Reorg Merger by Walgreens shadshs]

. no law, statute, rule or regulation, order, juégr) writ, injunction, decree, settlement or stitign exists or has been enacted,
entered, promulgated or enforced by any governrhanthority, which prohibits or makes illegal thenepletion of the Reorg
Merger,

. receipt of necessary regulatory approvals, liceaseésthird party consent

. the satisfaction or waiver of each of the comudlisi to closing set forth in the Purchase and Optigreement with respect to the
second step transaction, and written confirmatipedch of the parties to the Purchase and Optigrekgent that each such pe
stands ready to, and will, consummate the secapiteinsaction immediately following the consumratf the Reorg Merge

. the registration statement on Form S-4 filed bglgkeens Boots Alliance in connection with the &@ste of Walgreens Boots
Alliance common stock in the Reorg Merger shalldthbecome effective under the Securities Act, asded and there shall be
no stop order suspending such effectiveness ampidaweeding for such purpose shall be pending befotiereatened by the SE

. the approval of the listing of Walgreens Bootiaice common stock to be issued in connection thighReorg Merger on such
national stock exchanges as determined by Walgreeuw

. the receipt by Walgreens of an opinion from Wattht.ipton, Rosen & Katz to the effect that theoRgMerger will qualify as a
“"reorganization” within the meaning of Section 398¢f the Internal Revenue Code of 1956, as ame(idedCode) and/or a
transaction described in Section 351 of the C

Walgreens may terminate the Reorganization Mergge@ment at any time, even after adoption by Waligeshareholders, if Walgreens'
board of directors determines to do so. In addjtthe Reorganization Merger Agreement will autaoadiy terminate upon the termination
the Purchase and Option Agreement prior to the ¢atiop of the second step transaction.

The foregoing description of the Reorganization gigerAgreement is qualified in its entirety by refiece to the full text of the Reorganizat
Merger Agreement, which is attached as Exhibitizfto and incorporated herein by reference.

Annual Meeting of Shareholde

Walgreen Co. does not expect to hold an annualingeet shareholders while the second step of tHamrde Boots transaction and
reorganization of Walgreens into a new holding camypstructure (the "Reorganization”) are pendingd)\aifl hold an annual meeting
during its fiscal year ending August 31, 2015 ahlje Reorganization has not been completedhdfReorganization is completed, it is
currently intended for Walgreens Boots Alliance.Ito hold its initial annual meeting of stockhatlduring its fiscal year ended
August 31, 2015 as promptly as practicable follgniine completion of the Reorganization. If the R@oization is completed by the
first quarter of calendar 2015 as currently expesctéalgreens Boots Alliance plans to hold its aliatnnual meeting of stockholders
("WBA Annual Meeting") on May 20, 2015 at a timedgplace to be specified in its proxy statementtirigto that meeting. The WBA
Annual Meeting will be held only if the Reorganipat is completed.

If you want Walgreens Boots Alliance to consideslirding a proposal in its proxy statement relatmghe WBA Annual Meeting
following completion of the Reorganization, you mhave delivered it in writing to Walgreens Bootliagce's Corporate Secretary,
Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc., 108 Wilmot Roadgbield, Illinois 60015 by November 28, 2014 (drthe date of the WBA Annual
Meeting is moved by more than 30 days, the deadlifide a reasonable time before Walgreens Bodliafce begins to print and send
its proxy materials, which date will be announcgdMelgreens Boots Alliance), and such proposalyand submission thereof must
comply with applicable SEC rules and regulatiorgarding the inclusion of stockholder proposalsampany-sponsored proxy
materials.

If you want to present a proposal or nominate alickte for election to the Walgreens Boots AlliaBaard of Directors at the WBA
Annual Meeting following completion of the Reorgzation but do not wish to have it included in Welgns Boots Alliance's proxy
statement, you must submit the proposal in writllvalgreens Boots Alliance's Corporate Secretdgigreens Boots Alliance, Inc.,
108 Wilmot Road, Deerfield, Illinois 60015 on oteafJanuary 20, 2015 and no later than Februara®s (or, if the date of the WBA
Annual Meeting is changed to be before April 20120r after July 19, 2015, then between (i) thaelof business on the 120th day
prior to the date of the WBA Annual Meeting and ffiie later of the close of business on the 90yhpiler to the date of the WBA
annual meeting or the close of business on the d&jhafter the first public announcement of theeddtthe WBA annual meeting).
Stockholder proposals must be in proper writtemfand must meet the detailed disclosure requiresrsaitforth in Walgreens Boots
Alliance's bylaws, including a description of th®posal, the relationship between the proposingksimlder and the underlying
beneficial owner, if any, and such parties' stocklings and derivative positions in Walgreens Ba@dtg&nce's securities. Walgreens
Boots Alliance's bylaws also require that stockkolgroposals concerning nomination of directors/igi® additional disclosure,
including such information Walgreens Boots Alliart=ems appropriate to ascertain the nominee'sfigaéibns to serve on its Board of
Directors, disclosure of compensation arrangemagtiseen the nominee, the nominating stockholdertlamdinderlying beneficial
owner, if any, and any other information requireddmply with the proxy rules and applicable lalfvyou would like a copy of these
provisions, please contact Walgreens Boots Allisn€erporate Secretary at the above address, essitalgreens Boots Alliance's
bylaws filed as an exhibit to the S-4 registratstatement filed by Walgreens Boots Alliance in caction with the Reorganization.
Failure to comply with Walgreens Boots Allianceyddw procedures and deadlines may preclude presamend consideration of the
matter or nomination of the applicable candidateefection at the WBA Annual Meeting.



PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporée Governance

The information required by Item 10, with the extb@p of the information relating to the executiviicers of the Company, which is
presented in Part | above under the heading "ExexQifficers of the Registrant,” is incorporatedédie by reference to the following
sections of the Company's Proxy Statement relatinis next Annual Meeting of Shareholders (theo’®rStatement”): Proposal 1,
Election of Directors; The Board of Directors, Bo&ommittees and Corporate Governance; and Sebi(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance, or will be included in an ach@ent to this Form 10-K. Walgreen Co. does npeekto hold an annual meeting
of shareholders while the second step transactidritee Reorganization are pending and will holduwanual meeting during its fiscal
year ending August 31, 2015 only if the Reorgamrahas not been complete

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Coagplitable to all employees, officers and directbet incorporates policies and
guidelines designed to deter wrongdoing and to pterhonest and ethical conduct and compliance aypiicable laws and

regulations. The Company has also adopted a Ciothics for Financial Executives. This Code apgplio and has been signed by the
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officend the Controller. The Company intends to priyrgisclose on its website in
accordance with applicable rules required disclesiirchanges to or waivers, if any, of the Codgthics for Financial Executives or
the Code of Business Conduct for directors and ke officers.

Charters of all committees of the Company's Boduldiectors, as well as the Company's CorporategBmance Guidelines and Code of
Ethics for Financial Executives and Code of Businésnduct, are available on the Company's webkiterestor.walgreens.com or,
upon written request and free of charge, in prititaicopy form. Written requests should be sehVaigreen Co., Attention:
Shareholder Relations, Mail Stop #1833, 108 WilRoad, Deerfield, lllinois 60015.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorporatesiein by reference to the following sectionshaf Company's Proxy Statement:
Director Compensation; and Executive Compensatiowill be included in an amendment to this FormKLO

The material incorporated herein by reference ¢ontlaterial under the caption "Compensation Comefeport” in the Proxy
Statement, or included in an amendment to this FK, shall be deemed furnished, and not filedhia Form 10-K and shall not be
deemed incorporated by reference into any filindarrthe Securities Act of 1933, as amended, oB#wirities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, as a result of this furnishing, exicetite extent that the Company specifically incoapes it by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Stockholder Matte

The information required by Item 12 is incorporatesiein by reference to the following sectionshaf Company's Proxy Statement:
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Mahagement; and Equity Compensation Plans, osilhcluded in an
amendment to this Form 10-K.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is incorporatesiein by reference to the following sectionshaf Company's Proxy Statement:
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions;TaedBoard of Directors, Board Committees and CagoGovernance, or will be
included in an amendment to this Form 10-K.

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporatesein by reference to the following sectionshaf Company's Proxy Statement:
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm FReeksServices, or will be included in an amendmetibiis Form 10-K.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedue
(a) Documents filed as part of this repc
Q) Financial statements. The following financial statements, supplementaatadand reports of independent public

accountants appearing in Part Il, Item 8 of thimtF&(-K and are incorporated herein by referer

Consolidated Statements of Earnings, Comprehetsbane and Shareholders' Equity for the years ended
August 31, 2014, 2013 and 20

Consolidated Balance Sheets at August 31, 20142@h8

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ye@dled August 31, 2014, 2013 and 2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems

Management's Report on Internal Con

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings



(2) Financial statement schedules and supplementary information

Schedules |, II, lll, IV and V are not submittedchase they are not applicable or not required ocale the required
information is included in the Financial Statememfgerenced in (1) above or the notes thereto.

Other Financial Statements -

Separate financial statements of the registrang baen omitted because it is primarily an operatomgpany, and all
of its subsidiaries are included in the consoliddieancial statements.

Alliance Boots GmbH

On August 2, 2012, we completed a 45% equity imaest in Alliance Boots GmbH that we account fongsthe
equity method of accounting. SEC Rule 3-09 of Ratipn S-X requires that we include or incorpotayereference
Alliance Boots GmbH financial statements in thigrRd 0-K if our investment was considered to be i§icemt in the
context of Rule 3-09 for the year ended August2®114. Alliance Boots GmbH audited consolidateaficial
statements and accompanying notes (prepared imdzouze with IFRS and audited in accordance with G&AS),
including the statements of financial position arh 31, 2014 and 2013 of Alliance Boots and itssiliaries (the
Group) and the related Group income statementgysstatements of comprehensive income, Group statesnof
changes in equity and Group statements of casltsffomeach of the years in the three-year periattdarch 31,
2014 are filed as Exhibit 99.1 hereto and incorfemtdnerein by reference.

3 Exhibits. Exhibits 10.1 through 10.66 constitute managementracts or compensatory plans or arrangementsreebjo be
filed as exhibits pursuant to Item 15(b) of thigiAdL(-K.

The agreements included as exhibits to this regrerincluded to provide information regarding themms and not
intended to provide any other factual or disclosofermation about the Company or the other pattethe
agreements. The agreements may contain reprasestand warranties by each of the parties to pipdicable
agreement that were made solely for the benefti@bther parties to the applicable agreement, and:

» should not in all instances be treated agycaieal statements of fact, but rather as a waallotating the
risk to one of the parties if those statements @itovbe inaccurate;

* may have been qualified by disclosures thatweade to the other party in connection with tegatiation
of the applicable agreement, which disclosuresateecessarily reflected in the agreement;

* may apply standards of materiality in a wagttls different from what may be viewed as mateonafou or
other investors; and

» were made only as of the date of the applealgreement or such other date or dates as mgeb#iad in
the agreement and are subject to more recent gevelus.

Accordingly, these representations and warrantiag mot describe the actual state of affairs ab®ftate they were
made or at any other time.

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit No. Description SEC Document Referenci
5\;];% ?ggi zérz)d aﬁ?fnncg%rgst?%né]gﬁagg da'rgé)ng Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Walgré&m.'s
* "y _ . _ . .
21 Acquisitions Holdings Limited dated June 18, 20di2d EirggéiipgﬂtngnlgoglszK (File No. 1-00604) filsdh
related annexe: ' :
Amendment No. 1, dated August 5, 2014, to the
Purchase and Option Agreement and Walgreen Co.
Shareholders Agreement, by and among Walgreen Co.,
Alliance Boots GmbH, AB Acquisitions Holdings Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Walgré&m.'s
2.2* Limited, Walgreen Scotland Investments LP, KKR Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-00604) filedh
Sprint (European Il) Limited, KKR Sprint (2006) the SEC on August 6, 2014.

Limited and KKR Sprint (KPE) Limited, Alliance Sant
Participations S.A., Stefano Pessina and Kohlbeayis
Roberts & Co. L.P

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated October 174201

2.3 by and among Walgreen Co., Walgreens Boots Alliancé-iled herewith
Inc. and Ontario Merger Sub, Ir

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Walgré&m.'s



3.1

3.2

4.1**

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of
Walgreen Co

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Walgreen Co., as
amended effective as of August 2, 2012.

Indenture, dated as of July 17, 2008, between \Walgr
Co. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
trustee.

Form of 5.25% Note due 2019.

Form of 1.000% Note due 2015.

Form of 1.800% Note due 2017.

Form of 3.100% Note due 2022.

Form of 4.400% Note due 2042.

Shareholders Agreement, dated as of August 2, 2012,
among Walgreen Co., Stefano Pessina, KKR Sprint
(European II) Limited, KKR Sprint (2006) Limited @n
KKR Sprint (KPE) Limited, Alliance Santé
Participations S.A., Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & CP.
and certain other investors party ther:

Amendment No. 1, dated August 5, 2014, to the
Purchase and Option Agreement and Walgreen Co.
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EXHIBIT 2.3
AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

This Agreement and Plan of Merger (this " Agreenigntlated as of October 17, 2014, is made by andngnwalgreen Co., i
lllinois corporation (the " Company), Ontario Merger Sub, Inc., an lllinois corpomatiand indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Camy
and direct wholly owned subsidiary of HoldCo (" Mer Sub") (the Company and Merger Sub, when referred thvidually, each a
Constituent Corporatiot and when referred to collectively, " Constitu€uarporations’), and Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc., a Delav
corporation and a direct wholly owned subsidiaryhaf Company (" HoldCb).

WHEREAS, the Company owns all the outstanding shafstock of HoldCo;

WHEREAS, HoldCo owns all the outstanding sharesteék of Merger Sub;

WHEREAS, there are no shares of preferred stockeCompany currently issued or outstanding;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of each of the Gibmsnt Corporations has approved and declaredviisable and in the be
interests of each of the Constituent Corporatiomd is respective shareholders that Merger Sub bmyed with and into the Compe

(hereinafter, in such capacity, sometimes refetoeas the " Surviving Compariy as permitted by the Business Corporation Acthef Stat
of lllinois (the "IBCA") under and pursuant to the terms hereinaftefostt (the "_Reorg Mergeb);

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company rEommended that the shareholders of the Compamypap and adopt tt
Agreement, the Reorg Merger and the other trarmactiontemplated hereby;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Merger Sub hemommended that the sole shareholder of MergeraBptove and adopt tl
Agreement, the Reorg Merger and the other trarmactiontemplated hereby;

WHEREAS, the Reorg Merger is conditioned upon, ailtinot be completed unless, the Second Step Gipgas defined in tt
Purchase and Option Agreement, dated as of Jun2012, as amended on August 5, 2014 (the " Purdmagéption Agreemeri), by anc
among the Company, Alliance Boots GmbH and AB Asijjoins Holdings Limited)s to be completed immediately following the contiola
of the Reorg Merger ;

WHEREAS, for federal income tax purposes, it ieintted that the Reorg Merger shall qualify (i) as@rganization within tf
meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal RevenoeeCof 1986, as amended (the " Cd¥end that this Agreement constitutes, ar
adopted as, a plan of reorganization for purpo$&otions 354 and 361 of the Code and/or (ii) &mmsaction described in Section 35
the Code; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the represémmat warranties, covenants and agreements codtaintis Agreement, tl
parties have agreed as follows:

ARTICLE 1
PLAN OF MERGER

1.01  Plan of Merger A plan of merger of each of the Constituent @oagions pursuant to the provisions of Article fitloe
IBCA is adopted as follows:

(a) The Reorg MergerUpon the terms and subject to the condition$isf Agreement, and in accordance with the IBCAhat
Effective Time (as defined in Section 1.02 of thgreement), Merger Sub shall be merged with anal i Company,
whereupon the separate existence of Merger Subcgze, and the Company shall continue underaheerfWalgreen Co." as
the Surviving Company and shall continue to be goeg by the laws of the State of lllino

(b) Merger Sub Common Stoclkit the Effective Time, each share of common stoicklerger Sub, par value $0.01 per share (the "
Merger Sub Common Stoc¢k issued and outstanding immediately prior toHfiective Time shall be converted into and
exchanged for one share of common stock, par #0U&78125 per share, of the Surviving Compi

(c) Company Common StockAt the Effective Time, each share of common stoicthe Company, par value $0.078125 per share
(the " Company Common Stotk issued and outstanding immediately prior toHffective Time, and each share of Company
Common Stock owned by the Company as treasury sshell be converted into and exchanged for orlg fdid and
nonassessable share of common stock, par valug gérGhare, of HoldCo (theHoldCo Common Stoc").

(d) HoldCo Common StockEffective as of the Effective Time, each sharélofdCo Common Stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall remain issued and outstanding share of HoldCo Conftack and shall not be
affected by the Reorg Merge

(e) Company Awards At the Effective Time, all unexercised optiongpurchase Company Common Stock, restricted stoitk u
awards, performance share awards, deferred stackhwards and any other rights to acquire Compamy@on Stock
(collectively, the " Company Award$ then outstanding under any of the 2013 Walg@enOmnibus Incentive Plan, as




amended, the Walgreen Co. Executive Stock Optian,Rls amended, the Walgreen Co. Ldegn Performance Incentive Pl
as amended, the Walgreen Co. Nonemployee Direttak®lan, as amended, the Walgreen Co. 1982 Emeto@tock
Purchase Plan, as amended, the Share WalgreehsPFetahase/Option Plan, as amended, the drugstareinc. 2008 Equity
Incentive Plan, as amended and as assumed by thpa®g, the drugstore.com, inc. 1998 Stock Plaanaanded and as
assumed by the Company and any other compensajoity écentive plan then maintained by the Comp@ojiectively, the "
Company Plan¥), will be assumed by HoldCo. Each Company Awswdassumed by HoldCo under this Agreement will
continue to have, and be subject to, the same tanehgonditions that were applicable immediatelgmio the Effective Time,
as set forth in the applicable Company Plan anégipdicable award agreement thereunder (includinidpout limitation, the
vesting schedule (without acceleration thereof ibyg of the Reorg Merger and the transactionseraoptated hereby) and per
share exercise price), except that each Companydwill relate to the number of shares of HoldCar@aon Stock that is
equal to the number of shares of Company CommotkS$towhich such Company Award related immediapglgr to the
Effective Time. Effective as of the Effective Tinthe Company hereby assigns to Holdco, and Hdigeceby assumes, the
Company Plans and the award agreements pursutiie @ompany Plans that relate to the Company Aw

1.02  Effective Time of the Reorg MergeConcurrent with the Closing (as defined in Secfid5 of this Agreement), the
Company, HoldCo and Merger Sub shall cause artafleserger (the " Articles of Mergé) with respect to the Reorg Merger to be executed
and filed with the Secretary of State of the Stdtllinois (the " Secretary of Stat® as provided under the IBCA. The Reorg Mergeilsha
become effective at the date and time at whichhittieles of Merger have been duly filed with thecBgary of State or at such other date and
time as is agreed between the parties and speaifitha Articles of Merger (such date and time, thgfective Time"). From and after the
Effective Time, the Surviving Company shall possabproperties, rights, privileges, powers andahétaises of the Company and Merger Sub,
and all of the claims, obligations, liabilities,ide and duties of the Company and Merger Sub beathme the claims, obligations, liabilities,
debts and duties of the Surviving Company.

1.03  No Exchange of Stock Certificates is Requir&hch outstanding certificate representing shafr@€mpany Common Sto
shall be deemed for all purposes, from and afeelEtfective Time, to represent the same numbehafes of HoldCo Common Stock into
which such shares of Company Common Stock shalbheerted and exchanged in the Reorg Merger. Batdtanding certificate
representing shares of Merger Sub Common Stocklshaleemed for all purposes, from and after tHed&fre Time, to represent the same
number of shares of common stock of the Surviviegh@any into which such shares of Merger Sub Com8tonk shall be converted and
exchanged in the Reorg Merger. Holders of outstencertificates representing shares of Company idomStock or Merger Sub Common
Stock, as applicable, shall not be asked to suetesuach certificates for cancellation. The regedeowner on the books and records of the
Company or Merger Sub, as applicable, of all sugstanding certificates shall have and be entitbeeixercise all voting and other rights w
respect to and to receive dividends and otheribligions upon the shares of HoldCo Common Stogk@icommon stock of the Surviving
Company, as applicable, represented by such odiatanertificates.

1.04  Dissenting SharesNotwithstanding anything to the contrary contdimerein, holders of Company Common Stock who
have complied with requirements for perfecting eligsrs' rights under Section 11.70 of the IBCA Wélentitled to exercise such rights with
respect to the shares as to which such rights beee perfected (* Company Dissenting Sh&yet® the extent available under Section 11.70
of the IBCA. Upon consummation of the Reorg Merglee, Company Dissenting Shares shall cease tesbedsand outstanding and the
holders thereof only shall be entitled to receivetsconsideration as will be determined under Sactil.70 of the IBCA. If a holder of
Company Dissenting Shares shall fail to perfecthall otherwise waive, withdraw or lose its dissesitrights under the IBCA, such that
dissenters' rights can no longer be legally peefbor exercised under the IBCA with respect to shompany Common Stock, then the right
of such holder to receive such consideration fan@any Dissenting Shares as determined under Sekti@0 of the IBCA shall cease and
such Company Dissenting Shares shall be conveng@xchanged into HoldCo Common Stock as provideskiction 1.03 of this
Agreement.

1.05 Closing. Subjectto and in accordance with the termscamdlitions of this Agreement, the closing of theReMerger (th
" Closing") shall take place as soon as reasonably prattiedter satisfaction or waiver of the conditiomegedent in Section 6.01 of this
Agreement, at the offices of Wachtell, Lipton, RogeKatz, 51 West 52nd Street, New York, New YdtR019, unless another date or place
is determined by the Company in its sole discretion

ARTICLE Il
CHARTER AND BYLAWS; DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
2.01  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of Surviving@pany. The articles of incorporation and bylaws of Mar§ub, as in

effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, #hze the articles of incorporation and bylawslod Surviving Company until thereafter
amended in accordance with applicable law and pipécable provisions of the articles of incorpooatiand bylaws.

2.02  Directors of Surviving Company At the Effective Time, the directors of MergertSin office immediately prior to the
Effective Time shall be the directors of the SuimyCompany and shall continue to hold office uthtdir successors are duly elected or
appointed and qualified in the manner providedhdrticles of incorporation and bylaws of the 8ting Company or as otherwise provided
by law.

2.03  Officers of Surviving Company All persons who are officers of the Company indiagely prior to the Effective Time shall
remain as officers of the Surviving Company urité Board of Directors of the Surviving Company kb#ierwise determine. The Board of
Directors of the Surviving Company may elect or@ppsuch officers as it may determine in accor@anith the articles of incorporation a
bylaws of the Surviving Company or as otherwisevigted by law.




2.04  Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of HoldCdeach of HoldCo and the Company (in its capag#typole stockholder
HoldCo) agree to take all actions necessary antbappte to cause the certificate of incorporatima bylaws of HoldCo to be amended and
restated, effective as of or prior to the Effectiime, in substantially the forms determined appedp by HoldCo and the Company prior to
the Effective Time.

2.05 Directors of HoldCa Each of HoldCo and the Company (in its capag#tpole stockholder of HoldCo) agree to take all
actions necessary and appropriate to cause thaaliseof the Company in office immediately priothe Effective Time to be the directors of
HoldCo at the Effective Time, to continue to hofflae until their successors are duly elected graapted and qualified in the manner
provided in the certificate of incorporation andawys of HoldCo or as otherwise provided by law.

ARTICLE Il
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company represents and warrants to HoldCo ardé Sub as follows:

3.01 Organization, Standing, and Poweihe Company is duly organized, validly existargl in good standing under the laws
of the jurisdiction in which it is organized andshthe corporate power and authority to own, leassherwise hold its properties and assets
and to conduct its businesses as presently cordlucte

3.02  Authority; Execution and Delivery; Enforceability

(&) The Company has all requisite corporate power aitbaity to execute and deliver this Agreement emdonsummate the Rec
Merger. The Company's execution and delivery isf Agreement and consummation of the Reorg Mergee been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate action op#neof the Company, subject to the Company Slwdeh Approval. The
Company has duly executed and delivered this Agea¢nand this Agreement constitutes its legaldvatid binding obligation,
enforceable against it in accordance with its tef@xsept as such enforceability may be limited pgli@able bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, receivership, consemghip, moratorium or similar laws affecting thé@unement of creditors'
rights generally and except that the availabilityhe equitable remedy of specific performancenqurictive relief is subject to
the discretion of the court before which any pradeg may be brought

(b) The Board of Directors of the Company has dwgpted resolutions (i) approving, adopting antateng advisable this
Agreement and the Reorg Merger; (ii) determinirgg #ntering into this Agreement is in the bestriedés of the Company and
its shareholders; and (iii) recommending that thersholders of the Company approve and adopt tiiseknent

(c) The only vote of holders of any class or sedkcapital stock of the Company necessary toagpand adopt this Agreement
and the Reorg Merger is the approval and adoptichi® Agreement and the Reorg Merger by the afilise vote of the holde
of at least a majority of the votes entitled tochst by holders of the shares of Company CommockSh®n outstanding (the "
Company Shareholder Appro\").

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF HOLDCO AND MERGERUB
Each of HoldCo and Merger Sub represents and wiartarthe Company as follows:
4.01  Organization, Standing, and PoweEach of HoldCo and Merger Sub is duly organizedidly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in whitis organized. Since the date of its incorgiora neither HoldCo nor Merger Sub has

carried on any business or conducted any operatities than the execution of this Agreement, théopmance of its obligations hereunder
and matters ancillary thereto (including mattetatieg to the Second Step Closing).

4.02  Authority; Execution and Delivery; EnforceabilityEach of HoldCo and Merger Sub has all requisitgporate power and
authority to execute and deliver this Agreementtancbnsummate the Reorg Merger. Each of Hold@wsMerger Sub's execution and
delivery of this Agreement and consummation ofRe®rg Merger have been duly authorized by all resrgscorporate action on the part of
each of HoldCo and Merger Sub, subject to the agbrand adoption of this Agreement and the Reorggeteby HoldCo, as sole shareholder
of Merger Sub. Each of HoldCo and Merger Sub hag elxecuted and delivered this Agreement, andAgigement constitutes its legal,
valid and binding obligation, enforceable agaih#t accordance with its terms (except as suchreaébility may be limited by applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, receivgrshonservatorship, moratorium or similar laws etifeg the enforcement of creditors' rights
generally and except that the availability of tiqeieable remedy of specific performance or injunetielief is subject to the discretion of the
court before which any proceeding may be brought).

ARTICLE V
GOVERNING LAW

5.01 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the lawthefState of Illinois without regard to principlefs
conflicts of law.



ARTICLE VI
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

6.01  Conditions to Each Party's Obligation to Effect Hiest Merger. The respective obligation of each party to dffee Reorg
Merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver ¢lagh party) of each of the following conditions:

(a) the Company Shareholder Approval shall have beéairuy;

(b) no law, statute, rule or regulation, ordedgment, writ, injunction, decree, settlement qougtition shall exist or been enacted,
entered, promulgated or enforced by any governrhanthority, which prohibits or makes illegal thenepletion of the Reorg
Merger,

(c) all required approvals, licenses and certifiees from, and notifications and filings to, gowarental entities and
nongovernmental third parties shall have been pbthor made, as applicab

(d) the satisfaction or waiver (to the extent permitteetein) of each of the conditions to closingfeeth in the Purchase and Opti
Agreement with respect to the Second Step Closind written confirmation by each of the partiesht® Purchase Option
Agreement that each such party stands ready towdlhdonsummate the Second Step Closing immelyidtdowing the
consummation of the Reorg Merg

(e) the registration statement on Form S-4 filéth the Securities and Exchange Commission by HoltiGconnection with the
issuance of shares of HoldCo Common Stock in therdgBlerger shall have become effective under theutges Act of 1933,
as amended, and no stop order suspending theiedieess of such registration statement shall ledfect and no proceeding for
such purpose shall be pending before or threateyndide Securities and Exchange Commiss

(f) the approval of the listing of the HoldCo CommStock to be issued in connection with the Reoegger on such national stock
exchanges as determined by the Company

(g) the Company shall have received a written iopifrom Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, on the isasf representations and
warranties set forth or referred to in such opinideted as of the date on which the Effective Tameurs, to the effect that the
Reorg Merger will qualify as a "reorganization" it the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code aralfoansaction described
in Section 351 of the Cod

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

7.01 Amendment To the fullest extent permitted by law, this Agment may be amended by written consent of eattteof
parties hereto at any time prior to the Effectivm&, notwithstanding any approval of this Agreemgnthe shareholders of either or both of
the Constituent Corporations.

7.02  Termination. At any time prior to the Effective Time, this Aagment may be terminated and the Reorg Merger
contemplated hereby may be abandoned by actidredBbard of Directors of the Company in such BazrDirectors' sole discretion. In
addition, at any time prior to the Effective Tintleis Agreement shall automatically terminate arelReorg Merger contemplated hereby ¢
automatically be abandoned if the Purchase ancb®ptgjreement is terminated in accordance witheitss prior to the Second Step Closi
In the event of any such termination and abandohmenrsuant to this Section 7.02, this Agreemenli fls@ome void and none of the
Company, HoldCo or MergeiSub, or any of their respective shareholders, mesnbligectors, officers or affiliates shall havey diability
with respect to such termination and abandonment.

ARTICLE VIl
GENERAL PROVISIONS

8.01  Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in one or mouateoparts, all of which shall be considered orct the
same agreement and shall become effective whepramere counterparts have been signed by eacleqfatties and delivered to the other
parties.

8.02  Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreeméninvalid, illegal or incapable of being enfordeglany rule
or law, or public policy, all other terms, conditand provisions of this Agreement shall neveetseelemain in full force and effect so long
as the economic or legal substance of the tramsectiontemplated hereby is not affected in any mamaterially adverse to any party.

8.03  Entire Agreement; No Thiréarty Beneficiaries This Agreement constitutes the entire agreemedtsupersedes all other
prior agreements and understandings, both writbeinosal, among the parties with respect to the &&terger, and is not intended to, and
does not, confer upon any person other than theepamy rights or remedies.

8.04  Assignment This Agreement shall not be assigned by anh®fpiarties hereto (whether by operation of lawtbevise)
without the prior written consent of the other et This Agreement shall be binding upon, inorthe benefit of and be enforceable by



parties hereto and their respective successorpemditted assigns.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement, having beestfituly approved by the respective Boards of Daexcof each Constitue
Corporation and HoldCo, is hereby executed on lhetiadach Constituent Corporation and on behalfloldCo by a duly authorized offic
thereof as of the date specified above.

WALGREEN CO.

By: /s/ Gregory D. Wasson
Name: Gregory D. Wasson
Title: President and Chief Executiveicdf

WALGREENS BOOTS

ALLIANCE, INC .
By: /s/ Gregory D. Wasson
Name: Gregory D. Wasson
Title:  President
ONTARIO MERGER SUB, INC.
By: /s/ Timothy R.
McLevish

Name: Timothy R. McLevish
Title: Vice President and Treasurer



EXHIBIT 10.1

WALGREEN CO. MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PLAN
(As amended and restated effective July 1, 2014)

Purpose The purpose of the Walgreen Co. Management theerPlan (the "Plan™) is to provide special inde@tanc
motivation to eligible employees through annual lxes.

Definitions: Whenever used in the Plan, the following terfmslishave the meanings set forth below, unlesstmtext clearl
provides otherwise

a. The term "Base Salary" shall mean the hourly oarsad base compensation paid during the fiscal yeas
Participant, and any such base salary earned betrelé or reduced pursuant to a Company Sectioifk}i@idan, o
Section 125 plan, or another Company deferral plahe term Base Salary does not include any ineerdi othe
bonuses, stock purchase discounts, or other fldegefits or supplementary remunerati

b. The term "Committee" shall mean the Compensatiomi@ittee of the Board of Directors of the Compe

C. The term "Company" shall mean Walgreen Co., andi§ corporation, and, as applicable, subsidiaresaffiliates c
Walgreen Co. whose employees are eligible to ppéie in the Plar

d. The term "Disability" shall mean total disabilitg determined by the Committee, consistent with tiesvCompan
determines whether termination of employment isnugisability for other benefit plan purpos

e. The term "Employee" shall mean any employee ofGbmpany, including, but not limited to, the offisesf Walgree
Co. Employee shall not include any person whoas atassified as an employee in the common law esémghe
records of the Company, even if those records absexjuently determined to have been in error omptrson i
subsequently reclassified as an employee. For gleamo person shall be considered to be an Emelége an
period of time during which he or she: (1) is ased employee; (2) is an independent contractqi3)ois otherwis
not classified as an employee in the records oCihi@mpany

f. The term "Extraordinary Items" shall mean signific&ransactions that are different from the typioalcustomar
business transactions and are not expected to eguently as determined by the informed professigudgment ¢
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company aftekitg into consideration all the facts involved inparticula
situation and the objectives of the PI

g. The term "Individual Adjustment” shall mean the ambof any increase or reduction in the bonus staewoulc
otherwise be allocated to a Particip:

h. The term "Participant” shall mean any Employee whdicipates in and is eligible to receive inceatoompensatic
pursuant to paragraph 3 of the PI

i. The term "Plan Year" shall mean the fiscal yeaWdlgreen Co., which runs from September 1 to tHwiang
August 31, or such other -month period as may be designated by the Comm

j- The term "Retirement” shall mean termination of Eyment from the Company in good standing, as datexd by
the Committee or its delegates, and after havitairegd at least age 55 and at least 10 years ¢ihcous service

Eligibility and Participation The Committee shall have the authority and dison to determine the class or classe
Employees eligible to participate in the Plan fay &lan Year. As of the effective date of this aded and restated Plan,
following categories of Employees shall be eligitdeparticipate in the Pla

a. Any Employee whose job position is within the Arg$ypay band and above or its equivalent and isoetred b
another Company management incentive plan;

b. Any other Employee who is approved for participatlly the Committee, based on the recommendati@oaipan:
management that he or she is in a position to n@akebstantial contribution to the success of then@my b
exceptional service in a supervisory or staff posit

The Committee shall also have the authority to epgpror deny Plan participation to any individual fiayee. No Employee sh
have a contractual right to receive any incentiwara or payment, as all awards and payments areai#ly subject to the appro
and authorization of the Committee.

Determination of Bonuse: Participant bonuses for each Plan Year shatldtermined as follows

a. Prior to the beginning of the Plan Year, or as\earithe Plan Year as is practical considering ¢heumstance
management will recommend for Committee approvel lonus structure and accompanying details for



Year. Such recommendation shall cover the follgndreas and any other pertinent bonus provis
Q) The class or class of employees eligible to padi in the Plan for such Plan Ye

(2) The performance measure or measures upon whichsbsrahall be based, and the extent to which
measures shall be based on Company, division, eméss unit performance, or some combini
thereof. The application of such performance messmay vary among different categories of empls)

(©)) Target bonus levels (typically expressed as a p&age of Base Salary), threshold and maximum ¢
levels (typically expressed as a percentage oftdhget bonus level), and the corresponding Com
performance measure or measures. Such bonus lessisvary for different groups of Participants
determined by the Committe

4) Any Individual Adjustments that may be appliethether based on pestablished individual performar
measures or determined on a discretionary b

After the end of each Plan Year when the computatiand accounting determinations required to deterrRlar
bonuses have been completed, the higteegting accounting officer of the Company will reptm the Committee th
in his or her opinion those computations and actingrdeterminations were made in reasonable acnosdwith thi
terms of the Plan, and generally accepted accaymtiimciples, subject to any adjustments providedunder th
terms of paragraph 4c of the Plan and the certifina provided for under the terms of this parabrép.

In the event that the Company experiences any &ixtiaary Items, the Chief Financial Officer, in coifttation witt
the Chief Human Resources Officer, will recomméndhe Committee, whether such Extraordinary Itemis be
included in or excluded from the determinationttd Company's financial performance measure or messised i
determining the bonus for the Plan Ye

The bonuses earned by Participants under the t&frthe Plan will be paid to Participants after finst meeting of th
Board of Directors which follows the end of the bggible Plan Year, but in no event later than tatedy which suc
bonuses must be paid in order to be allowed aslarBeincome tax deduction for the fiscal year cwimg with sucl
Plan Year

Participation for Partial Plan Yee:

Any Plan Participant whose employment with the Canypterminates during a Plan Year for reasons atfnen
Retirement, Disability or death shall not be eligilior a bonus for that Plan Year. Notwithstandthg foregoing
Company management may recommend to the Commitesfapproval a discretionary bonus for any teatec
Participant if in the judgment of management sudisaretionary bonus is warrante

Any Plan Participant whose employment with the Camypterminates during a Plan Year due to Retire)
Disability or death shall be eligible for a progdtbonus foisuch Plan Year, based on Base Salary earned w
Participant in the Plan prior to such terminatiéremployment

A Participant who is eligible for a bonus hereunttera portion of a Plan Year (due to hire, prorotor transfe
during that Plan Year), shall generally be eligifilea bonus under this Plan based on Base Sadaeineé during tr
eligible portion of the Plan Year. Notwithstanditige foregoing, the bonus amount payable to a daatit who i
hired within the Plan Year, moves to a differemgét bonus level during the Plan Year, or recepp@gment unde
another Company incentive plan during the currenprior year, shall be subject to the discretiorttef Committe
and its delegate

Subject to the end-gkar employment requirement set forth in paragfa@tabove, a Plan Participant who is «
Companyapproved leave of absence (other than a Persoaaklaf absence) for a portion of a Plan Year geatlair
eligible for a bonus for up to the first six montbfssuch leave of absence. Any sherm disability pay during ai
such leave of absence shall be included in suditiant's bonusable Base Sale

Administration. Subject to the terms of the Plan and the poweasted to the full Board of Directors, the Comasttha
ultimate authority and responsibility for the admiration of the Plan. The Committee shall haVepalwers necessary
administer the Plan, including, without limitatiotme power to interpret the provisions of the Plandecide all questions
eligibility, to establish rules and forms for thénainistration of the Plan, and to delegate spedcifiies and responsibilities
officers or other employees of the Company. Aled@inations, interpretations, rules, and decisiohthe Committee wit
respect to any question arising out of or in cotinacwith the administration, interpretation angbgation of the Plan and t
rules and regulations promulgated hereunder sleafinal, conclusive and binding upon all persongitg or claiming to hay
any interest or right under the Pl

Indemnification. The Company shall indemnify the members of toben@®ittee, the other members of the Board of Dines
and all Company officers and other employees resiptenfor administering the Plan against any andiabilities arising b
reason of any act or failure to act made in godith ia accordance with the provisions of the Pl&mr this purpose, liabilitie
include expenses reasonably incurred in the defefary claim relating to the Pla



Amendment and TerminationThe Plan may be amended from time to time onitgaited at any time by the Board of Direc
of Walgreen Co

General Plan Provisior:

Nothing in this Plan is intended to limit the auily of the Committee to award additional discradoy bonuses
one or more senior executives of the Company a€timemittee deems appropriate from time to ti

The impact of the payment of bonuses under the &taRarticipants' other Company employee bendfid be base
on the governing terms of such other employee liteplehs and programs, or as determined by the Gteror it
delegates, where necess:

Neither the existence of the Plan nor any substamspect of the Plan shall give any Participaatritpht to continue
employment with the Company for any period of tioreshall interfere with the right of the Companydiscipline o
discharge a Participant at any tir

The Company shall withhold from any bonus paymeatenpursuant to the Plan any taxes required toithdelc
from such payment under local, state or federal

Bonuses otherwise payable hereunder may be paiddefierred basis pursuant to any deferred compengabgran
that may be implemented with Committee approvatompliance with the requirements of Internal Rewe@od:
Section 409A and the regulations thereun

The Company shall not be required to fund or otliervgegregate any cash or other assets for purpbseseting it
obligations under the Pla

The provisions of the Plan shall be construed atelpreted according to the laws of the State lofoils, except ¢
preempted by federal lay

A Participant shall not have any right to pledggydthecate, anticipate or in any way create audigon any amoun
provided under this Plan and no benefits payabteumgler shall be assignable in anticipation of payneither b
voluntary or involuntary acts, or by operation aivl

The Plan shall be binding upon the Company andsacgessor of the Company, including without linitatany
corporation or other entity acquiring directly adirectly all or substantially all of the assetsteé Company wheth
by merger, consolidation, sale or otherwise. Ssgbcessor shall thereafter be deemed the "Compfmythe
purposes of the Pla



EXHIBIT 10.11

Amendment to Stock Option Agreements

This document constitutes an amendment to all audéhg Walgreen Co. stock option agreements (tlgge@dments™) under the Walgreen
Executive Stock Option Plan (the "Stock Option Pjamd the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "OmsiBlan") but only to the extent of
the following with respect to each of the Agreensent

An Agreement shall only be amended if the Emgéolyolding the underlying stock option has not ireia Termination of
Employment or Termination of Service, as definethimapplicable Agreement and Plan, prior to th@&aber 1, 2014 effective
date of this Amendment; ai

This Amendment shall only apply to an Agreemerihe extent that the revised terms and conditimiew are more favorable to the
Employee than the existing terms and conditionth@fAgreement

Amendment Terms and Conditions:

The provision of each Agreement is amended by modjfthe paragraph covering treatment of the stgation upon other Termination of
Employment under the Stock Option Plan or othenlieation of Service under the Omnibus Plan, a®vat

1. The Option shall remain exercisable for thed@@-period immediately following such TerminatidnEanployment or Service, but
only to the extent tha

a. such Termination of Employment or Service is invibéry and without Cause; a
b. such stock option is otherwise vested and é&darte upon such Termination of Employment or Ssrim accordance with
the terms of the Agreement; a

In addition, in no event shall the stock optionelsercisable beyond its 10-year expiration date.

2. For purposes of the above, "Cause" shall lmefised in the Agreement, or if not defined in fkgreement, then Cause shall be as
defined in Section 3.07 of the Omnibus P!

Each Agreement shall remain unchanged in all attgects.



EXHIBIT 10.3€

WALGREEN EXECUTIVE DEFERRED PROFIT-SHARING PLAN
AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO

Effective January 1, 2015:
The first sentence of Section 4.1 of the Plan Ietdd and replaced with the following:
"A Participant may elect to defer under the Plariloyg a Deferral Election in accordance with Sent4.2."
The third sentence of Section 4.1 of the Plan istdd and replaced with the following:

"Deductions will be made pursuant to such Defdetattions during the Plan Year."

I.
Effective January 1, 2015, Section 5.1 of the aamended by adding the following sentence aetitethereof:

"For purposes of the foregoing calculations anditseit shall be assumed that the Participantrdmuies the maximum annual
amount permissible under the Profit-Sharing Plagardless of the Participant's actual contributéeel, if any."



EXHIBIT 12

Walgreen Co
Computation of Historical Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges®
(in millions, except ratio dat:

Twelve Months Ended August 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Income before income tax $ 35 % 38 $ 33 $ 4,2¢ $ 3,3
provision
Add:
Minority Interests - - - -
Fixed charge 1,3 13 1,2¢ 1,2: 1,1(
Amortization of capitalized -
interest
Less
Equity earnings (61 (34 -
Capitalized interest ( ( ( (1 (1
Earnings as defined $ 43. $ 49 $ 46. $ 55( $ 4,4¢

Interest expense, net of $ 1€ $ 19 €3 % ¢
capitalized interes
Capitalized interes : :
Portions of rentals 1,2( 11 1,1 1,1: 9¢
representative of the interest
factor

Fixed charges as define $ 13 % 13 % 12t $ 12: $ 1,1(

Ratio of earnings to fixed 3. 3. 3.t 4. 4.(
charges

@ For the purpose of computing these ratios, "easiiegnsist of earnings before income tax provisind before adjustment for income or
loss from equity investees, interest, distributezbme of equity-method investees, and the portddmentals representative of the interest
factor. "Fixed charges" consist of interest expefghich includes amortization of capitalized disBtiance costs), capitalized interest and
the portions of rentals representative of the adtfactor



EXHIBIT -

As of August 31, 2014 Walgreen Co., (Registrant) thee following subsidiaries:

NAME STATE OR COUNTRY OF INCORPORATIOI
Smart Insurance Compal Arizona
Walgreen Arizona Drug Ct Arizona
Consolidated Stores, In Arkansas
Med-X Corporation Arkansas
Pharn-mart Pharmacy of Warren, In Arkansas
Rich Mountain Pharmaceutical Services, | Arkansas
S&W Pharmacy, Inc Arkansas
Stephen L. LaFrance Pharmacy, | Arkansas
Salu Australia Pty Ltd Australia
Skincarestore Australia Pty Lt Australia
Superior Bermuda G Bermuds
DS Distribution Canada, Lt British Columbia
Crescent Healthcare, Ir California
Crescent Therafusion, In California
Option Care, Inc California
River City Pharmacy, Inc California
Sunamerica Affordable Housing Partners XI ( California
MedAvail Technologies, Inc Canade
Walgreen Canada Limite Canade
Walgreen Drug (Ontario) Limite Canade
Walgreen Asia Holding Ltc Cayman Islant
Walgreen Asia Trading Ltc China
Walgreens China Business Tri China
Accountable Care Network of Arizona LL Delaware
Accountable Care Network of Florida, LL Delaware
Accountable Care Network of Illinois, LL Delaware
Accountable Care Network of New Jersey, L Delaware
Accountable Care Network of Pennsylvania, L Delaware
Accountable Care Network of Tennessee, L Delaware
Accountable Care Network of Texas, LLC Delaware
American Occupational Health Management, Inc. Delaware
CCS Infusion Management, LL Delaware
CCSl Holding 3, LLC Delaware
CG Transportation, LL( Delaware
CHI Holding Corporatior Delaware
Critical Care Systems, In Delaware
Cystic Fibrosis Foundation Pharmacy, LLC Delaware
Cystic Fibrosis Services, Inc. ( Delaware
DR Employee Services, LL Delaware
DRI-I, Inc. Delaware
drugstore.com, inc Delaware
DS Pharmacy, Inc Delaware
Duane Reade Holdings, Ir Delaware
Duane Reade International, L1 Delaware
Duane Reade Realty, Ir Delaware
Duane Reade, In Delaware
East West Distributing Merger Co., LL Delaware
Happy Harry's Discount Drug Stores, i Delaware
Happy Harry's Inc Delaware
Healthcare Clinic Solutions, LL Delaware
HHDH, Inc. Delaware
Infinity Infusion II, LLC Delaware
Infunity Infusion, LLC Delaware
I-Trax Health Management Solutions, | Delaware
MedAvalil, Inc. Delaware
Lake Cook Investments, LL Delaware
MedNow Infusion, LLC (4’ Delaware
Meridian COMP of New York, Inc.(12 Delaware
Option Care Enterprises, Ir Delaware
Optionet, Inc Delaware
Pharma Dynamics, Inc. (: Delaware
Rockville Travilah Square, LL( Delaware

Salu Beauty, Inc Delaware



SIC Parent, LLC (10 Delaware

Smart Insurance Company Holdings | Delaware
Smart Insurance Group Holdings, i Delaware
Stephen L. LaFrance Holdings, It Delaware
Super D. Drugs Acquisition Ci Delaware
Take Care Employer Solutions, LLC (1 Delaware
Take Care Health Systems, Inc. (. Delaware
Take Care Health Systems, LLC (C Delaware
USA/Super D Franchising In Delaware
WAB Holdings, LLC Delaware
WAGDCO, LLC Delaware
WAGHID, LLC Delaware
Walgreen International Investments, LI Delaware
Walgreen Investments C Delaware
Walgreens Assistance, Ir Delaware
Walgreens Infusion Services Holding, Ii Delaware
Walgreens Infusion Services, Ir Delaware
Walgreens Network Health Services, LI Delaware
Walgreens of North Carolina, In Delaware
Walgreens Sleep and Respiratory Services, Delaware
Walgreens Specialty Care Centers, L Delaware
Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy Holdings, Delaware
Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy, Ll Delaware
Walgreens Store No. 3332, LL Delaware
Walgreens Store No. 4650, LL Delaware
Walgreens Store No. 4651, LL Delaware
Walgreens Store No. 5576, LL Delaware
Walgreens Store No. 5838, LL Delaware
Walgreens Venture Capital, LL Delaware
Walgreens Well Network of Modesto, LL Delaware
Walgreens Well Network of Oakland, LL Delaware
Walgreens Well Network of Palo Alto, LL Delaware
Walgreens Well Network of Sacramento, L Delaware
Walgreens Well Network of San Francisco, L Delaware
Waltrust Properties, In Delaware
Whole Health Management, LLC (1 Delaware
WRA Partners, LLC Delaware
WVC Investments, LLC Delaware
Walgreen of Hawaii, LLC Hawaii
Walgreen of Maui, Inc Hawaii
Walgreens (Hong Kong) Limite Hong Kong
Bond Drug Company of lllinois, LL( lllinois
Bowen Development Compai lllinois
Deerfield Funding Corporatic lllinois
Medication Adherence Solutions, LL lllinois
Riviera Brands LLC lllinois
The 1901 Group, LL( lllinois
WagBeau LLC lllinois
Walgreen Market Strategies, LL lllinois
Walgreen Medical Supply, LL! lllinois
Walgreen Mercantile Corporatic lllinois
Walgreen National Corporatic lllinois
Walgreen Pharmacy Services Eastern, | lllinois
Walgreen Pharmacy Services Midwest, L lllinois
Walgreen Pharmacy Services Southern, | lllinois
Walgreen Pharmacy Services Western, | lllinois
Walgreen Pharmacy Services WHS, L lllinois
Walgreen Realty Resources LI lllinois
Walgreens Business Services, L lllinois
Walgreens Home Care, Ir lllinois
Walgreens Mail Service, In lllinois
Walgreens Personal Financial Services, | lllinois
Walgreens Pharmacy Strategies, L lllinois
Walgreens Store No. 3680, LL lllinois
Walgreens Store No. 7839, LL lllinois
Walgreens.com, Inc lllinois

Salient Business Solutions, Ltd. | India



CHDM, LLC (12)

Baxter Drug, Inc

Walgreen Louisiana Co., In

Superior LuxCo 1 S.a.r.

Superior LuxCo 2 S.a.r.

Walgreen Asia Services S.a.
Walgreen International S.a.r
Walgreen Investments Luxembourg S
Superior Luxco 1 S.a.r.

Eager Park Pharmacy and Health Services, LL(
Walgreens of Massachusetts, L

Full Road Holdings, Ltd

Jim Bain's Pharmac

Walgreen Hastings Ci

Walgreen of Nevada, LL!

Hunterdon Infusion Services, L.L.C. (
Trinity Home Care, LLC

Corporate Health Dimensions, Inc. (¢
Duane Read

Critical Care System of New York, In
Option Care of New York, Inc
Springville Pharmacy Infusion Therapy, I
Walgreen Eastern Co., Ir

Walgreens Store No. 3288, LL

Option Home Health, Inc

University Option Care, LLC (G

May's Drug Stores, Ini

Medicenter, Inc. (12

M-X corporation

Walgreens Infusion Services at Legacy Health, LBL
Option Care Enterprises, Ir

Walgreen of Hato Rey, In

Walgreen of Puerto Rico, In
Walgreen of San Patricio, In
Walgreen Scotland Investments,

Alliance Boots GmbH (5

Walgreen Swiss International Gmt

Walgreens Boots Alliance Development Gm
Walgreens Infusion and Respiratory Services, LLX
Infinity Infusion Care

Vision Direct Inc.

Walgreen UK Development Services Limit

Green Hills Insurance Company, A Risk Retention
Group (12)

LCA Insurance Co., Inc

Walgreen of US Virgin Islands, LL

RxAlly, LLC (9)

Option Care Home Health, LL

Walgreen Oshkosh, In

Indiana
Kansas
Louisiana
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Maryland
Massachusett
Mauritius
Mississippi
Nebraske
Nevada
New Jerse!
New Jerse!
New York
New York
New York
New York
New York
New York
New York
Ohio

Ohio
Oklahoma
Oklahoma
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvani:
Puerto Ricc
Puerto Ricc
Puerto Ricc
Scotlanc

Switzerland
Switzerland
Switzerland
Tennesse
Texas
Texas

United Kingdom

Vermont

Vermont
Virgin Islands
Virginia
Washingtor
Wisconsin



Notes:
(1)50% owned by Option Care Enterprises, Inc. (a B@aania Corporation’
(2)30% owned by Full Road Holdings, Ltd. (a Mauritistity).
(3)50% owned by Option Care Enterprises, Inc. (a DatavCorporation)
(4)51% owned by Option Care Enterprises, Inc. (a DatavCorporation)
(5)Walgreen Swiss International GmbH (a Swiss Entityhs 45% of Alliance Boots GmbH (a Swiss Entity§lan
55% is owned by unrelated parties. Alliance BdatsbH owns over 300 entities which are not listedeahibit
21, due to the registrant's minority ownership &%
(6)50% owned by Walgreen Co. (an lllinois Corporati
(7)50% owned by Walgreen Pharmacy Services MidwedE.l(an lllinois LLC)
(8)Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy, LLC (a Delaware Ldig)ctly owns 80% of Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
Pharmacy, LLC (a Delaware LLC). Walgreens Spegciharmacy, LLC indirectly owns 49.9% CareMetx, LLC
(a Maryland LLC).
(9)46.295% owned by Walgreen Co. (an lllinois Corpiorat
(10)51% owned by WRA Partners, LLC. (a Delaware LI
(11)99% owned by Walgreen Co. (an lllinois Corporati
(12)49% indirectly owned by Healthcare Clinic SolutiphkC (a Delaware LLC)

The registrant also wholly owns certain inactivesdiaries which are not included in the above I8l wholly owned subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements.



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statement Nos. 333-19467, 333-107841;13%343, 333-164382, 333-167836,
333-174810, 333-174811, 333-175642 and 333-1864%0aom S-8, No. 333-198773 on Form S-3 and No. B¥8768 on Form S-4 of our
reports dated October 20, 2014, relating to thesalilated financial statements of Walgreen Co. @mbisidiaries and the effectiveness of
Walgreen Co. and Subsidiaries' internal controk dweancial reporting, appearing in the Annual Remm Form 10-K of Walgreen Co. and
Subsidiaries for the year ended August 31, 2014cfweports (1) expresses an unqualified opiniothenconsolidated financial statements
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2014 and ohetuan explanatory paragraph indicating that quontés based in part on the report of
KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accagntirm, with respect to the consolidated finansi@tements of Alliance Boots GmbH
(which Walgreens accounts for using the equity wethf accounting on a three month lag) insofat aslates to the amounts included for
Walgreens' equity investment and equity earningslliance Boots GmbH, on the basis of Internatidr@lancial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting StandardarBpas of and for the year ended May 31, 2014(2nexpresses an unqualified opinior
the effectiveness of internal control over finahcégpoorting).

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Chicago, lllinois

October 20, 2014



EXHIBIT 23.2

Consent of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Alliance Boots GmbH:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrégistration statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-19833-107841, 333-112343, 333-
164382, 333-167836, 333-174810, 333-174811, 33%4Z5and 333-186491) and Form S-3 (No. 398773) of Walgreen Co. and
registration statement on Form S-4 (No. 338768) of Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc. of oypoe dated 12 May 2014, with respect to
Group statements of financial position of AlliariBeots GmbH as at 31 March 2014 and 2013, and théeteGroup statements of incol
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and dagfs for each of the years in the thygmar period ended 31 March 2014, which re
appears in the Form 8-K of Walgreen Co. dated 1§ R 4.

/sl KPMG LLP

London, United Kingdom
17 October 2014



EXHIBIT 23.3

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Alliance Boots GmbH:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrtgistration statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-19883-107841, 333-112343, 333-
164382, 333-167836, 333-174810, 333-174811, 33%4Z5and 333-186491) and Form S-3 (No. 338773) of Walgreen Co. and
registration statement on Form S-4 (No. 338768) of Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc. of oypod dated 16 July 2014, with respect to
Group statements of financial position of AllianBeots GmbH as at 31 May 2014 and 2013, and théeckl@roup statements of incor
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and desls for the year ended 31 May 2014 and ten moeitied 31 May 2013, not incluc
herein, which report appears in the 31 August 20iual report on Form 10-K of Walgreen Co.

/sl KPMG LLP

London, United Kingdom
17 October 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory D. Wasson, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Walgreen Co.

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the

period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @defined in Exchange Act Rule

13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finaha@aorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and pregémtéis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such
evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant's internal control over financial repogtihat occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinge

The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent

functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materialakaesses in the design or operation of internarabaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefmaincial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatolwes management or other employees who have #is#gn role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

/sl Gregory D. Wasso Chief Executive Officer Date: October 20, 2014
Gregory D. Wasso




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

[, Timothy R. McLevish, certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Walgreen Co.

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the

period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrare responsible for establishing and maintaimisclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rule

13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

b) Designed such internal control over finah@orting, or caused such internal control owearficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargaadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regisBalisclosure controls and procedures and presémthis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant's internal control over financial repagtthat occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repos) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportings

The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataxmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent

functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materialak@esses in the design or operation of internairobaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refiwaincial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatolhwes management or other employees who have #dis#gnt role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

/s/  Timothy R. McLevist Chief Financial Officer Date: October 20, 2014
Timothy R. McLevisk




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the Annual Report of Walgreen,@a lllinois corporation (the "Company"), on Fol®K for the year ended August 31,
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion (the "Report™), I, Gregory D. Wasson, Cligkcutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaneAct of 2002, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Gregory D. Wasson
Gregory D. Wasson
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: October 20, 2014

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to Walgreera@a will be retained by Walgreen Co.
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionior its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the Annual Report of Walgreen,Gam lllinois corporation (the "Company"), on Fo+K for the year ended August 31,
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion (the "Report"), I, Timothy R. McLevish, Chiginancial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaneAct of 2002, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Timothy R. McLevish
Timothy R. McLevish
Chief Financial Officer
Dated: October 20, 2014

A signed original of this written statement reqdif®y Section 906 has been provided to Walgreera@a will be retained by Walgreen Co.
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.



